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Dear shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), | hereby present the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The outbreak of novel coronavirus 2019 (the “COVID-19") pandemic (the
“Pandemic”) since January 2020 has dramatically changed the lifestyle of

"o

people, with “social distancing”, “work from home” and “furlough” are now
common practice almost throughout the year. The Pandemic has impact on
the business and operations of the Group, as the Group has certain factories
located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or “China”) and extensive
operations in the United States (the “US”). The Group's factories in the PRC
were temporarily suspended from operations in February 2020 and gradually
resumed production in early March 2020. For our operations in the US, due to
the severity of the Pandemic, some cities were under lockdown and the global
freight capacity was also reduced massively, which led to the reduction of
shipment of products to our customers in the US. The Group has been closely
monitoring the impact from the global development of the Pandemic, and
taking measures including but not limited to adjustments of its supply chain
management and reallocation of human resources to reduce the unfavourable
impact arising from the Pandemic.

In response to the China-US trade war, the Group mitigates the impact by
strengthening its supply chain management to produce components and
accessories in Vietnam and India, including encouraging our suppliers to
establish new production facilities in Vietnam to cope with the production
orders of parts. The Group also established production facilities in India and
relocated certain manufacturing workflows to local production, serving the
purpose of avoiding the tariffs imposed by the US on products from the PRC.

For the Company’s 47.12% owned associate, Dish Media Network Limited ("Dish
Media’, the largest satellite pay television operator in Nepal), has secured a
customer base exceeding one million subscribers in Nepal and generated
stable subscription revenue in the year of 2020 amidst the outbreak of the
Pandemic.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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The impacts from the Pandemic along with the escalation of geo-political
and geo-economic tensions, clouding the general economic landscape with
uncertainties and financial risks. Given these volatilities and challenges, the
Group will make every endeavour to identify business opportunities with
promising potential in the manufacturing segment or even other sectors so as
to diversify our income source to weather the possible adverse cycle. With the
dedicated management and execution capabilities of our top management
team, the Group remains confident in seizing the opportunities amidst the
challenging landscape.

Going forward, the Board believes that the growth of the Group will depend
on business opportunities arising from new 5G peripherals, Internet of Things
and related products. In anticipation of such business opportunity, the Group's
research and development team is developing new 5G related products with
reference to the market trend. New products under development include
next generation radio frequency and antenna products. The Group's research
and development team is working on these products in the research center
in Hsinchu, Taiwan. Hopefully, the Group’s new 5G related products will bring
about more business opportunities as well as revenue and profits.

All'in all, we are thankful for the patience and continuous support from
our dedicated employees, the management, invaluable business partners,
Shareholders and investors. We look forward to sharing the rewards ahead with
you.

Lau Yau Cheung
Chairman
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group recorded a decrease in gross profit ratio from continuing operations
from 16.83% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 13.77% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 due to outbreak of the Pandemic and the lockdown
of certain cities in the North America and South Asia, which postponed the

delivery of the products of the Group to its customers.

The Group's earnings before finance costs, income tax expense, depreciation,
amortisation and release of prepaid lease payments was HK$33,689,000 (2019:
loss of HK$285,768,000).

MEDIA ENTERTAINMENT PLATFORM RELATED
PRODUCTS

In 2020, the Group’s media entertainment platform related products segment
faced a challenging economic environment and a decline in demand of its
products due to the outbreak of the Pandemic. In response to the challenging
economic environment, the Group continued to explore new business
opportunities such as trading of small home appliances. The revenue of this
segment was decreased by 31.80% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2019, while the segment results were decreased by 84.38% due to

the outbreak of the Pandemic.

—  Segment revenue of media entertainment platform related products
was approximately HK$124,293,000 (2019: HK$182,237,000).

—  Segment results from operations were approximately HK$2,039,000
(2019: HK$13,052,000).

—  Segment margin was 1.64% as compared with segment margin of 7.16%
in 2019.

Outlook

The Group is exploring new business opportunities for this segment such as
trading of small home appliances. The China-US trade war is not expected to
have material adverse impact on this segment as the Group does not have set-
top box customers in the US.
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OTHER MULTIMEDIA PRODUCTS

Despite the outbreak of the Pandemic, which affected the products demand
of the Group'’s other multimedia products segment and the challenging
economic environment, the Group’s other multimedia products segment
was able to maintain its profitability. Major products of this segment included
cables, multimedia accessories, external batteries, wireless mobile phone
chargers for vehicles and ultraviolet light smartphone sanitizers. The revenue
of this segment was increased by 16.23%, thanks to the high demand of
ultraviolet light smartphone sanitizers. Segment results decreased by 48.24%
due to the increase in material costs after the outbreak of the Pandemic.

—  Segment revenue of other multimedia products was approximately
HK$273,735,000 (2019: HK$235,505,000).

—  Segment results from operations were approximately HK$16,434,000
(2019: HK$31,749,000).

—  Segment margin was 6.00% as compared with the segment margin of
13.48% in 2019.

Outlook

We are enhancing our product portfolio and developing new businesses. New
products, such as ultraviolet light smartphone sanitizers received high demand
in the year of 2020. The China-US trade war has some impact on this segment
as some of the customers are located in the US. We are trying to minimize the
impact by sourcing from suppliers outside the PRC, such as Southeast Asia.
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SATELLITE TV EQUIPMENT AND ANTENNA PRODUCTS
The revenue of the Group's satellite TV equipment and antenna products
segment showed a decline of 28.67%, while the segment results were
decreased by 37.80% as a result of the outbreak of the Pandemic and lockdown
of certain cities in the North America during the year.

—  Segment revenue of satellite TV equipment and antenna products was
approximately HK$465,601,000 (2019: HK$652,785,000).

—  Segment results from operations were approximately HK$63,897,000
(2019: HK$102,731,000).

—  Segment margin was 13.72%, decreased by 2.02 percentage-point as
compared with the segment margin of 15.74% for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Outlook

Low noise blocking down converters ("LNBs") are receiving devices mounted
on satellite dishes used for reception, which collect microwaves from the
satellite dishes and facilitate the transmission of satellite television signals.
Apart from the sales of LNBs to the customers in North America, we are
exploring business opportunities in other areas such as cross-selling LNBs
to other existing customers of the Group in South Asia. The research and
development team of the Group endeavours to develop new products for next
generation radio and antenna communications. The China-US trade war has
some impact on this segment as some of the customers are located in the US.
Such impact is minimized by sourcing from suppliers outside the PRC, such as
Southeast Asia.
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GEOGRAPHICAL RESULTS

ASIA

Segment revenue of Asia for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$99,362,000, compared with the year ended 31
December 2019 which was approximately HK$275,181,000.

63.89% decrease in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2019.
Asia shares 11.51% total revenue from continuing operations of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25.71%).

EUROPE

Segment revenue of Europe for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately HK$99,389,000, compared with the year ended 31
December 2019 which was approximately HK$108,510,000.

841% decrease in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2019.

Europe shares 11.51% total revenue from continuing operations of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 10.14%).

MIDDLE EAST

Segment revenue of Middle East from continuing operations of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$56,843,000, compared with the year ended 31 December 2019
which was approximately HK$35,714,000.

59.16% growth in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31
December 2019.

Middle East shares 6.58% total revenue from continuing operations of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 3.34%).
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NORTH AMERICA =M

—  Segment revenue of North America for the year ended 31 December — REEZE-ZF+-_A=+—HLFE
2020 was approximately HK$567,365,000, compared with the year ended 4t 3 M 5 2B U A 49 & 567,365,000 T T &L
31 December 2019 which was approximately HK$622,613,000. EZE-NF+ZA=+—HLEFEHNE

622,613,000 JT °

—  8.87% drop in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31 — PHBRARFEEZE_E—NF+_A=+—
December 2019. HiEFEMELE /Jﬁ9‘8.87% o

—  North America shares 65.70% total revenue from continuing operations — REBEZZZEFF+-_A=1+—HLFE
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 58.16%). EEMNSBERAEEFELLEETRBA

65.70% (= Z — SLEF : 58.16%) °

SOUTH AMERICA R M

—  Segment revenue of South America for the year ended 31 December RBE_ZT_EF+_A=+—BILFE
2020 was approximately HK$38,420,000, compared with the year ended XM o B U A %) A38420,0008 Tt ¢ i AL
31 December 2019 which was approximately HK$23,461,000. 2T NF+_A=Z+t—HUEFELHA

23,461,000 JC °

—  63.76% growth in segment revenue compared with the year ended 31 — DR AEFEE-—_FT-NAF+_A=1+-—
December 2019. HiEFEMRL iiE‘|§63.76% o

—  South America shares 4.45% total revenue from continuing operations of — REE-_Z-_FTF+-_A=+—BILFE
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 2.19%). @%JH“*N&T$E B R A T AR A 4.45%

T — L 1 219%) ©

Outlook Bl =

As our businesses in Europe, North America and Asia continued to share AARERMPERMN AL FEMN LN EBIFE (A
majority of the Group's revenue, therefore we shall focus and explore new EFERARIHWA  BHEEMEARABERIITN
business opportunities on these regions in future. ZEM R BB ET R -
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Contmued)'

FIEHE

DISPOSAL OF ALL INTERESTS IN MYHD AND
CONTINUATION OF LOANS AND GUARANTEE

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 31 December
2018 (the "Announcement”) and the circular of the Company dated 25 May
2019 (the “Circular”). Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used herein
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Announcement and in
the Circular. On 31 December 2018, the Vendor and the Purchaser entered into
the Agreement pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell,
and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of the Target Company, at the nominal consideration of US$1 with
effect from the Transaction Date. The Target Company was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and indirectly held 51% interests in MyHD. All the
Conditions set out in the Agreement had been satisfied and the Disposal was
completed on 25 June 2019.

The Vendor had agreed with the Purchaser under the Agreement to procure
that the Existing Loans shall continue to be advanced by the Company or SMT
(as the case may be) to the Target Company and/or MyHD (as the case may be)
under the then existing arrangements notwithstanding the Completion taking
place. Such arrangement confers the right to the Company or SMT (as the
case may be) to receive the payments for the Existing Loans from the Target
Company and/or MyHD (as the case may be) when the financial positions of
the Target Company and/or MyHD (as the case may be) improve and have
sufficient cash to settle the Existing Loans. As at 31 December 2020, there
were Existing Loans which have been past due in the aggregate amount of
US$91,534,000 comprising aggregate principal amount of US$71,298,000 and
aggregate accrued interest (calculated based on the terms of agreements of
Existing Loans) of US$20,236,000 owing by the Target Company and/or MyHD
to the Company and/or SMT (as the case may be), the particulars of which are
as follows:
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Principal amount

Accrued interest

outstanding as at asat
Lenders Debtors Prevailing interestrate ~ Maturity date 31 December 2020 31 December 2020
R-B-2H R-BE-2H
+t=ZA=t-H +t=ZA=t+-—H
ERA BEA BiTR = A HAEEBEASH et A S
SMT Target Company 3 months LIBOR 31.12.2020 US$9,554,000 US$1,405,000
+ 100 basis points™ee (approximately HK$74,062,000)  (approximately HK$10,895,000)
BHRHX ERE NS =ERAmBEHT it 323 9,554,000 7T 1405000 % T
EEZiR=Yill +=ZR=+-H (#774,062,0007% 75) (47108950007 75)

100 fE & 20
SMT MyHD 3 months LIBOR 31.12.2020 US$10,500,000 US$1,284,000
+ 100 basis points™ee” (approximately HK$81,397,000)  (approximately HK$9,952,000)
EHRR MyHD = EAAmBERT —ZCTF 10,500,000% 7T 1284000 T
EEZiR=Yill +ZA=+—H (#781,397,0007% 75) (#79,952,0007% 7T)

100 fE & B =0
SMT MyHD 10% per annum 31.12.2020 US$42,653,000 USS$14,608,000
(approximately HK$330,652,000)  (approximately HK$113,239,000)
RERE MyHD FERE 0 TE-TF 42,653,0003 7T 14,608,000 % 7T
+=ZA=+-H (#7330,652,000 7% 7T) (#7113,239,000% 7T
the Company MyHD 10% per annum 31.12.2020 US$8,591,000 US$2,939,000
(approximately HK$66,600,000)  (approximately HK$22,784,000)
ARA MyHD FRE0E “E-TE 8,591,0003 7T 2,939,0003 7T
+=ZA=+-H (#766,600,0007% 7T) (#722,78400078 TT)
Total US$71,298,000 1S$20,236,000
(approximately HK$552,711,000) - (approximately HK$156,870,000)
@t 71,298,000 7T 20,236,000 7T
(#552,711,0007% 7T) (#9156,870,000 % 7T)

Note: B & -

1. As a reference, 3 months London inter-bank offered rates (‘LIBOR") as applicable to these two 1. EhR2E RZZE——_FRA—RAE-Z-_ZF+=A

loans during the period between 1 May 2012 to 31 December 2020 ranged between 0.21575%

and 2.807639%.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Cont/ndéd}'

FIEHE

In December 2019, the Company was given to understand that the Target
Company and MyHD were in serious financial problem and ceased to operate
in late 2019. As such, the Company considered these loan receivables were
credit impaired and full impairment in the amount of HK$646,366,000 was
provided as at 31 December 2019. No interest income was recognised on
the outstanding loan principal for the year ended 31 December 2020 as the
recoverability of such interest receivables is remote.

The Vendor had also agreed that the Guarantee given by the Company to
MyHD shall continue for the time being after the Completion. The maximum
amount payable by the Company under the Guarantee would not exceed
US$3,500,000 (equivalent to HK$27,332,000). Such arrangement would enable
MyHD to secure continuing supply of television contents from MBC FZ LLC
which is one of the foundations for the normal operation of MyHD and was
essential for the Completion of the Disposal.

Notwithstanding that MyHD ceased its operation in late 2019, the Company
has not received any demand for payment from MyHD under the Guarantee.
At 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group had recognised the provision
for financial guarantee in the amount of US$3,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$27,332,000) in relation to the Guarantee.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2020.

B IR B A wm B AT ()

RZZE-—NEF+TZA XR2aAMBERERAR
wmﬁﬁﬁi%%ﬁ%-i%—i—hif%
EEE-Alt - ARARRZERKEREEE
BB Iﬁ&%ﬁ%% AR ZZE—NEF+ZA
Z+—H2ENRABERE £ % 5646366000
BT - BE_Z_FTFT+_A=1+T—HLFE"
FR 74 5% 55 FE WO B B0 AT Ui [ 14 AR A - iR A R R
BEERRESHERAEWA -

ERNRAE  AAB4HEFMHDAIER AR ZEK
BERIFE - ARARBERFMAXINES S
¥E % T 8 #8 3,500,000 3% 7T (A8 & 727,332,000 7T) ©
LB FEMyHDIS AR B IEMBC FZ LLCIR L&
WAR WIIMHDEFEEEBENERZ — B
EEENERNEZWEE -

BEMHDER ZZ—NEFFRELEE BF
A AR EIMyHD IR IR FE R IB H O E RIS R EK -
RZE-—NFRZTZZZEF+ZA=+T—H XK
B B R AR IR B 15 HE (R ¥ 483,500,000 3 7T (46
E 727,332,000 L) ©

EXUBEBREIENBAR BEQ

ﬁ&A%ﬁ¥
REE-Z-TE+-_A=+-ALFE F%
ﬂﬁ&ﬁik%%&ﬁ%W%An g A7)
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DELISTING AND REPURCHASE OF TDRS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 9 April 2020,
15 April 2020, 29 April 2020, 5 May 2020, 4 August 2020, 10 August 2020 and
22 October 2020 (the “TDR Announcements”) in relation to, among other
things, the delisting of TDRs of the Company as requested by the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Unless otherwise specified herein, capitalised terms used herein
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the TDR Announcements.

As disclosed in the TDR Announcements, the Company received a notice
from the Taiwan Stock Exchange on 5 May 2020, whereby the Taiwan Stock
Exchange required the TDRs to be delisted with effect from 15 June 2020
pursuant to the relevant rules of the Taiwan Stock Exchange as the equity
attributable to the owners of the Company fell below one-third of the sum
of the share capital and the share premium of the Company as set out in the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 and its
conversion report prepared under the IFRSs recognised by the FSC, which was
determined pursuant to the relevant rules of the Taiwan Stock Exchange and
published as an overseas regulatory announcement of the Company on 29
April 2020. As such, the last trading day of the TDRs had fallen on 12 June 2020.

As at 3 August 2020 (being the last date for TDR Holders to submit their
requests for the Company to repurchase their TDRs), there were 97,748,625
units of TDR that were required to be repurchased by the Company, which
constitute approximately 2.98% of the number of issued Shares as at the
even date. The TDRs so requested to be repurchased by the Company had
been surrendered to the Depositary Agent for cancellation. The total amount
involved to repurchase the TDRs is approximately NT$26,490,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$6,996,000) (which is calculated by multiplying the
total number of TDRs required to be repurchased by the Company with the
Repurchase Price of NT$0.271) has already been paid by the Company to the
Depositary Agent.

The underlying Shares representing such 97,748,625 units of repurchased
TDRs were transferred to the Company on 8 October 2020 by the Hong Kong
custodian and they were cancelled accordingly by the Company's share
registrar on 22 October 2020.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Cont/nued}'

The table below sets out a summary of the shareholding structure of the
Company (i) immediately before the completion of the TDR Repurchase, and (ii)

immediately after the completion of the TDR Repurchase:

FEHMENERE

Immediately before the
completion of TDR Repurchase
EEEEFERIOBEAAN

Approximate
No. of % of the total

= HT ‘E-Ei %) *ﬁ (4&)

TREJARBNEEEEFTRILB KA
() EREEETFT/ERRE BT R AR AR E

Immediately after the
completion of TDR Repurchase
EREEFTRIOBITRE

Approximate
No. of % of the total

Shares held issued Shares Shares held issued Shares

HEBRTRAG HERTRS

Shareholders KR B EE BEWN% FEROHE BB %

First Steamship Company Limited % fiii i% 12 & IR A 7] 950,859,347 28.14% 950,859,347 28.98%
(Note 1) (¥ 3£ 1)

Metroasset Investments Metroasset Investments 507,188,592 15.01% 507,188,592 15.46%
Limited Limited (Note 2) (Bt 3£ 2)

Public shareholders N1 8 1,920,777,396 56.85% 1,823,028,771 55.56%

Total B 3,378,825,335 100.00% 3,281,076,710 100.00%

Notes: Bt 5 -

1. First Steamship Company Limited is interested in 950,859,347 Shares through First Mariner 1. mM ARG ERRD G ERE2EMN B 2 §First Mariner
Holding Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary, which holds 833,000,000 Shares and Grand Citi Holding Limited & H 3F 2 & K B 2 & Grand Citi Limited %
Limited, its non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 117,859,347 Shares. 950,859,347 % A% 17 7 % A # % + E R First Mariner Holding

Limited ¥ 75 833,000,000 4% f% 3 - 1 Grand Citi Limited % &
117,859,347 A& A& 15 ©
2. These Shares are held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 45.09% and 43.38% of the issued 2. % % %19 B3 Metroasset Investments Limited # 4 Tl Metroasset

share capital of which are beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (an executive Director
of the Company) and Ms. Chen Mei Huei (spouse of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin) respectively.

R E (KR

Investments Limited £ 45.09% K 43.38% &, 2 17 % 748 2 Bl A 4

AZHTER)RREB LT OHRESE

ECRB)ERER

200FH/BETERZERERAT 15
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SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 6
August 2020, 10 August 2020 and 31 August 2020 (the “Subscription
Announcements”). Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalised terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Subscription
Announcements. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement entered into
between the Company as an issuer and the Subscriber dated 6 August
2020, and the Supplemental Agreement dated 10 August 2020 entered into
between the Company, the Subscriber and the New Subscriber, the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the New Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 100,000,000 Subscription Shares.

The total number of 100,000,000 Subscription Shares (of an aggregate nominal
value of HK$10,000,000) represented (i) approximately 3.05% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the Subscription Agreement;
and (ii) approximately 2.96% of the issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the issue of the Subscription Shares (assuming that there is
no change in the issued share capital of the Company from the date of the
Subscription Agreement and up to the Completion). The Subscription Shares
were issued under the General Mandate and the issue of the Subscription
Shares were not subject to the approval by the Shareholders. The Subscription
Shares, ranked pari passu among themselves and with the Shares in issue on
the date of allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares.

The gross proceeds of the Subscription is HK$10,000,000 and the net proceeds
of the Subscription, after deduction of expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$9,800,000 (representing a net issue price of approximately HK$0.098 per
Subscription Share), of which HK$7,000,000 was used to replenish liquidity of
the Company and the rest of HK$2,800,000 was used as general working capital
of the Group, in accordance with what has been disclosed in the Subscription

Announcements.
The New Subscriber, Mr. Tai Kwok Kei, a third party independent of the

Company and its connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) is a
resident of Hong Kong and is mainly engaged in investment business.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY
EHHME

The Subscription Price of HK$0.10 per Subscription Share represented:

a premium of approximately 40.85% to the closing price of HK$0.071
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the last trading day
immediately prior to the date of the Supplemental Agreement (i.e. 7
August 2020) (the “Last Trading Day");

ii. a premium of approximately 30.89% to the average closing price of
approximately HK$0.0764 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the last five consecutive trading days up to and including the Last
Trading Day; and

ii.  apremium of approximately 44.72% to the average closing price of
approximately HK$0.0691 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the last ten consecutive trading days up to and including the Last
Trading Day.

The Directors consider that the Subscription represents an opportunity to raise
additional funding for the Company to replenish liquidity of the Company
that was decreased due to its TDR Repurchase and will strengthen the Group's
financial position, and enlarge shareholders’ base of the Company which
may in turn enhance the liquidity of the Shares, and provide working capital
to the Group to meet any financial obligations of the Group without any
interest burden, within a relatively shorter time frame and at lower costs when
compared with other means of fundraising.

All conditions precedent of the Subscription have been fulfilled and the
Completion took place on 31 August 2020. 100,000,000 Subscription Shares
were allotted and issued to the New Subscriber at the Subscription Price
of HKS$0.1 pursuant to the Subscription Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreement.
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REVENUE

Revenue from continuing operations for the year ended 31 December

2020 was approximately HK$863.6 million, representing a decline of 19.33%
compared with HK$1,070.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
decrease in revenue was mainly due to the outbreak of the Pandemic and
the lockdown of certain cities in the North America and South Asia, which
postponed the delivery of the products of the Group to its customers.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Loss attributable to owners of the Company from continuing and discontinued
operations was approximately HK$12.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 representing a decrease of 96.01%, compared with approximately
HKS$315.5 million for year ended 31 December 2019

LOSS PER SHARE

Calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of 3,294,556,472 (2019: 3,278,825,335) ordinary shares in
issue during the year. Basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations was HK0.4 cents for 2020, as compared with HK9.6 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$29.8 million, compared to approximately HK$36.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease in finance costs was mainly
due to the decrease in banks and other borrowings during the year of 2020.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$3.1
million (2019: approximately HK$5.5 million).
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TRADE RECEIVABLES FEWE 5 R
2020 2019
—B-%F —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at 1 January R—A—BN&E&H 207,495 287,022
Balance at 31 December R+ ZR=+—HH&R 122,505 207,495
Average balance 19 4 e 165,000 247,259
Revenue for the year ended 31 December* BHE+-_A=+—BLEFEmkz" 863,582 1,068,365
Average turnover days S EE K 70 84

*

Excluded sales to an associate

As at 31 December 2020, the trade receivables of the Group, net of allowance
of doubtful debts was approximately HK$122.5 million (31 December 2019
HK$207.5 million). The trade receivables turnover days was within the average
credit period of 60 days to 120 days to the customers of the Group.

Y TeRn-MBERANE

E’\‘quii‘f’ A=+—H A&EENEWKE
BRI RER B 12 4051225000008 L (ZF
—h¢+—ﬂi+—aawmmm%ﬁwﬁw
BoEFNBEREBRGETAEERTFP T
EEHOREI120KANA °

TRADE PAYABLES ENE SR
2020 2019
—F=%FF T NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Balance at 1 January R—HA—BN&&H 302,048 385,904
Balance at 31 December Rt-A=1+—BH&ER 208,095 302,048
Average balance F1 4 255,072 343,976
Costs of sale for the year ended 31 December HE+TZ-A=T—HLEFEMNHEEXNR 744,716 890,325
Average turnover days EEE K 125 141

As at 31 December 2020, the trade payables of the Group was approximately
HK$208.1 million (31 December 2019: HK$302.0 million). The decrease in trade
payables turnover days was due to the improvement of Group’s liquidity and
ability to settle payables to suppliers.
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NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Calculation of net asset value per share was based on the net asset value of the
Group of HK$53.5 million (2019: HK$62.3 million) and 3,281,076,710 ordinary
shares issued at 31 December 2020 (2019: 3,278,825,335 ordinary shares). Net
asset value per share at 31 December 2020 was HK$0.02 (2019: HK$0.02).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, an overall cash and cash equivalent of the Group
was HK$88.9 million (2019: HK$66.8 million). The Group managed its capital
structure and liquidity to finance its operations by using bank and other
borrowings and funds generated from operations.

The Group's current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was 0.66
at 31 December 2020 (2019: 0.76).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total borrowings were approximately
HKS$421.2 million (2019: HK$464.9 million), out of which HK$387.0 million (2019:
HK$445.6 million) were due within one year and the rest of HK$34.2 million
(2019: HKS$19.3 million) were due over one year. Approximately 86% of the
Group's bank and other borrowings were in US dollars and the rest of them
were in Renminbi (‘RMB”), Euro and New Taiwan dollars. The effective interest
rates on the Group's variable interest rate bank and other borrowings ranged
from 0.81% to 10% per annum. The gearing ratio (total borrowings over total
assets of the Group) increased from 45.02% at 31 December 2019 to 46.99% at
31 December 2020.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s general banking facilities included bank
loans and other borrowings which were secured by the following assets of the
Group: (i) bank deposits of HK$4.0 million; (i) property, plant and equipment
with a carrying value of HK$22.4 million; (iii) investment properties of HK$205.4
million; (iv) trade receivables of HK$45.8 million; (v) inventories of HK$31.4
million; and (vi) pledge of the Company’s interests in Pro Brand Technology,

Inc.
*  Foridentification purpose only
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 646 (2019: 651) full-
time employees. Employees are remunerated according to their performance
and responsibilities. Employees of the Group receive training depending on
their scope of work, especially those training relating to workplace health and
safety.

The Directors and senior management of the Company receive compensation
in the form of salaries, benefits in kind and/or discretionary bonuses relating to
the performance of the Group. The Company regularly reviews and determines
the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors and senior
management.

A share option scheme was adopted and approved by Shareholders on 17
March 2005 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to selected participants, including but not limited to
directors or employees, for their contributions to the Group. The Share Option
Scheme has expired on 16 March 2015 and all outstanding share options were
lapsed on 22 October 2020. The Company has not adopted a new option
scheme during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no significant investments held as at 31 December 2020 nor were
there other plans for material investments on capital assets as at the date of
this report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's sales and purchases were denominated mainly in US$S and RMB.
The Group was exposed to certain foreign currency exchange risks but it
does not expect future currency fluctuations to cause material operation
difficulties on the ground that the recent pressure from appreciation of RMB
is manageable. However, management continuously assesses the foreign
exchange risks, with an aim to minimise the impact of foreign exchange
fluctuations on business operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).
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ARBITRATION

On 29 September 2011, the Group entered into a conditional agreement (the

“Conditional Agreement”) with an independent individual third party (the
“Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT FZE (“Technosat’,
a company incorporated in Dubai, which was wholly owned by the Original
Shareholder), to subscribe for 375 new shares in Technosat at a cash
consideration of US$7,500,000 (equivalent to HK$58,170,000), amounting to
15% of Technosat's enlarged capital. Technosat is set up to be engaged in
operation of digital TV and radio platform, pay TV channel, and sales and supply
of TV set top boxes.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares in Technosat which
was fully provided for impairment in the financial year ended 30 June 2012.
Pursuant to the terms of the Conditional Agreement, the Group is required to
pay a further sum of US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15%
equity interest in Technosat. The subscription is not yet completed up to the
date of approval of this report as the conditions precedent of the subscription
of new shares in Technosat including the consent and approval by government
authority in Dubai have not been fulfilled.

Despite the Group's repeated request for information, there has been
no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder or Technosat
("Counterparties”) regarding the current status and the procurement of
obtaining government approval from the government authority in Dubai. The
Group has engaged legal counsel to act for the Group and started dispute
resolution proceedings against the Original Shareholder and Technosat.

On 21 January 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat served a notice to the Group's legal counsel for a claim on the
further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15%
equity interest in Technosat. The Group's legal counsel has replied on behalf
of the Group on 11 February 2013 in response to the claim of the Original
Shareholder and Technosat defending the claim as the Directors consider such
claim invalid, as the conditions precedent of the subscription of new shares in
Technosat had not been fulfilled and constituted a breach of the Conditional

Agreement.
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The Group's legal counsel had repeatedly requested the Original Shareholder

and Technosat to commence the next step of the mediation process, but
there has been no satisfactory response from the legal counsel of the Original
Shareholder and Technosat up to the deadline set by August 2014. In March
2020, as confirmed by the Group's legal counsel for this arbitration, no
communication has been received or sent by either party since August 2014.

As at the date of approval of this report, save as disclosed above, there was no
update on the arbitration.
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The Group continues to improve its corporate governance practices,

emphasizing the attainment and maintenance of a quality Board, sound risk
management and internal controls, and high transparency and accountability
to the Shareholders. The Board and the management are committed to
the principles of good corporate governance consistent with prudent
management and enhancement of shareholder value. The Board believes that
good corporate governance will bring long-term benefits to the Shareholders
and the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has applied the principles
and has complied with the code provisions (“Code Provision(s)") of the
Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate Governance Code”) as contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviation with following reason.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings.

Mr. Kuo Jen Hao, a non-executive Director, was unable to attend the annual

general meeting of the Company ("AGM”) held on 29 June 2020 due to his
other engagements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Contmued)'

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. After specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard regarding securities transactions set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2020, the Board consists of two executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin and Mr. Chen Wei Chun (chief financial officer), one non-
executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuo Jen Hao and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (chairman), Mr. Li Chak Hung
and Mr. Wu Chia Ming.

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and the chief executive officer of pay TV and
broadband service business division of the Group. Save as disclosed above,
none of the other Directors has any financial, business, family or other material
relationship with any of the other Directors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
The independent non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre
for their views to carry weight. The functions of the independent non-executive
Directors include:

bringing an independent view and judgment at Board meetings;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

serving on board committees if invited; and

scrutinizing the Company's performance and monitoring performance

reporting.
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The independent non-executive Directors have made a positive contribution
to the development of the Company’s strategies and policies through
independent, constructive and informed comments. They benefit the Board
and the Board committees by their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation at the
meetings of the Board and the Board committees.

Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has been
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has made an annual written confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all the independent non-executive Directors have met the
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year and are
independent.

Roles and Functions of the Board and the Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company;
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company's
affairs. The Board is fully responsible for the formulation of business policies and
strategies in relation to the business operation of the Group, including but not
limited to dividend policy and risk management strategies. The management
is delegated with the authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group.

Appointment, Continuation of Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

All the executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company while the non-executive Director and all the independent non-
executive Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company with a specific term of three years, setting out key terms and
conditions of their appointments. All Directors are subject to retirement in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”).
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According to the Bye-Laws, (i) Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election; and (i) at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not greater than one- third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years.

Board Meetings

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have made active
contribution to the affairs of the Group and 8 Board meetings were held
to, among others, discuss the matters, relating to the delisting of Taiwan
depositary receipts (“TDR"), discuss the repurchase of TDR matters, consider
and resolve the subscription of new shares, adopt the investment and
acquisition policy and climate change policy, update on current credit status
of My HD Media FZ-LLC, consider and approve the proposal to provide risk
management and internal audit services for year 2020, review and approve the
environmental, social and governance report of year 2019, report the change
of the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, and review and
approve the interim results and annual results of the Group.

In addition to the regular Board meetings, the chairman met with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year.
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Attendance Record of Directors

The attendance record of Directors at the meetings of the Board, the Board
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committees and the Shareholders held during the year ended 31 December EHREEgees EELEgeZMREXRE
2020 is set out below: B FE IR
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meetings
ES293 BENZE093 RAZE9EE FHzaees BREXE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetingsheld  meetingsheld  meetingsheld  meetingsheld  meetings held
HEEEN HEEEN HEEEN HEEEN HEEEN
WY/ BT RY /BT RY /BT RY /BT RY /BT
Name of Directors EENE =E LR RN ERNRE ERNRE BRNRE
Executive Directors BTE
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin /,\H%%E 8/8 N/A i N/A i N/A i A 11
Mr. Chen Wei Chun BRiE#EE 8/8 N/AT i NATE R N/ATR & A 1/1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao BAFEE 5/8 N/AR 8 N/ATR & A N/ATR & A 01
Independent Non-Executive Directors B Y ¥ HTEE
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman) Bk (TE) 8/8 6/6 1/1 22 1/1
Mr. Li Chak Hung FEERE 8/8 6/6 11 22 11
Mr. Wu Chia Ming RERALE 8/8 6/6 11 22 11
Access to Information ERFE A

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may
have affected the Group’s business, including those changes to relevant rules
and regulations and are able to make further enquiries when necessary. The
Board has also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional

advice in performing their Directors’ duties at the Company’s expense.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Contmued)'

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against the Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
is reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional Development

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company organized two training
sessions for the Directors on 13 October 2020 and 20 October 2020. Such
training topics covered the update on Hong Kong Listing Rules, Corporate
Governance and anti-corruption and directors’ ethics. The Company also
updated the Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision on
directors’ training. The Company has received from each of the Directors his
confirmation on taking continuous professional training. A summary of the
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as

follows:
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Reading Materials/
Journals and/or
Attending in-house
training session

or seminars
SHEER, A
%2 A &6
Name of Directors BEEHS EIREIWAS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin AR S A v
Mr. Chen Wei Chun PR1E 8950 & Vv
Non-Executive Director kETES
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao LAZITE v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman) Bl e e & (FE) Vv
Mr. Li Chak Hung TR E v
Mr. Wu Chia Ming RERLE v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code Provision A.2.1 states that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer are separate to reinforce independence, accountability and
responsibility. Mr. Lau Yau Cheung, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible
for the formulation of development strategies, investment decision making,
overall project planning at the Group level, leading the Board and ensuring
that the Board functions properly and effectively, whilst Mr. Hung Tsung Chin,
the chief executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company which are
engaged in manufacturing and trading of the media entertainment platform
related products, other multimedia products and satellite TV equipment and
antenna products (“Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products
Business Division”) is responsible for the management of the daily operation
and general administration of the Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic
Products Business Division.

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, the chief executive officer of pay TV and broadband service
business division, is responsible for the overall management of the Group
including all overseas offices.

Board Committees

The Board has established (i) the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”);
(i) the remuneration committee (the "Remuneration Committee”); and (iii)
the nomination committee ("Nomination Committee”), with specific written
terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The latest versions of the terms of reference of the Board committees are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice and other assistance in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Cont/nlued)_

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 17 March 2005 with written terms of
reference. The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee was further
updated on 30 March 2012 and 1 June 2018. All the members of the Audit
Committee are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chak
Hung, Mr. Lau Yau Cheung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming. Mr. Li Chak Hung, who
has appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required under the
Listing Rules, was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the auditor of the
Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
(i) being primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor; (i) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards; (iii) developing and implementing a policy on engaging
an external auditor to supply non-audit services; (iv) monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements and the annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, before
submission of the financial statements and reports to the Board, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; (v) reviewing the
Company’s financial control, risk management and internal control systems;
and (vi) discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to establish
effective systems.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held 6 meetings
and has, among others, reviewed the risk management policy, annual audit
planning, annual results, interim review planning, interim results and the
internal control review conducted by an external professional consultant and
discussed the matters relating to the legal proceeding involving a subsidiary in
India which, after consulting the Company’s legal counsel in India and taking
into account factors including the possible amount involved in the case, the
Audit Committee and the Company are of the view that the proceeding is
immaterial to the Group.

The attendance record of each Audit Committee member for the year has
been set out on page 28 of this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 17 March 2005 with written
terms of reference. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
June 2018. All the
members of the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive

Committee was further updated on 30 March 2012 and 1

Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (chairman), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr.
Wu Chia Ming.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, among other
things, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; (iii) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting and has, among others, (i) reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board; and (ii) assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to enhance the quality of
its performance. Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
Nomination Committee will assess the merit and contribution that any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
director against the objective and appropriate criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the criteria and
process on the nomination and appointment of directors.
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In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate as a member of the Board,
the Nomination Committee would follow the nomination policy and consider
factors including:

(@)  personal ethics, reputation and integrity;

(b)  professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s businesses and corporate development and
strategy;

(¢ commitment in respect of sufficient time for the proper discharge
of the duties of a director, including devoting adequate time for the
preparation and participation in meetings, training and other Board or
Company associated activities;

(d) independent non-executive director candidates must satisfy the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Director candidate shall be independent in character and
judgement and be able to represent and act in the best interests of the
Shareholders; and

(e)  any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee should make recommendation
to the Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of Director at the
general meeting.

The attendance record of each Nomination Committee member for the year
has been set out on page 28 of this annual report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 17 March 2005 with written
terms of reference. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
June 2018. All the
members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive

Committee was further updated on 30 March 2012 and 1

Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Chia Ming (chairman), Mr. Lau Yau Cheung and Mr. Li
Chak Hung.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (i) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and
(iii) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee held
2 meetings to review the existing remuneration packages of the Directors
and the key terms and conditions of the service agreements and letters of
appointment. The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee
members for the year has been set out on page 28 of this annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than the
Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
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Number of individuals

Remuneration band ¥ B & AE
HK$0-HK$ 1,000,000 0 Z 1,000,000 7T 5
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 2

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Cont/nue

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES
The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

(@)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

(b)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c)  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of ethic and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has approved and adopted the following new or
updated policies:

(i) Nomination Policy;

(i) Investment and Acquisition Policy; and

(i)~ Climate Change Policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board has appointed Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie ("“Ms. Tung”) as the
company secretary of the Company with effect from 30 November 2019. Ms.
Tung has been nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited
("Boardroom”) under an engagement letter made between the Company
and Boardroom. The primary person at the Company with whom Ms. Tung
has been contacting is Mr. Chung Ming Fai, the project manager, in relation to
corporate secretarial matters. Ms. Tung has confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). The Company aims to deliver reasonable and sustainable returns
to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board takes into account, inter alia:

(i) the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

(i) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

(i) the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

(iv)  the Group's liquidity position;

(v)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal and external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company;

(vi)  the Shareholders' and the investors' expectation;

(vii)  the industry’s norm; and

(viii) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

However, there is no assurance that dividends will be proposed or declared in
any particular amount for any given period.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed and changes will be adopted, if

applicable, from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the Dividend

Policy.
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CORPORAﬂEGOVERNANCEREWDRTKbmeaV-

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board endeavours to present to the Shareholders a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the management
for financial reporting purpose are prudent and reasonable.

Save as disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements, the adoption of relevant
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that became
effective during the year has no significant impact on the Group's results of
operation and financial position.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND ITS REMUNERATION

The external auditor performs independent audit of the annual consolidated
financial statements prepared by the management. BDO Limited (“BDQ") has
been engaged as the Company’s external auditor.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees charged to the financial
statements of the Group in respect of BDO's statutory audit and other services
amounted to approximately HK$1,630,000 and HK$300,000 respectively. The
fees of recurring audit services of subsidiaries performed by other auditors and
the fees of provision of other services were approximately HK$2,156,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control and risk management which is designed and
operated to provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s business
objectives in the following areas are achieved:

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, including the achievement of
performance and operating targets and the safeguarding of assets by
the management;

Reliability of financial and operating information provided by the
management, including management accounts and statutory financial

reports; and

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations by each business unit.
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The Company has put and continues to place considerable emphasis on
maintaining and enhancing the effectiveness of its system of internal control.
Under the Company’s internal control framework, risk management and
internal control are primarily the collective responsibility of every manager and
employee. For consistent compliance by every person in the Company, the
following key control policies and measures are implemented in the everyday
activities, which are summarized below:

1. Overall control environment, including code of ethics governing staff
conduct within the Group, and whistle blowing policy;

2. Management of financial and non-financial risks, including at the
company level the risk management functions of the Board; at the
business unit level management’s ongoing monitoring of operational
and other risks;

3 Major controls systems and processes, including budgetary and cost
controls, financial reporting systems and processes for timely and quality
management reporting, and corporate policies and procedures for
approvals, reviews and segregation of duties in everyday activities;

4. In relation to ongoing compliance monitoring and internal control
reviews, the external professional consultant directly reports to the
Audit Committee and is engaged to conduct independent reviews
on the internal control system and provides recommendations on risk
management of the Group; and

5. The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company's internal controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management. It has also considered the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
accounting and financial reporting functions.
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In conducting these reviews, the Audit Committee and the management have
reviewed the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting
and financial reporting functions. The main conclusions are that overall
speaking:

the resources in the accounting and finance functions are
adequate; and

the qualifications and experience of the staff of the accounting
and finance functions are satisfactory.

During the year, the external professional consultant has reviewed the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group, which include financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

An internal control and risk management system, no matter how well designed
and operated, is to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives. The design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls
must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. In addition,
the design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events.
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Inside Information Policy

An inside information policy is in place which contains guidelines for the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure that inside information of the
Group can be promptly identified, assessed and disseminated to the public in
a consistent and timely manner in accordance with the requirements under
the Listing Rules. The Company must disclose inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable, unless the “safe harbours” provisions under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) apply. The Board shall take
reasonable precautions in preserving the confidentiality of inside information
and the relevant announcement before publication.

The Board and the management will continue to look into opportunities for
further enhancing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
in the years ahead.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group regards internal audit as an important part of the Board and Audit
Committee’s oversight function. The principal objective of internal audit, which
is set out in an internal audit charter, is to provide the Board and management
with useful information and recommendations on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

Authority and Accountability

Under the internal audit charter endorsed by the Audit Committee, the internal
audit function is authorized by the Board to have access to all records, people
and physical properties relevant to the performance of internal audit. The
external professional consultant has unrestricted access to the chairman of the
Audit Committee and reports directly to the Audit Committee for direction
and accountability. This reporting manner enables the external professional
consultant to provide an objective assurance to the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Cont/nlued)_

Duties

The duties of the external professional consultant are described in the
engagement letter entered into between the Company and the external
professional consultant. It mainly stipulates that (a) internal audits are
conducted with independence, objectivity and due professional care in
compliance with the relevant standards, guidelines, and the code of ethics; (b)
systems established are evaluated to ensure compliance with those policies,
plans, procedures, law and regulations which could have a significant impact
on the Group; (c) the approved internal audit plan is implemented, including
any other special tasks or projects requested by the Audit Committee; and
(d) the Audit Committee is updated with key audit initiatives and progress of
completion of the approved internal audit plan, including any change.

All of the above described duties may be adjusted depending on the resources
available for internal audit function. The management of the Group has the
responsibility to keep reviewing the resources’ availability for internal audit

function.

INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES AND MAJOR WORK
DONE IN 2020

The Group has engaged an external professional consultant to review and
assess the risk management and internal control system of the Group. During
the year under review, the external professional consultant has assessed (i) fixed
assets management cycle; (i) capital, investment and financial management
cycle; (iii) financial reporting and disclosure cycle; and (iv) tax management
cycle of major operating subsidiaries of the Group. The external professional
consultant submitted a review report with the relevant recommendations
to the Audit Committee and the Board for implementation. The Group and
the Audit Committee will keep reviewing the resources’ availability for the
implementation of internal control function and risk management and will
regulate the activities for both.

The Board and the Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of our accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting staff, and their training programs and budget, are
reasonably implemented and the Group has complied with provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code regarding risk management and internal control
systems in general for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of risks when conducting its business
operations globally. The Board assists the Group in anticipating its risk
exposure, putting controls in place to counter threats, and pursuing its set
objectives. After the Board has identified the top risks of the Group, the
Directors will assess how much risk the Board is faced with through the Group's
operation and governance processes.

Based on the risk profile of each business unit, and taking into account the
management control and corporate oversight at Group level, the Audit
Committee and the external professional consultant would map out a risk-
based internal audit plan each year. The Company has separated its risks into
two levels:

(1) Enterprise risk level which is mainly externally driven and will be
mitigated by solution comes from management discussion; and

(2)  Operating risk level which is mainly internally driven and will be
mitigated by building up risk control matrixes for tests of controls and
remediation of deficiencies identified.

The following are the current top and emerging risks of the Group.

Commercial Risk

Commercial risk refers to potential losses arising from inadequate gross
margins and/or non-performance of trading partners or counterparties in the
regions that the Group is operating. It is important to ensure that our trading
partners or counterparties are reliable, financially healthy and willing to comply
with sound commercial practice.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Contmued)'

Currently, the key commercial risks facing by the Group are international
economic conflicts. During the year, the PRC and the US are still engaged in
a trade war that each country continues to dispute tariffs placed on goods
traded between them. As some of the major customers of the Group are
located in the US and the major production facilities of the Group are located
in the PRC, the China-US trade war has some impact on the Group’s business
and operations. In order to mitigate the impact from the China-US trade war
and to avoid the tariffs imposed by the US on products originating from the
PRC, the Group has managed these commercial risks by:

(@)  strengthening its supply chain management, such as encouraging our
suppliers to establish new production facilities in Vietnam to cope with
the production orders of parts and accessories of our products;

(b)  relocating certain manufacturing workflows to India by establishing local
production facilities to diversify the production facilities of the Group;
and

(c)  working closely with the customers in the US to streamline the process
of products delivery and customs clearance.

Financial Risk

Currency risk

For bank borrowings, the functional currency of each operating entity is
generally matched with its liabilities. As such, the management does not
expect any significant foreign currency risk associated with the Group's
borrowings.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages and maintains a level of operating cash flows deemed to
be adequate by the management to finance the Group’s daily operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Environmental Risk

The Group may expose to potential liabilities to third parties due to pollution
and non-compliance with environmental regulations and requirements.
At present, the Group has outsourced most of its manufacturing process
to suppliers and only maintains an assembly line in Zhongshan, the PRC.
The exposure to environmental risk is mitigated by development of close
relationships with suppliers to ensure that all the materials used in productions
are met with environmental standards required by customers.
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Information Risk

The Group has subsidiaries in different locations around the world. Some
overseas subsidiaries used different accounting and information systems to
record their daily operations and to prepare the financial statements. The
Group may not be able to obtain real time information from certain subsidiaries
for the purpose of prompt business decision making. The Group manages
the information risk by gradually using the same accounting and information
system for its major operating subsidiaries to ensure the quality and accuracy
of the financial information of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Group has adopted internal procedures to monitor the Group’s compliance
risk to ensure that the Group is complied with the laws and regulations where
applicable. Besides, the Group engages an external professional consultant
to review the Group's corporate governance and legal advisers to update the
Group about the latest development in the regulatory environment.

The Board oversees the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of the effectiveness of the
Company's and its subsidiaries’ risk management and internal control systems
has been conducted annually and the systems are considered to be effective
and adequate.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

In March 2020, the Stock Exchange published a guide for board and directors
on the leadership role and accountability in the environmental, social and
governance ("ESG"). In responding to the importance of the ESG structure
and the recommendations in the guide published by the Stock Exchange,
the Group has commissioned an external professional consultant to assist the
Board in identifying, evaluating and managing important ESG issues during
the year, to effectively implement ESG strategies and measures, and manage
existing and potential risks associated with ESG.

The Board is fully responsible for the oversight of the Group’s sustainability
issues. The Board has formulated and improved the current policies and
codes involving ESG issues applicable to the entire Group such as adoption
of the climate change policy, and comprehensively improved the Group's
corporate governance in areas such as environmental protection, operational

management, employment system and community investment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Contmued)'

During the year, the Board also reviewed the sufficiency of resources of the
governance team on ESG matters. Through continuous ESG training, the
Board members are well aware of the latest regulatory requirements on ESG
reporting. Furthermore, the Board members attended the training on corporate

anti-corruption.

In 2020, the Group collected the opinions from stakeholders by a questionnaire
and a materiality assessment was conducted by an external professional
consultant to identify the sustainability issues that are most relevant to the
Group's business and stakeholders, and assist the Board to prioritise ESG
matters and manage sustainability strategy.

Looking ahead, the Group will further improve management strategies and
measures of different ESG aspects, including strengthening the management
of social and environmental risks in the supply chain, achieving corporate
sustainability, and contributing to society and the environment.

Further discussions of the aforesaid areas are covered by a separate
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2020” which will be published
within five months after the financial year-end.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which were
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in annual reports, interim
reports and other financial disclosures as required by the Listing Rules.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor's report on pages 73 to 80 of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a Shareholders’ communication policy and
the Board shall review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. The
Company communicates with the Shareholders mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of AGM and special general meeting (“SGM"), if any, which
may be convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities for the
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required
under the Listing Rules; and (iii) the availability of latest information of the
Group on the Company'’s website.

General Meetings with Shareholders

Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s website and
communicate with the Company by mail, telephone, fax and email, details of
which are made available on the Company's website.

Separate resolutions were proposed at the general meetings for such
substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring Directors. The Company’s
notice to Shareholders for the 2020 AGM was sent to the Shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman/members of the Board
committees and the external auditor were available at the 2020 AGM to
answer questions from the Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company’s
then Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited (“Branch Share Registrar”), the representative of the Branch
Share Registrar had explained the procedures for conducting a poll during the
2020 AGM. The poll results was posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

During the year, one general meeting was held. The 2020 AGM was held on

29 June 2020 and the voting was conducted by way of poll. The attendance
records of the Directors are set out on page 28.
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Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to all interested parties as widely and as timely as possible. The Company
maintains a corporate website at http://www.sandmartin.com.hk where
important information about the Company’s activities and corporate matters
such as annual reports, interim reports, circulars and announcements are
available for review by the Shareholders and other stakeholders.

When publications are made through the Stock Exchange, the same
information will be made available on the website of the Company.

During the year, the Company issued various announcements in respect of
financial and inside information, which can be viewed on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Investor Relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those with
a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In addition, questions
received from the general public and individual Shareholders are answered
promptly. In all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed selectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code:

Convening an SGM and putting forward proposals at such meeting.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the Bye-Laws,
Shareholder(s) as at the date of deposit of the requisition holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring an SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition
(i) must state the purposes of the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s registered office at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda (the “Registered Office”)
or head office in Hong Kong at Unit 516, 5th Floor, Peninsula Centre, 67 Mody
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong for attention of the Board or
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), and
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an SGM by serving
sufficient notice to all the Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has
been verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, an SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of a valid
requisition proceed duly to convene an SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
themselves convene an SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In
addition, such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by the Board.
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Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number of the
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less than 100
Shareholders, can at the expense of the requisitionists request the Company
in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders entitled
to have notice of any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The
requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses and not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director
The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available for viewing on the Company's website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholding to the
Hong Kong branch share registrar. Other enquiries from the Shareholders may
be put forward to the Board through the Company Secretary who will direct
the enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company
Secretary are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited
Unit 516, 5th Floor, Peninsula Centre

67 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Email: ir@sandmartin.com.hk
Tel No: +852 2587 7798
Fax No: +852 2587 7728

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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DIRECTORS
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung, aged 60

Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Board, Chairman of
Nomination Committee
Member of each of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

is an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 7 August
2017, and was appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 18
August 2017. He is currently the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Lau holds a bachelor's degree in commerce from the University of Toronto
in Canada. He has over 26 years of experience in business strategies and
corporate finance and 6 years of experience in securities trading business. Mr.
Lau has served in various senior management positions with both private and
public companies in Hong Kong and overseas. From 1999 to present, he serves
as the managing director of BH Capitalink Development Limited. Mr. Lau is
currently an independent non- executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 102).

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, aged 59
Executive Director, Authorised Representative

is the founder of the Group, which was founded in November 1989. He was
the Chairman of the Board until 18 August 2017. Mr. Hung acts as an executive
Director and authorised representative of the Company. He is currently
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and the chief executive
officer of several subsidiaries of the Company which are engaged in the
Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products Business Division.

Mr. Hung has over 31 years of management experience in the electronics
manufacturing industry. He graduated from the National Chengchi University
in Taiwan, with a bachelor's degree in business administration. Mr. Hung also
completed the executives programme from the Graduate School of Business
Administration, National Chengchi University.

He is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, the director of several subsidiaries

of the Company and the chief executive officer of the pay TV and broadband
service business division.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Con

tinuea

EENERERBZRERE )

Mr. Chen Wei Chun, aged 44
Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer

joined the Group in May 2015 and was appointed as an executive Director
and chief financial officer of the Company on 28 August 2015 and 30
November 2017 respectively. He is also the director and the chief financial
officer of Pro Brand Technology, Inc., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from National Chengchi University and Shih
Chien University with a master's degree in finance and a master’s degree in
business administration respectively. He is well experienced in accounting
and finance industries. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was the head of
finance department of TTY Biopharm Company Limited and head of finance
department of KH.S. Musical Instrument Company Limited.

Mr. Kuo Jen Hao, aged 44
Non-Executive Director

was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on 18 August
2017. He graduated with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
from Aletheia University in Taiwan and holds a master's degree of business
administration from Pace University in 2003 in the US. Mr. Kuo is a certified
public accountant of the New Jersey State Board of Accountancy.

He has several years of work experience in investment advisory, financial
advisory and corporate finance at PricewaterhouseCoopers, Bank of America
Merrill Lynch and Private Equity Management Group and held various key
roles at several private and listed companies engaging in (i) the administrative
and corporate business; (i) corporate finance; and (iii) general management
in real estate development business, shipping business, retailing business
and logistics business. Mr. Kuo has a wealth of experience in business strategy
development and innovation management.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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He is the chairman and the general manager of First Steamship Company
Limited (“First Steamship”) (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation (“TWSE") (TWSE Stock Code: 2601) and is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and through its subsidiaries collectively holds 28.98% of
the issued share capital of the Company). Mr. Kuo is also a director and the
chairman of Grand Ocean Retail Group Limited (a company listed on the TWSE
(TWSE Stock Code: 5907) and is a subsidiary of First Steamship) and Taiwan
Environment Scientific Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Taipei Exchange)
(Taipei Exchange Stock Code: 8476). He is currently a non-executive director
of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1073). He is also a director of
several subsidiaries of the First Steamship including but not limited to Mariner
Finance Limited, Morton Securities Limited and First Steamship S.A. He has
served as a non-executive director and the chairman of the board of Summit
Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102) from 28 December 2017 to 26 April
2019. Mr. Kuo was a director of IRC Properties, Inc. (a company listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange) from July 2017 to May 2018.

Mr. Li Chak Hung, aged 56
Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of

each of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since 20 September 2016. He is
currently the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Li graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree of Business
Administration. He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow member of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Li has over 30 years' experience in accounting,
auditing, taxation and financial management. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of AsiaSec Properties Limited (Stock Code: 271), Summit
Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102) and Alpha Professional Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 948), all of which are companies whose shares are listed
on main board of the Stock Exchange. He resigned as an independent non-
executive director of DreamEast Group Limited (Stock Code: 593) with effect
from 20 December 2019.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEM
sEZENhEK

Mr. Wu Chia Ming, aged 52
Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of Remuneration Committee,
Member of each of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since 1 December 2014. He is
currently the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Wu has a
master's degree in business administration from the Institute of International
Business, National Chen-kung University and a bachelor's degree in electronic
engineering from Chung Yuan Christian University in Taiwan. He has nearly 26
years of experience in financial analysis and fund management. Currently, Mr.
Wu is the chairman of Fortune-Future Investment Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he was
a fund manager of KGI Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, aged 58

Director of several subsidiaries of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of pay TV
and broadband service business division

is a co-founder of the Group since 1989. She is currently a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and the chief executive officer of pay TV and
broadband service business division. Ms. Chen is responsible for the overall
management of the Group including all overseas offices. She has been actively
engaged in the sales and marketing development of the Group in Taiwan
and the international markets for more than 31 years and has particular focus
on new customers and new market development in recent years. Ms. Chen
graduated from Tamkang University in Taiwan with a dual bachelor's degree in
Spanish Literature and International Trade. She is the wife of Mr. Hung Tsung
Chin, an executive Director and an authorised representative of the Company.
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Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, aged 61
Director of several subsidiaries of the Company, Vice President of the Group, Chief
Technology Officer of the Group

joined the Group in January 2008 and is currently a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company, and the vice president and chief technology
officer of the Group. He is responsible for the global marketing strategy
and technical support of the Group. Mr. Fischer has more than 32 years of
experience in hardware and software development for consumer electronic
products in Europe and has been involved in Digital TV technologies since the
beginning of Digital Video Broadcasting ("DVB") Project in 1994. He graduated
as diploma degree engineer for automation technology and cybernetics from
the Technical University Leipzig in Germany.

Mr. Hsiao Yu Jung, aged 55
Deputy General Manager of the Group’s DVB Division

joined the Group in July 2002 and is currently the deputy general manager of
the Group’s DVB division. He is responsible for procurement, manufacturing
and development of the Group’s DVB products and supervision of the
Company's associate company in Nepal. Mr. Hsiao obtained a diploma in
mechanical design engineering from the National Formosa University in
Taiwan.

Mr. Su Jow Shi, aged 57
General Manager of the Group’s digital TV division

joined the Group in September 1995 and is currently the general manager
of the Group's digital TV division. He is responsible for the Group's digital TV
operations in South Asia region. Mr. Su graduated from the San Diego State
University where he earned a Master of Public Administration degree.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR I\/\ANAGEI\/\ENT (Cont/nued)'

Ms. Su Wan Ling (also known as Ms. Julia Swen), aged 55
Director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

has been working in the Group since 2007 and is currently a director of Pro
Brand Technology, Inc. a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. She
is responsible for promoting cable products, satellite and digital television
products in the market of the US. Ms. Su graduated from the University of
California, with a bachelor’'s degree in Biochemistry; a master's degree in
Environmental Science and a master’s degree of Business Administration. She
has over 26 years of experience in research of biotechnology field and business
management.

Mr. Sven Willig, aged 47
General Manager of Intelligent Digital Services GmbH (“IDS”)

has joined the Group in 2005 and is currently the general manager of IDS. He
has over 21 years' experience in the management and the technology sector,
working across design and engineering, operations, and international sales,
specialized in the DVB Pay-TV Industry, Internet of things (“loT") and Fiber to
The x ("FTTx"). He graduated from the University of Hamburg with a master’s
degree of Business Administration and educational background in engineering.

Mr. Sun Cheng-Pen, aged 52
Director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

has joined Pro Brand Technology, Inc,, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group since 2014, as a director and general manager of Asia Region of Pro
Brand Technology, Inc. and was redesignated as a special assistant to the
Chairman on 1 February 2021. He is in charge of all companies in Asia Region
of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.. Mr. Sun graduated from the National Taiwan
University with a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering. He has 27 years
of experience in overall technology development, management and sales of
high frequency and microwave-related fields and related businesses. Mr. Sun is
also a director of Wha Yu Industrial Company Limited, a company listed on the

TWSE (TWSE Stock Code: 3419).

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Mr. Huang Jung-Sen, aged 51
Director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

has joined Pro Brand Technology, Inc., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group since 2017 as a director and chief technology officer of Asia Region
and deputy general manager, and was promoted to general manager of Asia
Region on 1 February 2021. He is responsible for the entire proactive product
development and sales of LNBs in Asia Region of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.,
as well as product development and sales of the new product line, i.e. home
network. Mr. Huang graduated from the Yuan Ze University in Taiwan with a
master’s degree in electrical and communication engineering. He has 25 years
of experience in overall technology development, management and sales of
high frequency and microwave-related fields and related businesses.

Mr. Tsai Li Che, aged 42
General Manager of China Region, Sandmartin (Zhong Shan) Electronic Co., Ltd.*

joined the Group in December 2001 and is currently the general manager of
China Region of Sandmartin (Zhong Shan) Electronic Co., Ltd. He is responsible
for the operation of multimedia business in China region. Mr. Tsai graduated
from Murdoch University with a bachelor degree of information technology.
He has 20 years of experience in technology development and management
and the relevant sales business in the field of international trade of multimedia.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year ended 31
December 2020 by principal activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

on pages 81 to 82 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set

out as below:
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Section(s) in the annual report
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity
linked agreements were entered into during or subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2020 was the Company, any of
its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any distributable reserve
(2019: Nil).

Details of the movements in reserves during the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in page 85 and page 86 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

DONATIONS
The Group did not make any donation for the year ended 31 December 2020

(2019: Nil).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Contmued)'

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-Laws provide that every Director is entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses and damages which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto.

The Group has directors’ liability insurance in place throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31
December 2020 for the benefit of the Directors.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 236 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group's five largest customers amounted to approximately 49.3% of the
Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
were approximately 18.3% of the Group's total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group'’s five largest suppliers amounted to approximately 45.0% of the
total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
were approximately 17.9% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of the
Company) had any interests in the five largest customers and suppliers of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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LITIGATION
The details of the Group’'s litigations proceedings are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
Mr. Chen Wei Chun

Non-executive Director
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Li Chak Hung

Mr. Wu Chia Ming

In accordance with Bye-Laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Chen Wei
Chun and Mr. Kuo Jen Hao shall retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

No retiring Director proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has entered
into a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Contmluedf |

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, together
with those of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and Corporate Governance Report on page 34
respectively.

The emolument payable to the Directors (including salary and other benefits)
are recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the Board’s approval,
having regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director or his
or her connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) was considered to be interested
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year
ended 31 December 2020 is disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

The related party transactions did not constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRESS

On 17 March 2005, the Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by RZZEZERF=A++tH S ZKREHELTH
the then Shareholders. The Share Option Scheme was expired on 16 March MERETE - EBREFZ R —RFE=A8
2015. A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set out TREER - ZEREAEZEZERAEEHT

as follows: m
(i) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme (i) BREFTTEED
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize the BRETESENAZE2BANER -
contributions of the participants.
(i) Eligible Participants (i) EEHZHEA
The participants of the Share Option Scheme are directors or employees, BRESSZ2EAABEANE AERRQ A
any business consultants, business partners, suppliers, customers, agents SEFEMMHBARELERMNESHES -
financial or legal advisers, debtors or creditors who will contribute or ERIEBHAA - EBEH - H®HEN TP -
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries. RIEBe B Sl ARERN BB ASNEEA -
(iii) Grant of Options (iii) RHEBERE
The Board shall be entitled at any time, within 10 years after the date of EESERENRMNERETE BB TF
adoption of the Share Option Scheme, to make an offer of the grant of B AFEMEBEREERAFEMN2E AR DE
an option to any participant. RHEREL -
(iv) Payment on Acceptance of Option Offer (iv) ?% MEREZONHR
HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company on acceptance of 2HABEMNBEREZOERNERESHME
the option offer as consideration for the grant within 30 days from the HFEBHREF=TBERMARA L1008 T
date upon which the option offer is made. VEBIERBERERNRE -
(v)  Subscription Price of Shares v) BROABE
The subscription price of an option to subscribe for shares granted BRIFEREGTSELEREUNRBERMD 2
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme shall be the highest of: REBEAEUTESE
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's . RONRMBEAELEREZLNB (A
daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option offer is REFR)EBMIMEAREBRMIIZ
made to a participant, which must be a business day; mE
the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the . BROREEELEREZENB AR
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days BEEXAEBIMEBEBEBRMIIZ
immediately preceding the date on which an option offer is made; EHkmE: &
and
the nominal value of a share. . I&1n 2 E1E -
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(vi)

(vii)

Total Number of Shares Available for Issue

As all share options which were granted under the Share Option Scheme
had lapsed, no shares are available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this report.

Maximum Entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue. Where shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of his or her associate in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, (1) representing
in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue; and
(2) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares
at the date of each grant, in excess of HKS5 million, the proposed grant
of option must be approved by the Shareholders by poll in general
meeting.

(viii) Time of Exercise of Option

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option. The Board has the authority to determine the minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

(vi)
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During the year, details of movement in the share options under the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

Options to subscribe for shares

RGP - AR 0E AR 5T BB T2 BB AR A A
EBHEENT :

TRERG 2 BRE
Outstanding Closing price
Lapsed/ at per share
Outstanding Granted/  Cancelled/ 31 December immediately
at 1 January Exercised Expired 2020 prior to the
2020 during during R=E=%% Exercise date of grant
R-E-ZF the year the year +=A price Date of ZERE Exercisable
Type of grantees -A-H R ER%%/ =1-A8 per share grant REAH period'
ERARH MAGTE BE/AFE EH/ER O HRTE  SRAKE HHEAE  SRUTE TR
(HKS) (HKS)
(%) (%7
Employees of the Group 2,910,000 - (2910000 - 1761 22102010 205 22102012-21.10.2020
rEEER
Notes: Bt 5t
1. These share options are exercisable in the following manner: 1. ZEBREAIRA T RIT6E -
[0 on or after the second anniversary of the date of 50% 0 REHBEBHRRNBFE B z® 50%
grant up to 10 years from the date of grant HEERLAMRIOF
(ii) on or after the third anniversary of the date of remaining 50% (ii) REHBHR=BFER 2% Tl 5 50%
grant up to 10 years from the date of grant EXAEHBEREI0FE
2. These outstanding share options were lapsed on 22 October 2020. 2. ZEMAITEBRECR T _TF+A-T-BEX™ -

The share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are not recognized
as share capital in the financial statements of the Company until exercised.

The Share Option Scheme has expired on 16 March 2015 and all the

outstanding share options were lapsed on 22 October 2020.

During the year, the Company has no new share option scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each Director
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded
in the register pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

EETHRE#

R-ZZE_ZEF+_A=+—H BEFREAQAR
BITHRABESERARRIREMABEZE(EER
BHERKHAEGRAEXVE) RS - HEARNS RE
FHQUEBERBIESRAEKRAIEXVEE7RS
DEEMEARNT RERAANEMERIAR (S
RREERBEEFRBAE wua%m S E E AR
EBRENERZIAR) KO ERABRBESLSRK
,HJ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁu%352ﬂ%%faﬂ’3?ﬁuaﬂﬁwE’Jﬁsﬁn&m
B ROREBEZETAENG ARQE KB RN
e RAB T

@ RARXTRMD MHEROREZNHER

Percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity shares held BRITRAK

B L0 FERAEE BAL

Mr.Hung Tsung Chin Interest of controlled corporation 507,188,592' 15.46%

IR LA XEEBEmER

Note: I

1. These shares represent shares held by Metroasset Investments Limited in which Mr.
Hung Tsung Chin beneficially owns 45.09% of the issued share capital.

1. % % I 19 R 3R Metroasset Investments Limited 15 55 &9
fefn  HEGEEEBSEAZ LD RIH4509%E B
TR -
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V.

(b) Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations of the Company
Name of associated corporation:

Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

(b) REQXTHEBEENRSG  HERGOR
BEFENHFRE
iﬁﬁfﬁ)\i\t.%ﬁ'
8 & &8 R 2 5] *(Pro Brand Technology, Inc.)

Percentage to
the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Directors Capacity shares held ERITRAE
EERE 514 G B Bok
Mr. Chen Wei Chun Interest of controlled corporation 350,000'
BRIZS K& XEHEE R
Beneficial owner 300,000°
EnEB A
Total 650,000 0.82%
-
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin Beneficial owner 450,000 0.57%
TR A BEmBEAE A
Notes: Pt sE -
1. These shares represent 350,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc, a non-wholly 1. ZERMRRBHREBR LA ﬁ ﬁ :oNVNEC]|
owned subsidiary of the Company, held by Jun Zhong Investment Limited* (${F #% F2EMBRRAEAREARR A (Po Brand
& H B2 F))in which Mr. Chen Wei Chun beneficially owns the entire issued share Technology, Inc.) & 350,000 f% A% 17 + B 1:;: HELEE
capital. BEAOMREARRANDIHE EITRA -
2. These shares represent 300,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc, a non-wholly 2. ZEROARRERAFEZENBRATDFEERREAE
owned subsidiary of the Company, owned by Mr. Chen Wei Chun. PR 2 &]* (Pro Brand Technology, Inc.)#J300,000 8% & {5
HEREHEERS -
3. These shares represent 450,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc., a non-wholly 3. ZEROBREARFFZEMNBAREERNES

owned subsidiary of the Company, owned by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be recorded in the register pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO
As at 31 December 2020, according to the register kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies and persons, other than

the Directors and chief executive of the Company, had long positions of 5%

or more in the shares and underlying shares which fell to be disclosed to the

Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BREZSRPERAATFHEENR
REZERRE
RZZE-ZHF+-A=Z+—8 " BREAQFRE
BHEMBERMNEDBERFEENEZH ATA
ARAT(BERAQTZGSITRABRINES
RIBZELFNAEEEXNVEE2DBREIDE
AR AR EHTERS%E A _ERR D &858
SN

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares REROEEBERONER
Percentage of
Number of the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held share capital
Fi ¥ R A0 BEBITRAE
RERE R ) ®E Bk
Metroasset Investments Limited Beneficial owner 507,188,592' 15.46%
BHERA
Ms. Chen Mei Huei Interest of controlled corporation 507,188,5922 15.46%
PREBX L HEGEE O ER
First Steamship Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation 950,859,347° 28.98%
mM AR H AR A A HEGEEOER
Lightspeed Global Ltd. Beneficial owner 202,634,679 6.18%
BHERA
Ms. Hou Chung Man Other* 202,634,679 6.18%
FEEELZL H b
Mr. Tang, Alan Chung Wah Other* 202,634,679 6.18%
HERELE H b+
Mr. Tai Kwok Kei Beneficial owner 200,000,000 6.10%°

MEELE

EDmEAA
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Notes:

These shares are held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 45.09% of the issued share capital
of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin.

The shares are the same batch of shares (as referred to in note 1) held by Metroasset
Investments Limited, 44.38% of the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms.
Chen Mei Huei the spouse of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin.

First Steamship Company Limited is interested in 950,859,347 shares through First Mariner
Holding Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary, which holds 833,000,000 shares and Grand Citi
Limited, its non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 117,859,347 shares.

Pursuant to the disclosure of interests notice filed on 22 July 2020, Ms. Hou Chung Man and
Mr. Tang, Alan Chung Wah were appointed as the Joint and Several Receivers and Managers
of Lightspeed Global Ltd. (which holds 202,634,679 Shares of the Company).

Disclosure of the percentage of the issued share capital held by Mr. Tai Kwok Kei is made as
per the last disclosure of interests notice which was filed on 16 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any Company

or other person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)

who had an interest or short positions of 5% or more in the shares and

underlying shares for the year ended 31 December 2020 which fell to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Save for the delisting and repurchase of TDRs, neither the Company nor any of

its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the laws
in Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
under which the Company would be obliged to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to the existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained the amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been audited by BDO. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO as the
Company's auditor for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the 2021 AGM.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to Shareholders
by reason of their holdings of the shares of the Company. If the Shareholders
are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing
of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares, they are
advised to consult an expert.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend, speak
and vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of the Company ("Register
of Members") will be closed as appropriate as set out below:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents At 4:30 p.m.on

for registration with the Hong Kong Friday, 28 May 2021

branch share registrar

Record Date Friday, 28 May 2021

Monday, 31 May 2021 to
Thursday, 3 June 2021
(both days inclusive)

Closure of the Register of Members

For purpose mentioned above, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Hong Kong branch share registrar, at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong no later than the aforementioned latest time.

For and on behalf of the Board

Lau Yau Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

T35 1 +852 2218 8288
85 : +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANDMARTIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sandmartin
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 235, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
BRI EARREHMEBAARAR

(1oL L b EL TR | Y
'.""!"m”“|""!'!!'!‘

B =BT R S

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EBTHER11R
FkZHi>251&

HESTEHEREZERERATAZBKRR
(REFREZELIMHALZBRAA])

=R
RPMEERANENEEEB-AANESF T BER
ZRBRAB(BRLAFA) RENBAR (FEA [E
K8 OGEEMBRE  BEMBBRREER_-F
“EFT A=+ -HNERMBRRARREE
ZHLEFENGAREREMEHKGER  RAE
REPRNGARSMNER - URGE M BHRERM
i BRIEEHEEME -

BMRE  ZEREMBRECRESESHAA
S((ERBTMAR]]) BHNB B ERE R
BEEEATHRMT BESER-Z=TF+=A
=+ —HNREMBRARBEZB EFENGE
BBRBARGARERE  WEIEBEEQRIEN
BREATLAER -

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

B AR S (&

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “"Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3(b) in the consolidated financial statements, which
indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$12,594,000 attributable
to owners of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 and,
as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$252,796,000. As stated in note 3(b), these conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in note 3(b), indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matter described in the "Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern” section, we have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of receivables

(Refer to notes 5, 22, 23, 26 and 39(b) to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had loan receivables due from former
subsidiaries with a principal amount of US$71,298,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$552,711,000) and related interest receivables with a gross
,728,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$90,915,000), several
receivables from an associate, Dish Media Network Limited, including (i) loan

amount of US$11

to an associate with a principal amount of HK$23,268,000; and (i) amount due
from an associate with a gross carrying amount of HK$40,391,000. In addition,
the Group had trade and bills receivables with a gross carrying amount of
HK$262,266,000 as at 31 December 2020.

The Group elected to measure loss allowances for amount due from an
associate which is trade in nature and trade and bills receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and calculated expected credit losses ("ECLs”") based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has engaged an independent specialist in assisting
the Group to establish a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
associate and the economic environment.

The Group measured the ECLs of loan to an associate at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. The Group measured
the ECLs of loan receivables due from former subsidiaries using lifetime ECLs
as these receivables are considered credit-impaired. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group has engaged an
independent specialist to consider reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-

looking information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Ja) N A% BN RN R & (&

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of receivables (Continued)

Based on the Group’s measurement, ECLs of loan receivables due from former
subsidiaries, loan to an associate, amount due from an associate and trade
and bills receivables of HK$643,626,000, HKS$1,113,000, HK$4,035,000 and
HK$139,761,000 respectively were recognised as at 31 December 2020. As a
result, the net amounts of loan receivables due from former subsidiaries, loan
to an associate, amount due from an associate and trade and bills receivables
were nil, HK$22,155,000, HK$36,356,000 and HK$122,505,000 respectively as at
31 December 2020.

Accordingly, provision for of ECLs on financial assets of HK$1,916,000 were
recognised in profit or loss during the year.

We identified impairment assessment of receivables as a key audit matter
because significant amount of judgment and estimation was involved in

determining the ECLs allowance.

Our response
Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

—  Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the design and
implementation of internal controls relating to credit control, debt
collection, estimate of expected credit losses and making related
allowances under ECL model;

—  Obtaining and understanding on the key data and assumptions of the
expected credit loss model adopted by the Group;

—  Assessing the appropriateness of groupings of trade receivables into
categories of shared credit risk characteristics;

—  Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing analysis of trade
receivables;

—  Testing the accuracy and evaluating the relevance of the historical loss
data as an input to the ECL model;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of receivables (Continued)

Our response (Continued)

—  Evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward looking information
to assess the reasonableness of the expected credit loss rates; and

—  Evaluating the independent specialist's competence, capabilities and
objectivity.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Ja) N A% BN RN R & (&

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

B AR S (&

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Yu Tsui Fong

Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= A 15 =>% AN >4
meEEmkEMEE K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
HE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-2F —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
Ff 3 FER FAT
Continuing operations BERSEEL
Revenue I & 6 863,629 1,070,527
Cost of sales S5 & A AR (744,716) (890,325)
Gross profit ESl 118,913 180,202
Other income, gains and losses Halk A~ = R EE 8 44,875 40,636
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of BEMENRFEEEN CRD)
investment properties 18 7,052 (3,142)
Distribution and selling costs 5 K B & A AR (36,543) (32,670)
Administrative and other expenses TEREEMASZ (107,229) (132,267)
Research and development costs B 2% Ak A (32,276) (35,156)
Share of profit of an associate FEAR — B2 N B Ry F 21 16,277 10,320
Provision for expected credit loss on loan JFE W AT FY B~ B B FE AR B FR A
receivables due from former subsidiaries TEHEEBIERE 23 - (429,410)
(Provision for)/reversal of expected credit EMmemEENTEHREE
losses on other financial assets B8 (B E) B E (1,916) 8,791
Finance costs A& B 9 (29,839) (36,894)
Loss before income tax expense e HAIEIE (20,686) (429,590)
Income tax expense g Bz i 10 (3,141) (5,546)
Loss for the year from continuing operations HERE X BN REEFE (23,827) (435,136)
Discontinued operation ERIEREEN
Profit for the year from discontinued operation B 4 |F £ & 2 15 89 K F [ % 7 11 - 79,788
Loss for the year RKEEFE 12 (23,827) (355,348)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Htt 2wk (NBRHEE)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequentlyto ~ A& T @ EH S EE B HIEH -
profit or loss:
— Re-measurement gain on defined — RERFIFTENES
benefit plan FrE e 33 - 83
— Gain on revaluation of properties upon —ME BEERSEBEERES
transfer of property, plant and equipment REMERNMESEMN
to investment properties W %5 25,573 2,230
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HEnEEN D HEZEmmIER -
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation of —BREEINEBNIEN =5
foreign operations (4,925) (10,226)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEHMEEKE 20,648 (7,913)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEELHEHREHEEE (3,179) (363,261)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

,—\—./\ =1 ./
mEeEBEm A&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

H b 2 T 4 o

3} ()

2020 2019
—EZEHF —nF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
Ff 3 FET FAT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KARBEAEBEELREE
owners of the Company: (B1]) %A :
— from continuing operations — FEREER (12,594) (441,458)
— from discontinued operation —BERIEREER o 125,997
(12,594) (315,461)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to FEREZEGEEAEE
non-controlling interest: (B51]) %A :
— from continuing operations — R EREER (11,233) 6,322
— from discontinued operation —ERIEREER - (46,209)
(11,233) (39,887)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: T 5| & HE(L 2 E KA %E .
— Owners of the Company e YNGR =N 7,921 (323,376)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE PR RE 2R (11,100) (39,885)
(3,179) (363,261)
Loss per share from continuing and BERCKRIEBEERN HK cents HK cents
discontinued operations BREE 15 AL Al
— Basic —H R (0.4) (96)
— Diluted —#58 (0.4) (96)
Loss per share from continuing operations SERKELEKNERES 15
— Basic — &R (0.4) (13.5)
— Diluted —#55 (0.4) (13.5)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
RZE-_TF+-_HA=+—H

2020 2019
Z_FHF —E-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THERT FA&TT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BWE NMRE 16 66,704 83,619
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIE 17 58 935
Investment properties LB 18 205,442 147,622
Goodwill [EES 19 10,140 9,272
Intangible assets EEEE 20 3,836 8,704
Interest in an associate E/‘ BE=YNGIEof 21 90,393 76,600
Loan to an associate B —EEESATHNER 22 22,155 22,130
Deferred tax assets ﬁk%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 24 4,212 3,346
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 402,940 352,228
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 156,633 221,049
Trade, bills and other receivables BB SER  BREERR
H e W kIR 26 207,704 326,800
Prepaid lease payments AN ERIE 17 28 57
Loan receivables FEME K 23 - -
Amount due from an associate e — Bk A BRI FRIE 22 36,356 61,729
Pledged bank deposits BIRRIRITFR 27 3,957 3,973
Bank balances and cash RTEFARS 28 88,871 66,340
Total current assets MENEEEE 493,549 680,448
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade, bills and other payables BREBESENR  BIEER
H A FE S FRIR 29 289,524 391,750
Contract liabilities a ,\’]‘é & 30 30,407 23,509
Tax liabilities HIEARE 12,083 11,534
Bank and other borrowings BITRAMEE 32 383,144 441,045
Provision for financial guarantee WIS R A 31 27,332 27,332
Lease liabilities HERE 34 3,855 4,545
Total current liabilities VEIN=NEEE ] 746,345 899,715
Net current liabilities REBETEEE (252,796) (219,267)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBAR 150,144 132,961
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
e WA R (4

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
RZE-_TF+-_A=+—H

2020 2019
E—BF | —TNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank and other borrowings ROTREMER 32 29,840 11,568
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHIEAR 24 62,357 51,351
Defined benefit obligation REBNEE 33 32 33
Lease liabilities HEARE 34 4,399 7,714
Total non-current liabilities JEmEBEARE 96,628 70,666
Net assets EEFE 53,516 62,295
Capital and reserves attributable to owners QA F#EE ABLBRAE R FE
of the Company
Share capital RN 35 328,108 327,882
Reserves f#fE (313,676) (323,310)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~— Zx2A BI#EA A B ERS 14,432 4572
Non-controlling interests JEFER B 7 39,084 57,723
Total equity EREEE 53,516 62,295
On behalf of the directors REEZE
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Wei Chun
HERE PRIZ$9
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
l\\/T\ 4;_"_ 2 @J %%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAEBARL
Share Capital ~ Defined Property  Currency Non-
Share Share option  Statutory redemption benefit plan Special revaluation translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
BXRE REEA NEEf EREE FER

Bx  RHER BREGSE LERE BF HHER HARE i % EHER &3t 3 g3
HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKS0D0  HKSOOD  HKSOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOO
AT TEx  TAr  TEn  TERT  TEn  TER TRz TER TRz TER  TEr  TER

(Note d) (Noteh) (Note )
(GES) (o) (hiko)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+tZA=t-8
i3 327882 506750 7.960 30486 - 4 89175 74634 754 (711,734) 327948 (293834) 34114

Loss for the year TEEEA = = = = = = - - - BISeN) (BI5d6N) (988D (355349)
Other comprehensive income,netof tax - 41 2 B (MR H8)
Re-measurement gain on defined RERAHENEN

benefit plans HEL S - - = S S 8 = = = = 8 = 8
Eichange diferences on translation of -~ EHAE G SN ¥ FEME £

foreign operations EizH - - - - - - - - (02 - (029 2 (1029
Gain on revaluation of propertiespon 1% - BERRBBEE

transfer of property, plant and REMERNNE

equipment to investment properties B M - - - - - - - 290 - - 20 - 230
Total comprehensiveincomefor ~ AEE2FUEAE

the year - - - - - 83 - 2230 (10228) (315461) (323376) (39,885) (363.261)
Disposal of subsidiares HEWBAR - - - - - - - - - - - NI 391
Balanceat31 December2019and ~ WZ=E-A%E+ZA=+-H

1January 2020 R=%-%%-f-8

288 327,882 506,750 7,960 32,486 - 124 89,175 76,864 (9474)  (1,027,195) 4572 57,723 62,295

Lossorreyen TEERA . . - - - - - - T s 33 (B

Other comprehensive income, netof tax - £t 2 A (B HE)

Bxchange differences on transation of -~ RIAE G N EBME£H
foreign operations EXER - - - - - - - - (5,058) - (5.058) 133 (4923)

Gain on revaluation of properties ipon -~ 1% - BERRAEBEE
transfer of property, plant and RENERONE

equipment toinvestment properties M - - - - - - - 551 - - 551 - 551
Total comprehensiveincomefor ~ KEE2FRHAE

the year - - - - - - - 25,573 (5,058) (12,594) 7921 (11,100) (3179)
Repurchase and cancellation of mERTHEE

Taiwan Depositary Receipts (GREEEN

(note 35(a) (9774) - - - 1713 - - - - - (8061) - (8,061)
Issue of shares (note 3316) BITR (& 35000) 10,000 - - - - - - - - - 10000 - 10000
Dividend 8 - - - - - - - - - - - (7,539) (7,539)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZE-EE+-A=1-H

288 328,108 506,750 7,960 32,486 1713 124 89,175 102,437 (14,532)  (1,039,789) 14432 39,084 53,516
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

1\\/ \

SEmEB R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

Notes:

(b)

©

86

T TFE+-_A=+—HLEFE

The statutory reserve is required by the relevant law of The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC. The statutory reserve can be applied in
conversion into PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of a capitalisation issue.

The special reserve represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition at the time
of a group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares and the surplus
arising pursuant to a capitalisation of advances from shareholders as part of the

group reorganisation;

(ii) the difference between the consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary satisfied by
way of partial interest of a subsidiary without the overall gain or loss of control in the
partial disposed subsidiary and the fair value of net asset acquired; and

(iii) the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary without the overall gain or loss of
control in that subsidiary.

The property revaluation reserve is frozen upon the transfer of properties from property, plant

and equipment to investment properties and will be transferred to accumulated losses when
the relevant properties are disposed of.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%

AERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Il !"';_"Z"’!]-"”:'.:|":i|
i

W et

2020 2019
g et 32 —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBERERE
Loss before income tax expense from SECEEBNMEHRI LA
continuing operations E51E (20,686) (429,590)
Profit before income tax expense from BRIFEEEBNAEH TN
discontinued operation Al F - 79,788
(20,686) (349,802)
Adjustments for: BTYELFHE:
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 5,358 4,521
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of REMENLTE
investment properties (&), md (7,052) 3,142
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- -BEREBTE 15,960 19,513
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FCREEENE 3,162 3,365
Loss on termination of a lease KIEFAENERE 59 -
Provision for expected credit losses on financial assets @ Bl & EMEHE EEEEE 1,916 419479
Finance cost BE R AR 29,839 36,894
Write off of property, plant and equipment WEME - BWE k& 1,349 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEW¥ MERREEE 478 2293
Impairment loss on inventories FEREBEEE 1,856 958
Interest income B WA (785) (3,583)
Interest income from an associate RE—RABERTHFEKA (1,006) 1,013)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARMNEE - 940
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HEBKRIEREEBH R - (149,948)
Loss on written off on intangible assets WHHEVEENER - 28
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories GFEREEBERRE (7,420) (2,584)
Release of prepaid lease payments BEEAHEERR 56 64
Share of result of an associate JEfE —FE & R A EE (16,277) (10,320)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes Z2EZ ¢ EHANK LMWL T E 6,807 (26,053)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERAL/(Em) 67,905 (79,260)
Decrease in trade, bills and other receivables FERESER BREERK
HAth, 8 Y 3R IR R, 115,004 30,091
Decrease in defined benefit obligation REBANEERD - (103)
(Decrease)/increase in trade, bills and other payables B2 S8R - BN Z & K
H & SR ORL ),/ 48 (117,628) 60,582
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHBEEN/CRD) 6,898 (105)
Decrease in amount due from an associate JE U — B & A Bl R SRR 28,695 58,822
Cash from operations REEBMENEE 107,681 43974
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

SeRTRERGE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

2020 2019
—E-SHE —NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B ax THER FAT
Income tax paid BERER (3,801) 9617)
Interest received SR GRS 785 3,583
Interest paid BERFE (29,647) (36,673)
Net cash from operating activities MERBEHRH & FE 75,018 1,267
Cash flows from investing activities REXBERERE
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BIRPEITFEIOND, () 16 (2,330)
Proceeds from loan receivables E W & ZRF ?aEc A - 8,794
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZEEHRE
plant and equipment 648 9,235
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BERRE (6,460) (13,394)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal of a subsidiary B & — KT B A A FTE £
BehnEa 36 - (1,558)
Addition to intangible assets RNEEWEE (542) (136)
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities REEH ) Bz Hz F8 (6,338) 611
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRERE
New bank and other borrowings raised MERTREMEE 77,802 56,122
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (120,065) (59,273)
Payment of interest element of lease liabilities IREEGENEHS (192) (221)
Payment of principal element of lease liabilities TNHEAERSH Y (4,173) (3,663)
Repurchase of shares (el 85 B% (7 (8,061) -
Issue of shares BT 10,000 -
Net cash used in financing activities BETHHE 2 (44,689) (7,035)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBASESEMWEM CH
cash equivalents 23,991 (5,157)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear ~ F ¥4 KB L ZEY 66,840 72,695
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HEEXZBTE (1,960) (698)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREBEERBEZED 88,871 66,340
Analysis of the balances of cash and REeRBEEENEHRI T
cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRES 88,871 66,840
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R 2R BT o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its
shares are listed on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the “Group”)
engages in manufacturing and trading of satellite TV equipment
products and other electronic goods. The details of principle activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial

statement.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on 1

January 2020
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material impact on
the Group's results and financial position for the current or prior
period. The Group has not early applied any new or amended
HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

—REH
RABIRRBREZMKILZBRAT - E
DREBBARXZAERDA] ([BRFT]) ER
E e ANRBEMM R K& T EE R
ERAFRABER —EARE -

ARBREWBAR (T XGERE[REH]) X
EUFHEEARBERREBETERNR
ERED - MEBARMNIEERHBFENEGES
PATE AR 45

RMEBUBHREEN (EFRBMK

WEER )

(a) BT REITEBUBREE
A—R-ZZB-2FE-A—-HER

BN HREER EX vt
B3R IERT

EAGHENE 1R BERAZEE
BB G ERE R

ZIERT
BAEMEHRELER FREEHRE

Fo5 - BEGTER
F 39 MEBWE
WERERIE 7R 2MEFT

AEHR BT R EM B RE LR Y
AEBRARESCBTHEZ 28 Y
BARRARBEATE - AKERASE
HA R 0 B4R P AR AA) 120 R AR R Z ¥R T
HEIEFT BB RS R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRMBEBUBHREEAN(EBUE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) mEZER ) (E)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (b) CHEMEERERZHT EIELT
yet effective BB BREREL
The following new or revised HKFRSs have been issued, but are AT #E] /&I BT B RE LR
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. LM B RER AN EIEREER
The Group's current intention is to apply these changes on the BEEp e REEBRAENZEEEHE
date they become effective. WME B EAZESES -
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets ERAMBHRELEAE 0RR AECERZEE
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and ERASHENERR B HEXTE
its Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions? BEMBREENE 6% HOUERRER
ZIEET ABZBEER’
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BB e ERE 0% MRERELE —
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2° BRMBRERNEAR - FBR
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 BRMBRERNETS

J
EANBASEUF KR
BANHREEAE 165

ZIEFT
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: ERASHENE 6B WE BERESE:
Proceeds before Intended Use* WMERERBRTZ
P suE
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of EECHERNEIIF 2B  BEAYN—BIAY
Fulfilling a Contract* LB
Annual Improvementsto  Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time S SR B S ER
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Adoption of Hong Kong Financial “2-)\FE F1F2ETER
Reporting Standards, Amendment —E-BEy RNBEHBRE
to HKFRS 9 Financial instruments, FENH# KR FEHE
Amendment to illustrative REERFE IR
examples accompanying EETeRIA
HKFRS 16 Leases and Amendment BAUBRE LR
to HKAS 41 Agriculture? F 165 EREN 2
T2 ET REE
SHEAFEAFL
iR
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BB RREERE 3% BAIER 7 1B
Framework® ZIEFT
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BERAQHENE R BaBEIEAREN
Current or Non-current? a5 ElintE
HK Interpretation 5 (2020)  Presentation of Financial Statements EERBE 55020 BEHRNET) —
— Classification by the Borrower ERAHEER
of a Term Loan that Contains a ERERETA
Repayment on Demand Clause® THERHNHE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® AR RELENE 7SR RBAEHKS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

“EE+ZA=+—BHLEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)
! No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The above new or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not
yet effective are not likely to have material impact on the Group’s
consolidated results and consolidated financial statements upon
application.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method, any gains
or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that associate
or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture) to fair value are
recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company (“The Directors”) anticipate that
the application of these amendments may have an impact on
the financial statements in future periods should such transaction
arise.

2. HMBEBMBREE

RI(T&EME

wEER ) ()

(b)

BREMERNRERZ I BB

é%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ
KT BIA R 58 - B AR o
© RZFCoEEAA-RRZAMMZEES

PR

: REIB-—F—A—BRZEMIRZFES
B -

¢ RZF__F—A—BRZEFARZFEN
AR o

© HEBAMAR-T--F-A-ANZK

Rz BEFERRMKGE Ak ZRMER
BOFERR -

s RIB-=ZF A BRZEMIRZFER
AR o

bt B R AE R R AR FT T SIS RT

R AR R T AT R
ARBGL EERGANBRRER
FAYE -

B SRR 10 R BB B

RIZE 285k 2165 — IR EZ HAHE N A]
NEE XA EEHERLTE
ZEE DTQEH?XLQ%EEEE%%@_J_R/\
LBhERZHOEIEIABENTE
Eﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ/fkﬁﬁm%igf\jjééﬁ
RETRSGE ARLHEIAEE %FKE’J
Bt 8 2 ] ) %8 o 4 i 72E AR VAR MR AR
BRENFEBRKREEEZ 5?%’“552
BECENERRBRERSZTHER -
B - SERAINEAR (EXRRBER
AlREERE)NREEREATEEN

FrEMELEMNTMIKEER - ELAF
BB EEN B E RAHAEEEN
s BRIEBR ST HER -

ARAFREE(EE A HEBRS

HIR - ERZFERT A e S R K]
MM S RRERTE -

005 % /EFTEEERERAT 91

L

tM

1ﬂ




llrllll
F

I ||II|||IIIIIIJI[II]II| 1| |I |I |II I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
FoEFT-A=+—HLFE

BHE—

2.

92

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions

The amendment is issued in June 2020 and is effective for annual
June 2020. Earlier
application is permitted, including interim or annual financial

reporting periods beginning on or after 1

statements not authorised for issue as at 4 June 2020, the date of
the amendment is issued.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to assess whether a COVID19-related rent concessions
is a lease modification. The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19

that meets all of the following conditions:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lease applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes were not lease modifications. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments. The
related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the

profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

S
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions
(Continued)

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 —

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the
interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and relate to (a)
changes to contractual cash flows in which an entity will not
have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by the Reform, but will instead
update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an
entity will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if the hedge
meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c) disclosures in
which an entity will be required to disclose information about new
risks arising from the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

924

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling such items,
and the cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that applies
paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative
translation differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the '10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16 Leases, which amend lllustrative Example 13
to remove the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated
in that example.

HKAS 41 Agriculture, which remove the requirement to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value
of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 instead of
the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a
levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent

assets acquired in a business combination.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020) — Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan

that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that rights
are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the
reporting period. The amendments also introduce a definition of
'settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer
to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or

services.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020) — Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan

that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause (Continued)

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the Amendments
to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision to HK Int 5 (2020)
updates the wordings in the interpretation to align with the
Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not

change the existing requirements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments and revision in the future will have an impact on the

financial statements.

HKFRS 17— Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
and supersedes HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The standard
outlines a ‘General Model’, which is modified for insurance
contracts with direct participation features, described as the
'Variable Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified if certain
criteria are met by measuring the liability for remaining coverage

using the Premium Allocation Approach.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of this
standard in the future will have an impact on the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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3.

28

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 235 have
been prepared in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties which are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and

services.

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss of HK$12,594,000
attributable to owners of the Company and at the end of reporting
period, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HKS$252,796,000. The Group had bank loans and other loans
of HK$171,379,000 and HK$241,605,000 at 31 December 2020
respectively. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, that it may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
(Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the Directors have given
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the
Group and its available sources of finance in the preparation of
a cash flow forecast cover a 18-month period from the end of
the reporting period for assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern. In

particular, the Directors have considered the following:

(1) The Group has successfully renewed its banking facilities of
US Dollar ("US$") 31,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$240,315,000) subsequent to the end of the reporting
period upon their expiry;

(2)  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group has agreed with the lender to renew its other
loans of US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$232,563,000) and extended the repayment date to 20
April 2022, subject to the completion of supplemental loan
agreement;

(3)  As of the date of approval of the financial statements,
the Group has unutilised bank loan facilities totalling
HKS$316,030,000 available to finance its future operations
and financial obligations.

In the opinion of the Directors, after taking into account of
financial performance, operation as well as capital expenditure
and the above financing arrangements of the Group, the Group is
expected to have sufficient liquidity to finance its operations for
the next twelve months subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

()

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption
(Continued)

Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to adjust the value
of assets to their estimated net realisable values, to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively, and to provide for any further liabilities which may
arise. The effects of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("USS"), while the consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). As the Company is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Directors consider that
it will be more appropriate to adopt HKS as the Group's and the
Company's presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(i) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with
the Group's accounting policies.

All'intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z_ZHF+-_A=+—HLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is
the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether a
particular set of activities and assets is a business, the Group
assesses whether the set of assets and activities acquired
includes, at a minimum, an input and substantive processes
and whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit

orloss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. B RS HE (&)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations (a) HEEEREBSH(E)
(Continued)
(i) Business combinations (Continued) () EBEEG(E)

MU BB - AT BIA A R AR S
& ER RSN A TERER - 1T
EE B -

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets and liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

1 04 Sandmartin Internation

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 "Income Taxes" and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 "Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date fair value amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is recognised in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

1 06 Sandmartin International Holdings Limited / 2020 Annual Report

4.

EXEFHE(E)
REREEREKSO (B)

(a)

(if)

REEGH (&)

ERKEREBAHTERNRE
BRIARELRUSIBNEEXE
B AEIARESZENEERS
MAFESE LA AERRER
BHTERNREN D - £AF
EE B AREEREREDRR
ENIAREBRAHEZS  WHE
HBEE - TEPRBERN G
EH] (TEHEEKERA BB —
F)RESARNKE BHFEN
FERBROBEINEFR ME LS

%go

TRERERTENAENIAN
ERAFEZHERNGATERT
SRR ENDEME - DESER
MEARETERERHREAHNE
HatE MERNGEESRNEREN
AR - FTERMODBREERAR
ZHARBZERFBG N B E

7o

HEBEHOT LT RENA G
EENREMRIMARTK - BIAE
EERINARTRETEENER 2
BETELH - ZFEELBNTE
HiR (R L3O AL AR - iR
BINEEXEBE  URMESEH
REBERHEFESERIBRAMN
B MHAEZEER  Be®
ENERERNTHE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

S

“EE+ZA=+—BHLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associate
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments". The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such

changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

()

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in

the associate that are not related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed the
aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the

acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit ("CGU") is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired, by comparing its

carrying amount with its recoverable amount.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset
will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use
(if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is

transferred over time if the Group's performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” ("HKFRS 15").

(i) Trading of satellite TV equipment products and other electronic
goods
Customers obtain control of the satellite TV equipment
products and other electronic goods when the goods are
delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue is thus
recognised upon when the customers accepted the satellite
TV equipment products and other electronic goods. There
is generally only one performance obligation. Invoices are
usually payable within 60 to 120 days.

(i) Satellite TV broadcasting
Revenue for satellite TV broadcasting generally includes
only one performance obligation. The Group has concluded
that revenue from satellite TV broadcasting should be
recognised over time as those services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)~ Otherincome
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

If the considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the
output method then the Group recognises a contract liability for
the difference.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their expected residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective

basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposals or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised

in profit or loss.

The accounting policy of right-of-use assets is set out in note 4(h).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets (including property, plant and equipment) are
recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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BHE—

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Government grant (Continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the
loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Leasing

The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases
for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would

comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
(see below for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of

an investment property, they are carried at fair value.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS 40
"Investment Property” and are carried at fair value. The Group
accounts for leasehold land and buildings which is held for own
use under HKAS “Property, Plant and Equipment” 16 and are carried

at cost.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement

date of the lease are considered to be lease payments:
(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date;

(i) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

(iv)  the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(v)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and

(i)  remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any

reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-

substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the
carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to
make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate
remains unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in
profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with
the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the
modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional
assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-

of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount.

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, recognising the remaining lease
payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term. The Group applies
the derecognition requirements of HKFRS 9 to recognise to
recognise modification or derecognition gain or loss on the net
investment in the finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to non-

controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 July 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4, B

REFBE (E)

() Borrowing costs () BERRE
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, AU - AR AESTEREBEES
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets AEEBTRANEHENESEREEMN
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for EXNEEEERLY st AZEEEN
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets RAF  BEEZEEECD AR LEAER
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their RERAGRNEHER AL AR TEER
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary VEE BB EEN T LT RIERER
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on REIRBEWA - HBAI TERMEEE
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for BRI -
capitalisation.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the FIBEEMEERAHTEEEPRERNER
period in which they are incurred. TR o

(k)  Retirement benefit costs (k) EBIERBRIEA
Defined contribution plans RERFGE

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) and
the state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates defined benefit pension plans which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund for
employees of the Group’s certain entities which are operating in
India. The benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected

unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to re-measurement gains and losses
on defined benefit plans through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined

benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by

function:

—  service costs comprising current service costs, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

— netinterest expense or income.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

—  the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

— the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs; or

—  the date of termination benefits.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in an associate, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

U]

(m)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except

when they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive

income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised

directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised

directly in equity.

Intangible assets

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment

losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset

is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Intangible assets (Continued)
(i) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z-_ZHF+-_A=t+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),

on the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at the fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets

that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
“EFFTZA=TBLFE

BE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories is determined on a first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for

inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction

price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_TFET-A=T—HLHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are
the ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For other debt financial assets, ECLs are based on lifetime
ECLs except when there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
allowance will be based on the 12-months ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)
(ii)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past

due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when
the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to action such
as realising security (if any is held); or the financial asset is

more than 90 days past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. B RS HE (&)

(o) Financial Instruments (Continued) (o) €RTHA ()
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) (i)  EHEEZHEEE(E)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired AEBRBEREERTINERT
when: BEEERE
B ALREARIBEE

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

EBIREHINE K s B iR
than 90 days past due; 90H :

a breach of contract, such as a default or being more

AEEREBEEMBERLT TS

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the

Group on terms that the Group would not consider EETIEHEBHEERR B
otherwise;

it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or . B AR REGEITH E K
other financial reorganisation; or HMB s ESR %

AR BT A IR B R &

the disappearance of an active market for a security

because of financial difficulties. BHEEMIGZEK -
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit AEBEREBEETHERMESHMIA

or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss

allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

E_BFE+_A=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non-credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade, bills
and other payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit

or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

The accounting policy of lease liabilities is set out in note
4(h).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial Instruments (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount of the
loss allowance, being the ECLs provision measured in
accordance with principles of the accounting policy set out
in note 4(0)(i); and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to the share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will continue to be held in the share option reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_TFET-A=T—HLHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BE

“FET-A=+—BLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Related parties
(@)  Aperson ora close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

(M) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(M The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member);

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);

or

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

4.

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Related parties (Continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

0) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Given Covid-19 pandemic has created and may continue
to create significant uncertainty in macroeconomic conditions actual

results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_TFET-A=T—HLHFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Expect for those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group's investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties situated in the PRC with carrying amount of HK$205,442,000
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$147,622,000) are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale; therefore, the Directors have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of such investment
properties are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on land appreciation tax
on changes in fair value of these investment properties but has only
recognised deferred taxes on enterprise income tax.

RS HE R AT FHABREN
FEFRR (&)

FE RS 5t IR 2 BA R H) I
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BE Y EEFH
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Impairment loss on receivables, loan to and amount due from an associate

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,

changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each end of the reporting period, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis.

For more detailed information in relation to the assessment of ECLs of
financial assets, please refer to note 39(b).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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F_TFET-A=T—HLHFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant and
equipment

Determining whether goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
CGUs of the business of satellite TV equipment and antenna conducted
by Pro Brand Technology, Inc. (“PBT"), to which goodwill, intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment have been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. The discount rate represents rate
that reflects current market assessments of the value of money and the
risks specific to the assets for which future cash flows estimates have
not been adjusted. Where the future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amount of goodwill was HK$10,140,000 (2019: HK$9,272,000),
and the carrying amount of related intangible asset and property, plant
and equipment for these CGUs were HK$3,836,000 (2019: HK$8,704,000)
and HK$52,114,000 (2019: HKS$56,171,000), respectively. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.

Write-down of inventories

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made based on estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the provision
amount required involves management judgment and estimates
in identifying obsolete and slow-moving inventories and estimate
relevant market values for those inventories identified. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of inventories
and provision charge/written back in the period in which the estimate
has been changed. As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying
amount of inventories was HK$175,009,000 (2019: HK$243,366,000),
and accumulated allowance of inventories of HK$18,376,000 (2019:
HK$22,317,000) was recognised as at 31 December 2020.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves significant judgement in
determining the amount of the provision and the timing of payment.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
expense is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely outcome with reference
to current tax laws and practices. Where the final tax outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the year in which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain deductible temporary differences and tax losses will
be recognised when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is
different from the originally estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax expense in the period
in which such estimate is changed.

Fair value measurement on investment properties
Investment properties included in the Group’s financial statements
require measurement at, and disclosure of, fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement on investment properties (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
items;

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level 1
inputs; and

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market data.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value measurement

of investment properties, please refer to note 18.

6. REVENUE
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, less returns and discounts, and services provided by the Group to
outside customers during the year. An analysis of the Group's revenue is
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FEFRR (&)
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as follows:
2020 2019
—EBEEHF —E-hNF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FER FE&T
Continuing operations BEREER
Sales of goods HEE M 863,629 1,070,527
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information reported externally was analysed on the
basis of their goods and services delivered or provided by the Group's
operating divisions which is consistent with the internal information that
are regularly reviewed by the executive Directors, the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment
of performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the Group,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group around
different products and services.

Specifically, the Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as

follows:

Continuing operations

(i) Media entertainment platform related products
Trading and manufacturing of media entertainment platform
related products, which are mainly used for satellite products

equipment.

(i) Other multimedia products
Trading and manufacturing of components of audio and video
electronic products such as cable lines.

(iii)  Satellite TV equipment and antenna products
Trading and manufacturing of satellite TV equipment and antenna
products.

Discontinued operation

(iv)  Satellite TV broadcasting
Provision of Direct-to-Home services for satellite TV broadcasting
in the areas of Middle East, Mediterranean and Africa.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's

reportable segments:

Revenue from contracts with customer within the scope of HKFRS 15:

7 EE R (&)
DA BER 548 A SR B ] 2 SR MR O

ERMBWMELENESHRBEBANEFLEL

2020 2019
—F-%F| T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations BERSEEL

Media entertainment platform related products HEBIRS T S HBEER 124,293 182,237
Other multimedia products HEt 2 EEER 273,735 235,505
Satellite TV equipment and antenna products HEERZBERREES 465,601 652,785
863,629 1,070,527

Discontinued operation BARIEKEER
Satellite TV broadcasting HEERERE - 18,990
863,629 1,089,517
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEERGRE)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS TEHWEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by B 2| MEED AN E B R EE
reportable and operating segments: AN
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZEZF+_-_A=1+—HLEE
Media
entertainment Satellite TV
platform Other equipment
related multimedia and antenna
products products products Total
R R g Hitt HESHRE
TEHBRER SHBEER RXBRER wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER THERT THERT
Revenue W=
External sales HNEREHE 124,293 273,735 465,601 863,629
Results E
Segment results DEPELE 2,039 16,434 63,897 82,370
Reversal of expected credit loss on IR N RINER
loan to an associate E’l\]i%ﬁ\;wz SEEEL 25
Reversal of expected credit loss on FE Uy — RSB N B ZE Y
the amount due from an associate EHEYE TEE@@ 2,316
Provision for expected credit loss BB FEROTEREE
on trade receivables BEEE (4,257)
Other income, gains and losses Hiplg A - iz R EE 44,875
Research and development costs fiff 3% Ak K (32,276)
Administrative and other expenses TEREEMAEX (107,229)
Share of profit of an associate PG — Rl QR 2R A 16,277
Finance costs BhE A AR (29,839)
Increase in fair value of BWEMERN AN TEEZEM
investment properties 7,052
Loss before income tax expense 53R HaiEiE (20,686)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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HE —EFE+ZA=T—HLEE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEERGRE)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued) o EBU R R 3 4E (M)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE T NF+-_A=+—HILEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
REREER Be%%
Media Satellite TV
entertainment Other equipment
platform related multimedia and antenna Satellite TV
products products products Sub-total broadcasting Total
RERe £ HEERDE
TERBER LEEER RRGER Nt BEERER &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR THEL T TR THL TR
Revenue K&
Bxternal sales NEE 182237 235505 652,785 1070527 18990 1089517
Results £
Segment results NHEE 13,052 31,749 102,731 147532 (54391) 93,141
Provision for expected creditlosson € %ZEU MBLARAMEKR
loan receivables due from former ENEHEERR
subsidiaries (note 23(i) ﬁé%(ﬁﬁ 23(0) (429410) - (429410)
Reversal of expected credit loss on ERETNBEEE
loan receivables BEED 8794 - 8794
Provision for expected credit loss RT-REERTNER
on loan to an associate WREEEER T§§ & 7 - (7
Reversal of expected creditlossonthe B U — & 12 B FIB £
amount due from an associate BHEEER }%@ 583 - 5836
(Provision for)/reversal of expected BRESEDNESEE
credit loss on trade receivables BE(RE) /&R (5832) 1,140 (4692)
Other income, gains and losses HWA  WERER 40636 - 40636
Research and development costs WEm K (35,156) - (35,156)
Administrative and other expenses THREMBES (132,267) (16,909) (149,176)
Share of profit of an associate Eib—HEe AR a7 10320 - 10320
Finance costs AR (36,894) - (36,894)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HERR HEAERANE
operation - 149,948 149948
Decrease in fair value of REMENLTERD
investment properties (3142 - (3142
Loss before income tax expense FERXLAER (429,590) 79788 (34980)

2005 % /B TEEERERART 149

f

wl




WMWWH

MWWM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the accounting policies of the Group described in note 4. Segment
results represent the profit earned/loss suffered by each segment
without allocation of provision for/reversal of expected credit losses,
administrative and other expenses, research and development costs,
other income, gains and losses, changes in fair value of investment
properties, share of profit of an associate, finance costs and gain on
disposal of discontinued operation. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation

and performa nce assessment.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segments:

At 31 December 2020

2 ERE# ()

2 Eb s R A (&)
REDBEMEBRRENTIMAREE SR
BERARR - 2 BPEAEE R BRI 18K
wA - KA RDEEREEEERE R -
TR EAMFX - AR - A - W
KREE  REMERNTEZEE - BIE— R
BRAEZEN  MERNARHEDRIEEER
BEE - WIRERD B L RIRFARTR
BERRERENAA -

FEEERAME
RE ZRREE S BN OAEEEER B K
T

R-ZB-EHF+-A=+—H

Media

entertainment Satellite TV

platform Other equipment

related multimedia and antenna
products products products Total

BERHETE Hitt BHEERRE
HEER SEBER RRBEM @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THERT TERT

Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 62,959 37,863 289,071 389,893
Bank balances and cash BOEERRS 88,871
Pledged bank deposits BEEBBETER 3,957
Unallocated corporate assets APBELNRBE 413,768
Consolidated assets BEBE 896,489
Liabilities af

Segment liabilities HEaE 41,103 90,683 122,479 254,265
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE 412,984
Lease liabilities HEaiE 8,254
Unallocated corporate liabilities ol WNGIN=E 167,470
Consolidated liabilities maaf 842,973
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EWMEHR (&)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) PTHEEREE (E)
At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—NAFE+=-A=+—H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRI
BEEREK REXHB
Media
entertainment Satellite TV
platform Other equipment
related multimedia and antenna Satellite TV
products products products Sub-total broadcasting Total
BRRETE i BEERZE
HEER SHRBER  RAREmR Nt BEERER @t
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

Assets BE

Segment assets NBEE 68493 57206 442434 568,133 - 568,133
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 66,840
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 3973
Unallocated corporate assets AOERREE 393730
Consolidated assets GREE 1032676
Liabilities 8%

Segment liabilites AHEE 63350 87,771 214983 366,064 - 366,064
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEE 452613
Lease liabilities BEERE 12259
Unallocated corporate liabilities FoERFIERE 139,445
Consolidated liabilties LaBE 970,381
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, loan to an
associate, amount due from an associate, interest in an associate,
deferred tax assets, loan receivables, certain other receivables,
bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain
other payables, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities, bank and other
borrowings, provision for financial guarantee and lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEERGRE)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HoER
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—E-_Ef+-_A=1+—HIEE
Media
entertainment Satellite TV
platform Other equipment
related multimedia and antenna
products products products Unallocated Total
BRR&4TE Hih BHEERRE
HBEm LHEEER RRBER ADE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER THER
Amounts included in the measure HENBES
of segment profit or loss NEEER .ﬁr)\E’]
or segment assets: 28
Addition to non-current assets NEFRBEE 83 - 6,961 976 8,020
Depreciation and amortisation E MBS 354 591 14,091 - 15,036
Write-down of inventories FEHA 1,856 - - - 1,856
Reversal of impairment loss BOGEREESRE
on inventories (7,420) - - - (7,420)
Amounts not included in the measure 3T E D BB T AH
of segment profit or loss: -
Depreciation wE 676 431 7,265 1,072 9,444
Release of prepaid lease payments BROBENEERE 56 - - - 56
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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“FET-A=+—BLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EWMEHR (&)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) HibpEER (F)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE T NF+-_A=+—HILEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRI
REREEE Bexh
Media
entertainment Satellite TV
platform QOther equipment
related multimedia and antenna Satellite TV
products products products Unallocated Sub-total broadcasting Total
BERETE i BEERTE e
BRER  SREER  RAEER AAE Nt ERER @
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TEL Thr ThL TR TEL ThEL
Amountsindludedinthemeasure St B A BB X
of segment profit or loss or PREERTA
seqment assefs: feg:
Addition to non-current assets REXTHEE 8 - 19302 2108 21498 - 21498
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 959 445 15,159 - 16563 3 16886
White-down of inventories FEHA 958 - - - 958 - 958
Reversal of impairment loss BEFERESE
on inventories (2584) - - - (2584) - (2584)
Amounts notincluded in the measure 31 & H 18 %%
of segment profit o loss: TAMEE:
Depreciation Vg 623 289 9,048 553 10513 - 10513
Release of prepaid lease payments B EENBEEE o4 - - - 64 - o4
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER (E)
DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH DIFEBEEFEHWE
CUSTOMERS
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FESERE BRLBEER
Media entertainment Other Satellite TV equipment
platform related products multimedia products and antenna products Sub-total Satellite TV broadcasting Total
FRRATERBER H2RRER  BEERRERABER Nt EEERER ait
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBIRE |CTNE |Z3BE TR |2B2BF |CT0F |ZBIBE |CT-0E |2BIRF |CT0F |ZBIRF |0
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK000
Thn | Fhxn | TBn | Thn | FExn | ThErn | FEx | TEx | THr | TEx | ThRxn | TiEx
Primary geographical markets TEHETS
Asia [Eb | 18913 5115 48,749 47020 31,700 163,046 99,362 275,181 - - 99,362 275,181
Europe i 70011 8939 3378 3987 26,000 17584 99,389 108510 - - 99,389 108510
North America ItE - - 218,894 178599 348,471 444014 567,365 622613 - - 567,365 622613
Middle East 8 34,253 26483 100 - 22490 9231 56,843 35714 - 18990 56,843 54,704
Afica M 947 2947 - m 388 - 1335 300 - - 1335 300
South America EE - - 1,868 4551 36,552 18910 38,420 23461 - - 38,420 23461
Other regions EfiE 169 753 746 1075 - - 915 1828 - - 915 1828
Total a3 124,293 182237 273,735 235,505 465,601 652,785 863,629 1070527 - 18990 863,629 1089517
Major products/services IZER/BE
Set-top box (STB) KER 35,551 50070 - - - - 35,551 50070 - - 35,551 50070
Low noise block ((NB) ERARkES 2,056 19217 - - - - 2,056 19217 - - 2056 19217
Small Domestic Appliance (SDA) NIRE 14,950 - - - - - 14,950 - - - 14,950 -
Other mediaentertainment products £ EREER 71,736 112950 - - - - 71,736 112950 - - 71,736 112950
Sterlizer BEE = - 93,740 - — - 93,740 - - - 93,740 -
Connector 23] - - - 7166 = - = 7166 - - - 7166
Cable and assembly EERAR - - 453 93698 - - a5 93698 - S| a5 93698
Other multi-media products HZEEER - - 134,611 134641 - - 134,611 134641 - - 134,611 134641
Satellte TV antenna equipment products TR EBXERREER - - - - | 465601 652785 | 465,601 652,785 - - | 465601 652,785
TV broadeasting ERER - - - - - - - - - 18990 - 18990
124,293 18237 273,735 235,505 465,601 652,785 863,629 1070527 - 18990 863,629 1089517
Timing of revenue recognition WEBIER
Atapointintime BEEES 124,293 182237 273,735 235505 465,601 652,785 863,629 1070527 - - 863,629 1070527
Transferted over time RERRD - - - - - - - - - 1899 - 1899
124293 182237 273,735 235505 465,601 652,785 863,629 1070527 - 18990 863,629 1089517
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC (country of
domicile), Taiwan, Europe and North America.

The Group's revenue from external customers, based on location of
customers, and information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

7. DEER (&)
i & R
REBMEBRDHEFEMNPRH(BREMER) -
=2 BN RIEE -

AEEREINPE P (RIEES F) B
RABEARMEG B KR AENE
BB -

Revenue from

Asia CER
— Taiwan —EE
— Nepal —JEAM
— PRC (country of domicile) — R (BERER)
— India —HE
— Singapore — ¥
— Others — H

Europe (B
— Germany — =
— Italy — B XA
— Spain — I
— Portugal — B & T
— France — A E
— Poland — KB
— Denmark —F %
— Malta — S5
— Russia — A&
— Others —H 1t
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external customers Non-current assets (note)
REIIBEF WK FFREEE (&)

2020 2019 2020 2019
TECRE | ZE-NE |ZEZFF | 2T NEF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET
7,645 30,114 15,024 523
14,738 11,365 90,393 76,600
31,385 30,430 245,154 229,042
26,423 51,127 - -
3 4122 - -

19,168 148,023 7,542 2475
53,790 61,197 88 115
16,717 2,404 - -
18,071 18,805 20 21
29 4827 - -
1,430 2,452 - -
3,520 2,960 - -
1 91 - -
100 3,540 - -
360 - - -
5,361 12,234 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER(E)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (Continued) i ER (&)

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets (note)

REHNBEFE K FREBEE (ML)
2020 2019 2020 2019
TECEE T -NEF |ZBZEF | ZENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET FHERT FAET
North America b=
— United States of America (“USA”) —EXFBRERE(EERD 496,528 559,547 18,352 17,976
— Canada —mEX 19,646 32,008 - -
— Mexico — = E 51,144 31,058 - -
— Others — H b 47 - - -
Middle East R
— United Arab Emirates ("UAE") ll DRR (=) R
([ oy B8 4 1) 9,064 27,800 - -
— Others — H A 47,779 26,904 - -
Africa S
— Algeria — PR N A 2R - 95 - -
— Morocco — B8 75 298 - -
— Others — EAfth 1,260 2,827 - -
South America EES
— Brazil — B 437 2,860 - -
— Chile — & F 6,576 2,019 - -
— Argentina — PR £ 11,493 6,876 - -
— Columbia — et 11,077 4,637 - -
— Ecuador —EAZ® 3,112 2315 - -
— Others — HAth 5,725 4,754 - -
Other regions H fth b [@ 915 1,828 - -
863,629 1,089,517 376,573 326,752
Note:  Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and financial instruments. fisE : FERBEETEEREREEERSHMIA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of the

Group is as follows:

7. DEER (&)
FBEEER
AR EE S B E R 10% 10 F S R
mF :

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHExT FET

Customer A Z2HEA 158,196 323,275

Note:  Revenue from the above customer is from the satellite TV equipment and antenna

products segment.

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

M - A EWEREFEERRERRGERD L

8. HMWA  KWaKEE

2020 2019
—EB-BF | ZTNHF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT

Continuing operations BEREER
Government subsidy (note) BT #28 Bh (B 5%) 1,035 273
Ancillary service income from tenants KEHEPHEE RS WA 12,438 13,592
Interest income B U A 785 3,583
Interest income from an associate KE—EEERARNF WA 1,006 1013
Rental income A ON 16,778 16,148
Sales of scrap materials and samples BEmEEAREE 45 15
Net foreign exchange gain NI TE W W T R 8,708 2,362
Others Hith 4,080 3,650
44,875 40,636

Note: Included in profit or loss is HK$486,000 (2019: Nil) of government grants obtained
from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched
by the Hong Kong SAR Government supporting the payroll of the Group'’s employees.
Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses,
and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified period
of time. In addition, the Group received various government subsidies from local
government authorities in the PRC of HK$549,000 (2019: HK$273,000). There are no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies relating to these grants and subsidies.
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sk : 1B25R BIE486000 BT (ZT—NF : &) BB B
RBTEREREES T LA R 578 ([F
MESE D ESHRTHE  AAZNEAEERES
H¥ e  BIBRMETE - NEBARFERZEME
PRARF MY  ERNETHBATERES AZ
FEORZBIEENRTLAT o o - RSB B3 75 1K
T RS ZIEBAT AR - © %85 549,0008 7T (=
T— 5 273,000/87) - EFMENREAEME
W EEARIER Z R REMKABE -
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FINANCE COSTS 9. BEMAX
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-hF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FER FABT
Continuing operations HEREER
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEERE 29,647 36,673
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 192 221
29,839 36,894
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FIEHAX
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FER FBT
Continuing operations BEREER
The tax charge comprises: MBS BIE
Current tax: REAFRIR ¢
— the PRC — 1,272 957
— Jurisdictions other than the PRC and Hong Kong ~ — f Bl ;R & 78 DA SN BAHE & 2,496 7,255
3,768 8,212
(Oven)/under-provision in prior years: BEFE (BBEE), BEHETL
— the PRC — (247) (5)
— Jurisdictions other than the PRC and Hong Kong ~ — F1 B &2 & i A SN 8 TSR (= 122 (321)
(125) (326)
Deferred taxation: ERETIE -
— Current year —AREE (502) (2,340)
3,141 5,546
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
FoEFT-A=+—HLFE

BHE—

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax rates applicable to the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries

for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the PRC

The applicable PRC enterprise income tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% in accordance with the relevant income tax law
and regulations in the PRC.

Hong Kong
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits.

No tax is payable on the profit arising in Hong Kong as the entity
operating in Hong Kong incurred tax losses for both years.

United States

The Group's subsidiaries in the US are subject to United States
Federal Income Tax at 21% (2019: 21%) and States Income Tax at
6% (2019: 6%).

Europe
The Group's European subsidiaries are subject to profit tax rates at
a range of 25% to 30% (2019: 25% to 30%).

Macau

As stated in the Decree Law No. 58/99/M, Chapter 2, Article 12,
dated 18 October 1999, the Macau subsidiary is exempted from
Macau Complementary Tax since its income is generated from
business outside Macau.

Others
Other subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions are subject to
applicable tax rates in the relevant jurisdictions.
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10. FREBIRAZ (&)
BE-T-TER-T-NF+-A=t—H
G AREEE BB B A 7 R
T -

i) E
RIETEBREMEIARIER - TE
MEBARNBERATBEERABRHER
25% °

(i) &HE
BB NG BIR AT ERBUR M 165% 5T

st
H o
>t

HREEARENEENMEFEES
BIRE R HitH% ?f)KEE il
BAATIIA -

(i) *=H
AEENERNB AR A BIZ21% (=
T—NEF: 21%)&6%@2-%& :6%)
B0 T S 2k 4 2 BBl FBFT 1S B IR N PS8 o

(iv) BOM
ZIKEIE% M B R R ZAEN T 25% 2
30% —JLEF 1 25% & 30%) BY B R4
FRpNIEE %Ro

(v) 2P

BE—NNNE+ A+ /\VEE 58/99/M 55
FELEZEETZRBRE - BRI
BRRIMBARERPIREINGER -
ARG AR PR FE R

(vi) Efl
REMBIZEREENEMHBRRZEA
RBERRDAE R E R REH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BE_T-ZHFE+-_A=1—"HLFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before income
tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

1

(=]

. FriS®ip < (&)
AR ERUAR AT RARA B2 R i 2 E
REOFFSHX HATASEHRNT -

2020 2019
—E-EHF —n&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Continuing operations FEREER
Loss before income tax expense FT 1S 7 Sz ) B 5 18 (20,686) (429,590)
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% (2019: 25%) BERBE%(ZE—NF : 25%)
SHEMNEIE (5,171) (107,397)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7[_ —J HHL A S TR % 2 & 4,343 128,445
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose HARBTWANRIE T E (516) (19,567)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised EK EE TR EENRE T E (326) 21
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMADEEREENNER A
operating in other jurisdictions TR ENB G E 2,886 (2/490)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AEROBBEBEOREZE 2,050 6,860
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBEEE (125) (326)
Tax charge for the year AREEFHBESLH 3,141 5,546

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 24.

REEFEIEFIAF S HNHITE24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

81

15 ¥R R MY o (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

E_BFE+_A=+—HLFE

1. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In 2019, the business of satellite TV broadcasting operated by the
subsidiaries of the Company had been disposed of. This business
segment is presented as discontinued operation in accordance with

HKFRS 5 accordingly.

The results of the discontinued operation for the period from 1
2019 to 25 June 2019 (the date of disposal) was as follows:

1. CRILEEEE
R-T—h&E  KATHEL
BEELHECHE - HEBHBRIEE S
WM ERIB S 2B 0 IR R 2T -

January ERIEREEHR T —

A ENEEE

NE—A—H=E

—NERAZTHEB(HE EI,HH)JJ:H;ﬁFaEJZ%%

I

Period from

1 January 2019

to 25 June 2019

BEZZE—-NF

—A—H%

—NnF

NAZ-+HB

1F B

HKS'000

FHET

Revenue Wz 18,990
Cost of sales 8 & B AN (71,965)
(52,975)
Distribution and selling costs A5 I 8 B AR (1416)
Administrative and other expenses T R EAb 2 (16,909)
Reversal of expected credit loss on trade receivables FEWE ZEREHREEBERD 1,140
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HEERIELEEB K E 149,948
Profit before taxation B 5% A1 5 A 79,788
Taxation Ti1A -
Profit for the period from discontinued operation BRI EEEHE NG F 79,788
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. ZEEEE

2020 2019
—EZEHF —nF
HK$’000 HKS"000
FET FAET
Continuing operations BEREER
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/ BN FEEEE DR,
(crediting): (Gt A) :
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EE5ME (H5E13) 3,240 2,805
Other staff costs Hh 8 TAA 89,583 114,424
Contributions to defined contribution plans, FE R RE IR
excluding Directors (EERIN 873 4577
Defined benefit obligation expenses RERFNEERR - 41
Total employee benefit expenses EERAAZRRE 93,696 121,847
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFZEMERE 750,280 891,951
Write-down of inventories (note i) FEMUR (FaED 1,856 958
Reversal of inventory provision (note i)* BEFEREE (T (7,420) (2,584)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses EERARZNFERA 744,716 890,325
Provision for expected credit loss on loan JEU AT B A R EUR B X
receivables due from former subsidiaries B EEEERRRE - 429,410
Reversal of expected credit loss on loan JEWE R TEHEEE B R
receivables - (8,794)
(Reversal of)/provision for expected credit losson  #4F —[E# & QA AR E R FE R
loan to an associate ZEEE (BE), B (25) 7
Reversal of expected credit loss on amount due JiE g — e & R B SR IB RO TE HR
from an associate EEBERD (2,316) (5,836)
Provision for expected credit loss on trade JEWE SRR TE I E R EE
receivables 4,257 5832
Provision for/(reversal of) expected credit loss on HivremEENEREEBE
other financial assets s (BE) 1,916 (8791)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BE

12.

“FET-A=+—BLEFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

12. REEBHE (F&)

2020 2019
e B F —E-hF
HK$’000 HKS' 000
FER FAT
Auditor's remuneration ZE RN & 2,550 2,064
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - MR M RETE 15,960 19,190
Write off of property, plant and equipment MIE -~ R N R 1,349 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERNE 3,162 3,365
Amortisation of intangible assets (note i) mR A (D 5,358 4521
Release of prepaid lease payments BEEIFEHERIA 56 64
Government subsidy IR #76 B (1,035) (273)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - WERFEHNEE
plant and equipment (note i) (PR 5T 478 2,293
Loss on written off of intangible assets (note i) W ER EEMEE (T - 28
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note i) HEW BRI M EE (i) - 940
Loss on termination of a lease HmIFRERBE 59 -
Interest income (note i) FLEUA () (785) (3,583)
Interest income from an associate (note ii) E— S QR R BUA (BEEi) (1,006) (1,013)
Rental expenses on short-term leases AR ENHEERS - 2,695
Property rental income (note i) EE- N o) (16,778) (16,148)
Net foreign exchange gain (note ii) HINERTEE 5 U 25 58 (B AT i) (8,708) (2,362)
Discontinued operation BRI
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB N GRIEITE - 323
Other staff costs H 8 TRA - 8,341
Reversal of expected credit loss on trade receivables &Y E 5 Bk 27978 Hi{= B 518 # [0l - (1,140)
Rental expenses on short-term leases RHHENHERS - 907

Note i: Included in cost of sales
Note ii: Included in other income, gain and losses

* The reversal of inventory provision mainly arose from inventories that were sold

subsequently during the year
Included in the total employee benefit expenses is an aggregate amount

of HK$892,000 (2019: HKS4,589,000) in respect of contributions to
defined contribution plans, including Directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 13. EEMERBEBESFHFAL
PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as DR EMTFIEZESHBSEINT -
follows:
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-ZF+-HA=+—HLEE
Mr. Hung Mr. Wu Mr. Li Mr. Lau Mr.Kuo  Mr.Chen
TsungChin ~ ChiaMing  ChakHung Yau Cheung JenHao ~ Wei Chun Total

ARE  RE® FEE PR BAR  RE

b3 yk:3 pi:3 pik3 yk:3 pi:3 Ch
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEr TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx

Fees ik 120 120 120 180 120 120 780
Other emoluments: HiwB4
— Salaries and other benefits —ELREMBET 1473 - - - - 968 2,44
— Retirement benefits schemes —BIRBAEER
contributions 19 - - - - - 19
Total emoluments B & B 1612 120 120 180 120 1,088 3,240
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—_ZT-—NF+_A=+—RHILFE
Mr. Hung Mr. Wy Mr. Li Mr.Lau Mr. Kuo Mr.Chen
TsungChin -~ ChiaMing ~ ChakHung  Yau Cheung JenHao  WeiChun Total

rRE  REH O FEE WP AR RES

pited k3 Kk pited k3 piid 15
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TEL  TART  TAT  TEr  TEx  TER  TER

Fees e 120 120 120 180 120 120 780
Other emoluments: LR
— Salaries and other benefits —HeREMEN 1453 - - - - 560 2013
— Retirement benefits schemes —RIREME B
contributions 12 - - - - - 12
Total emoluments Hews 1,585 120 120 180 120 680 2805
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
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F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2019: one) was director of the Company whose emoluments
is included in the disclosure set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2019: four) individuals are as follows:

13. EEMERAEESHFAL(H)

(b)

HEEEHFAL
rEBAZESHEALTT  —H(ZF
—NE: —R)AARTES  EENE
EEAEX - EBINE(ZE—hE: /W
Z)ATHBISMT -

2020 2019

—-®E| —T-NF

HKS$’' 000 HK$ 000

FHET FHT

Salaries and other benefits FekEMERN 6,869 6,347

Retirement benefit schemes contributions R RAR B AT &R 205 153

Total emoluments 7,074 6,500
The emoluments were within the following bands: e N FATEE :

2020 2019

—BoBE| —TNF

No. of No. of

employees employees

EE A EE AE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T 2 1,500,000 4 7T 1 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2= 2,000,000 7 7T 1 3

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% JT & 2,500,000 7 7T 2 -

During each of the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors and
top paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. No director waived

any emoluments for each of the years ended 31 December 2020

and 2019.

—TECEFER-IZT-NEFETZA
=+—HRLESFE AERLEEEM
EEREaFEEINNE  EAHBE
SRR NN R B A B SR B o
HE_Z-_ZTFR_ZFT—-—hLhF+ZA
=T—HIERFE HBEESHETRT
< -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

S

14.

15.

“EE+ZA=+—BHLEFE

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

Continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the consolidated loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$12,594,000 (2019:
HK$315,461,000) and on the weighted average number of 3,294,556,472
(2019: 3,278,825,335) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Continuing operations

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing operations is
based on the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
from continuing operations of HK$12,594,000 (2019: HK$441,458,000)
and the denominators detailed above for basic loss per share.

Discontinued operation

For the year ended 31 December 2019, basic earnings per share for the
discontinued operation attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK3.8 cents, based on the profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 from the discontinued operation of HK$125,997,000 and the
denominators detailed above for basic loss per share.

Diluted loss per share

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise
of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of
those options is higher than the average market price for shares. Diluted
loss per share for each of the two years ended 31 December 2020
respectively is the same as the basic loss per share for both continuing
and discontinued operations as there were no dilutive potential ordinary

shares during both years.

14.

15.

RE
EFEFRTENBRE-_T-_TF+-A

+
=t+t-HALEFENRIBRE(ZF-NF:
&) o

BREE

BRELREE

FERBRIFASE T
BREABEEBRBARREE AEEEGRE
[E51812,594,000 7% 7T (= F — L4 : 315,461,000
BL)RAFEEEBRITETBRME TS EH
3294556472!&(—7:é FLEE : 3,278,825,335 % )

FHBRE & T

BEREEBNEREABBNZBAR
AEBEANEEAFERELEEBNER
12,594,000 7L (ZZE—NF - 441458000,%3575)
R EXFF i SRERBEN S

o

BRI EZTE

HEZZT-NF+-A=+—HLEFE &R
AR AEHERIEEEEBNERELRRFT
A3 NERERIELEEBBE_T
—NWF+ZA=+—HIFE&H 125997,000
Bk EXFFHLSRERNBEN D TTE -

BR#EER
RRAR R HATTERBREZ TEESRRN

ZFETE - Mt ESIREE R R I ERR
SRS HATERONE - ARABE-T oS

Ft+-A=t B LMEFESFLBRETE
BB ARBEAARERERERIEE
BEBZ BRESEERMER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8175 i R BT 5

FII (/"E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
—SEoEFTASt-RLEE

BHE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥ - BERRE

Frechold  Leasehold Furniture,
[and outside land outside Leasehold Plantand  fixturesand Motor ~ Computer
HongKong  Hong Kong Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
RERUA B
WAAER RERUA BE BE%E
i HEELH BT NERE HERKE e RE EERA Eh
HKS000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS000
Ti#n TEn Ti#n TEn TR AR TER Thn TEn
Cost A&
At January 2019 R-Z-nE-A-H 3578 343 535 13203 211060 4959 1632 6470 30690
Exchange relignment Eif% (20) ) (969) (108 (2,746) (29 (3) () 4451)
Additions hE S S 7968 624 9993 1,158 - 1619 21362
Transfer to investment properties EETRENE = = (1525) = 5 = = (1525)
Disposals e - - - - (33240) - - (109) (333)
At31 December 2019 RZF-NETZAz1-A 3558 3411 61830 13,719 185,067 5889 15% 6,674 0174
Bxchange realignment By 3% 2 (19 2837 54 7965 4l 7 % 12569
Additions RE - - 7% 290 3687 mn 1141 7% TAT8
Transfer to Investment properties ERTRENE - - (8256) - - - - - (8256)
Disposals hE - - - (210) (13159) (1) (1480) (264 (15899)
Termination ofa ease RIEE - - (1659) - - - - - (1659)
Wite off s - - - - (10,104 - - - (10,104)
At 31 December 2020 RZE_5FT-A=t-H 3784 33% 55,352 14247 173477 6723 133 7570 205881
Depreciation, amortisation e BEREE
and impairment
At January 2019 RZ5-nE-A-H - - 31,686 7472 152988 1658 1483 5971 201258
Bichange realignment ERA% - - (533) (89 (1,649) (163 (1) () (0754
Provided forthe year ERER - - 4567 1330 1507 1,285 I % 2878
Eliminated on disposa HER - - - - Q77 - - (1027 (22804)
Eliminated on translerto BEERENZRYY
investrent properties - - (43) - - - - - (493)
At31 December 2019 RZE-nE+ZR=T-H - - 35,067 8713 144638 2780 1505 5002 198125
Exchange realignment ERRE - 4 1328 7 6081 575 (8 49 8537
Provided for the year ERER - 5 4695 869 11463 1,104 182 759 19122
Himinated on disposal HERHE - - - (216) (12317) (756) (157) () (14769)
Termination of 3 ease g - - (647) - - - - - 647)
Eliminated on transfer to ERERENERYY
investment properties - - (2436) - - - - - (2436)
Witeoff ik - - - - (6759) - - - (8759)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZEFZA=1-A - % 38207 9443 141,110 3703 38 6233 199177
Canrying values RHE
At 31 December 2020 RZE-E5+-R=1-H 3784 3300 17145 4804 32367 3020 947 1337 06,704
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=T-A 3558 341 26563 5006 40429 3109 7 1472 83619
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z-_ZHF+-_A=t+—HLFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land outside Hong Kong Nil
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong ~ Over the term of lease

Buildings 50 years or over the term of
lease or land use rights,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the term of lease,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10%-33'/5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%-33'/3%
Computer equipment 20%-33'/:%

Certain leasehold land and building is pledged to a bank to secure a
mortgage loan and general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
43).

Note:

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets, included in the property, plant and

equipment, by class of underlying asset is as follows:

16. M2 - BNz E (&)

bt - BB MEREEE (B2 TSN 12
THFRUBREAEFNE -

REB AN i3
KA SR+
RE BN HEHR
E L
g SOF KA EHisk
T EREFHR
(AL H B%E)
HEWEEE 20% 3k F E HY X
(AT H A%E)
R = B i 25 10% 2= 33'/5%
Rt BERE 20%
B
AE 20% = 33'/,%
B E 20% Z 33'/:%

REBDEEMAE i RETER - EAE
FAEBERER K —RRITEE T
£T43) °

ZIARBEERRB O MERBEEGIAME  BER&ERH)
ERREDFER DT

Right-of-use assets FEHEEE Leasehold land Motor
outside Hong Kong Buildings Vehicle

RE B LS
HEE L BgF RE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 R-_ZTE—hF—HA—H 3432 7,361 -
Additions NE - 7,968 -
Depreciation e - (3,365) -
Exchange realignment fE 5 % Qn 85 -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-AF+-A=+—H 3411 12,049 -
Additions NE - 796 222
Termination of a lease wILFE - (1,008) -
Depreciation e (50) (3,095) a7)
Exchange realignment EH A% ©61) (513) -
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZTF+-A=+—H 3,300 8229 205

2005 % B TEEERERART 169
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

17. BAHEENR

2020 2019

—EZEHF —E-hF

HK$’' 000 HK$ 000

FET FAT

At beginning of the year REF) 992 1326
Exchange realignment VE H 582 59 (22)
Released to profit or loss BEEx (56) (64)
Transfer to investment properties RS EYE (909) (248)
At the end of the year RERXR 86 992

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEWMABEINA

Current asset mENE E 28 57
Non-current asset FRBEE 58 935
86 992
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

18.

A

ZEFTA=T-RLEEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWH
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-hF—A—H 149,738
Exchange realignment HE W 3B (3.216)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment and HEEWE BELRRER
prepaid lease payments FENHERIEA 4,242
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss REEPRRZAFEESH (3,142)
At 31 December 2019 —NE+=-_A=+—H 147,622
Exchange realignment PE 5 5 & 9,941
Transfer from property, plant and equipment and HEEME - lﬁ?i/% REER
prepaid lease payments TN HEERT 40,827
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiERP AL ATEES 7,052
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_FEF+-_A=+—H 205,442
Note: Btz -
The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2020 and 2019 AEEREMERR-_ZE-_ZEFER-_Z—NF+=A

have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group and possess
appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant
locations. The Group's investment properties were valued with reference to valuation by the
valuer using market comparison approach or income approach as appropriate.

For market comparison approach, the fair value is determined by considering the market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in similar location and conditions,
adjusted by the discount specific to the quality of the Group’s properties as compared to the
comparable properties.

In arriving at the valuation on the basis of income approach, the fair value is determined by
capitalising the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance or

provision for the reversionary potential of the properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is

their current use.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group reclassified one of its owner —
occupied factory in the PRC as an investment property. As a result, gain on revaluation of
properties of approximately HK$25,573,000 was recognised in other comprehensive income
upon transfer of property, plant and equipment to investment properties.

=t+—HHR lﬁkmﬂﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁ@ RN B #ETT
HENEEER - KMTHEBRMERIRAERNEEH]
ERENBLAERTEGEN  BEYEREHNYE
EITHENESERRER ARERENENGHESH
HEME A TS BUARRIAE (RIERTE ) EE -

SATIGLLEOEM T » R T ETIEE BB R AR HE R
PMENTSRZBEEET  TIRAEENYEERY
ORI A LB S A TR (R -

BRARZBLEER  DEREHEBEMELFES
WABEEAR - UMEN A ERRANE N REE BE
MZERAFE -

REFZEVENAFER  WENGES RREMRENE
BERE -

RBE-Z-TF+-A=+—HILFE FEEHELR
B — ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ DERREBEME - Bt B
B R B R R E AR M E (U E 49 25,573,000
AL A R EW R IR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
RE-F-TF+-A=+—HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Following are the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties as at 31 December

18. REW= ()

M ()

R-B_ZER_ZT-NF+_A=t—HAREMFELE

2020 and 2019: THERAANEZERAENT
Fair value at Fair value at Range or Relationship of
Fair value 31 December 31 December  Valuation weighted unobservable
Category hierarchy 2020 2019 techniques Key unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
—ECEF “E-NF
+=B=Z+-B |[tZRA=+-H FABRGAER
55l AFERE A¥E AYE  AERE IRFABRGAE GENMETIE DFENER
HK$'000 HKS'000
TR FAT
Industrial properties Level 3 13,902 12838 Income Reversionary yield (derived 59%-6% (2019: 5%-6%) The higher the reversionary yield,
inthe PRC* from monthly market rent) the lower the fair value
RRTIEME F=R W& AEGERA S%E6% (ZE-NEF: ARBUAES RTEEE
(ZRAEMEE) 59 % 6%)
Estimated rental value Renminbi The higher the rental value,
('RMB") 2.4-RMB15.0 per the higher the fair value
month per square meter
(2019: RMB24-RMB15.0
per month per square
meter)
EieEE BRAETHRARYE HeBEMR ATEMS
(TAR¥)247E
AE#1507T
(ZZE-NF:§R
BYRRAR®K 24T
EARBIS0T)
191,540 134784 Market Discount on quality 32.2%-48.3% The higher the discount on quality
comparison of properties (e.g. location, (2019: 44.5%-44.7%) of properties with reference to
size and asking price of the comparable, the lower the
properties) fair value
W5 L BE EMEDZ(PIOMERS - 322%5483% BR2EMEREYE
RNRME) 47 & (ZE-n%F: NEEZRRES
4450 2 44.7%) RFEBE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 R R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
ST AT BLEFE

BHE—

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Fl_lI_ (/,,g

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A

reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:

18. REWH ()

i

REMENRATVTEAS=REFUATEFTE - BORH
RORFEFBELHFOT ¢

2020 2019

—E-EH —E-NF

HK’000 HK'000

FER FHET

Opening balance FUHEH 147,622 149,738

Exchange realignment ME 5 9,941 (3,216)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment and EEAVE BERRBER

prepaid lease payment TR ERE 40,827 4,242

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss REZHERZATEEZ 7,052 (3142)

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRERB=ZREFTELTE) 205,442 147,622

There was no transfer amongst levels during the year.

Investment property is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and general banking

facilities granted to the Group (note 43).

* The address of the industrial properties in the PRC is Xin Qian Jin Village “San Shi".

Tanzhou County, Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The property

comprises Block 1-2, 4-7 and dormitory factory. The term of lease is medium.

FA - ERP 2 FAHRESE -

BREMHEBEBTRT  EARTAEERRER K —K
RITEE R (M5E43) ©

PR Bl TEY Ut /55 B EIRE P L A
BURSTATEN - MEBEE 12K - 4-7RRITEE
&= o HMBEPH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

19. GOODWILL 19. BE

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-hF
HKS$’' 000 HK$ 000
FET FHT

cosT R A
At beginning of the year REL] 93,016 219,595
Exchange realignment P 5, 3 2 868 (936)
Derecognised upon disposal* P B R AR R - (125,643)
At the end of the year RER 93,884 93,016

IMPAIRMENT w1
At beginning of the year RE] 83,744 209,387
Derecognised upon disposal* PO AR AR AR - (125,643)
Provision for impairment loss L E S 18 B - -
At the end of the year RER 83,744 83,744

CARRYING AMOUNT AR B

At the end of the year RER 10,140 9,272

*

174 sandmartin Interational Holdings Limited / 2020 Annual Report

Goodwill allocated to the cash generated unit of Satellite TV broadcasting ("MyHD

CGU’) was derecognised upon the disposal of SCG group as set out in note 36(b).

* HREEFEEGEFRSELFEML((MyHDREE
E B ) BV RE P RE 36(b) P EL H 6 SCG SR B 42
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z-_ZHF+-_A=t+—HLFE

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to

19. BE (&)

SBBERANS  BECHREUTREES

the following CGU: By -
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FH&T

Satellite TV equipment and antenna products HEEERZBERREES

— PBTCGU —T@Eﬂ?ﬁzfﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ 10,140 9,272
Goodwill allocated to other CGUs with gross carrying amount of NEEEMRESEABVNHEZREDBES

HK$83,744,000 was fully provided in previous years.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the management assessed
the expected recoverable amount of PBT CGU based on the higher of
value in use and fair value less cost of disposal.

The recoverable amount of PBT CGU has been determined based on the
value in use calculation, based on a detailed budget plan, the expected
cash flows beyond the detailed budget plan are extrapolated at the
growth rates stated below. The key assumptions used for value in use
calculation are as follows:

83,744,000787C * DNBEFE R RERE -
REE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—"HILFE &
BEEZREABELATFEREDERN AR
SEIHBEREESEABMMTER AT Y E
T o

BEMRSEEEUN T WRE SR REF
BNEEEREREENEDAEE - WK
TIg R R E R ETRE R I AN AR IR
TRE - EREEFEINENIZ/RAT

PBT CGU
BENEBESELEN
2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
Budget plan EHEEE 5 years & 5 years £F
Growth rate iR R 5% 5%
Discount rate Bh IR = 14.03% 13.08%

The growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. The cash flow projections are from the most recent financial
budget approved by the management. Other key assumptions for
the value in use calculation are budgeted gross margin and budgeted
revenue, which are determined based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations regarding market development.

ZIEREAERITEMNERBENAER - T8
BEHBTENFOREERX - RERER
RIAEREBHUEN KT MM BRBE REE - £
REEAENZNEBEIERRASAEER R
RIaENE  WRIBDIRAHEEMHBERSE
&Efiﬂm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8175 i R BT 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE

20.

FII (/"E

SE-EEt-ASt-RLEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BLEE
Product Customer
technology relationship Others Total
BEmE W BEFBR Hith et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FAT FATT FHET FHET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Pt 5Ea) (Mf7ED) (P 5E )
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—NF—H—H 29,702 35,584 5,753 71,039
Addition INE 136 = - 136
Written off b (128) = = (128)
Exchange realignment PE 5 385 209 (208) (16) (15)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—NEF
+=-—A=+—H” 29,919 35,376 5,737 71,032
Addition INE 542 - - 542
Written off it 38 (5,080) - - (5,080)
Exchange realignment M i, o 2 2,857 (150) (10) 2,697
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+-A=+—8 28,238 35,226 5,727 69,191
Amortisation and impairment 8§ &R E
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 27,230 26,115 4,529 57,874
Exchange realignment & H & 223 (181) 9) 33
Provided for the year RE AR 45 4,219 257 4,521
Written off i 85 (100) - - (100)
At 31 December 2019 —hE
+=-A=+—H 27,398 30,153 4,777 62,328
Exchange realignment E 5 % 2,888 (132) (7) 2,749
Provided for the year RE T 224 4177 957 5,358
Written off i (5,080) - - (5,080)
At 31 December 2020 RZTZEF
+=—A=+— 25,430 34,198 5,727 65,355
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
+=—A=+—H 2,808 1,028 - 3,836
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NF
+—A=+—H 2,521 5,223 960 8,704
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: FizE -
(a Product technology represents software acquired from independent third parties for (a)
the development of TV set top box. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over 3 years.
(b) Customer relationship represents contracted and non-contracted customer (b)
relationship arising from the acquisition of Pro Brand International, Inc (“PBI") during
the year ended 30 June 2013. The amount is amortised over its estimated useful life
of 7.5 years on a straight-line basis.
(@ Others mainly represent the research and development unit acquired through (@)

the acquisition of PBT during the year ended 30 June 2013. The mature research
and development unit, which can support the Group's product development, was
separately recognised as intangible assets based on the accounting policy stated
in note 4(m)(iii). It was recognised based on the fair value at the date of acquisition.
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over 7.5 years.

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

EFHEREEARE =T —
1% 8% Pro Brand International, Inc ([PBI) T E A& %)
RIEEHEFPBIER - %S BUR 7S FM Al FE A
FEANIRE R R# S -

20. BEEE (&)

I N

EmBPiEAREERBIRIMABLE =7 KB
M - BN =FRNARBVERHR -

=ZERNAZTHLEFER

HihF BB BREBE-T—=FA=1+HBILLF
JE R UL 1 B R T U R B B BE AL o B PR B
B A SRS AR B A E MBI B - AR BT R Am)Gin) P
HEIBRREBRAABVEE  TREWEER
M RFEER o BEN 75 FRABERE R ©

21. R—EBEQTNER

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HKS$' 000 HKS$ 000

FHExT FET

Share of net assets of an associate Eih—EBERR 2 FEE 90,393 76,600

Movement of interest in an associate is as follows: R—EEE AR EamERINT

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HKS$’ 000 HKS$ 000

FHExT FET

At the beginning of the year 7] 76,600 67,800
Share of profit of an associate JEAE — L R B 2 % A 16,277 10,320
Exchange realignment B i, o 2 (2,484) (1,520)
At the end of the year PE R 90,393 76,600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

. ey — ==
21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21. R—EBE QR TRERS ()
Note: FfeT -
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had interests in the following associate: RIZE-_TEER-_E-NFE+-_A=1+—8 KEHERI
TEE QR EER
Form of business Place of Place of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation Class of shares Held by the Group  Principal activities
BEREE XBRBERX AR B S b BE AR i B R 13 %8 Bl AEERE FEE®
Dish Media Network Limited company Nepal Nepal Ordinary 47.12%  Provision of Direct-To-Home service
Limited (“Dish Media") for satellite TV
BRAA =YL IRl T ER REEBREHEZAERS
Summarised financial information: B RS E Rt -
2020 2019
s 53 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+-—8
Current assets mEBE 84,160 65,846
Non-current assets EREEE 416,994 430,972
Current liabilities mE e & (268,855) (332,821)
Non-current liabilities ErRBEE (40,464) (1,433)
Year ended 31 December BE+t-ZB=+—-HLEE
Revenue g 346,243 311,135
Profit for the year KEE R 34,544 21,902
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEE2HEKFEE 35,544 21,902
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the Ll E R R A M RMERTERN —EEE Q)
interest in an associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements: BUHE T A RRTE @ FERV HTAR -
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Net assets BEFE 191,835 162,564
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBHEBEREERDLD 47.12% 47.12%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in an associate REBR—ABE AR 2 ERNEREEB 90,393 76,600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HE —EFF+-_A=+—HLFE
22. AMOUNT DUE FROM/LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE 22, B —REBELNR HTF—HBHE
N\ =] EIJ E £hH
NEINER
2020 2019
—EEHF —F-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FHET
Non-current assets EREEE
Loan receivables EE R 0) 22,155 22,130
Current assets MBEE
Trade receivables FEUE SRR (in 36,116 56,934
Interest receivable on loan receivables FEWE 7 FEU R B 240 4,795
Amount due from an associate JE Wi — ] B 2 D Bl SR IE 36,356 61,729
Notes: BFE -
0} The amount is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.75% (2019: 4.75%) per (i) ZHRBAEERFRIZETEFRR4SEFE(ZE
annum. The loan receivables mature on 31 December 2022. —NF4758)  BREFRR=_ZT=-_=_F+=A
=t+—RAEH-
(ii) Amount being unsecured and interest-free. The Group allows a credit period of 360 (i) R ENEEEETHE c AEBELTHEERA
days. 360 H
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables due from an JRUY— Rt N A ERE SERARFHREIR
associate, presented based on the invoice date, at the end of the IRBRZHEAZ Y| ZBRE DI T -
reporting period:
2020 2019
E 2§ —E-NF
HKS$’ 000 HKS$'000
FHERT T
More than 360 days BiE360H 36,116 56,934
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM/LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE 22,

(Continued)

Expected credit loss on trade receivables due from and loan to an
associate was based on the accounting policy stated in note 4 (0)(ii).
Based on the Group's assessment, the Group recognised the reversal
of expected credit loss on trade receivables due from an associate of
HK$2,316,000 (2019: HK$5,836,000) and reversal of expected credit loss
on loan to an associate of HK$25,000 (2019: provision for expected credit
loss of HK$7,000) during the year.

Further details on the group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
amount due from and loan to an associate are set out in note 39(b).

E— B E AR, 8T —EgE
ANENER (&)

R —HBERRNEREZERRSL T —
M E AN ERNBEEEEE T ERKH
A0 FTE S ETRETE - BIEAEBMET
fly » FRRNEED FERER— RS A RNE
WE 5RO TEHE EE B R 2,316,000 # T
(ZZ—N%F : 583600087T) M4sF— &
AR ERTEHEEEERR 250008T(=
T—-NF  BHEEEIERE700087TT)

BERASENEEBRREL BRI —REZ
RANRBRGT —HBERRNERZEE
[\ B HE — 2 ST ESIBABT FE 39(b) ©

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. BERER

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HKS$’ 000 HKS$'000
FERT FET
Loans receivables (note i) JE W E FR (B 5 D) 12,989 12,989

Loans receivables due from former subsidiaries JiE W BT B B R R A JRE UCE R (B R
(note ii) 643,626 646,366
656,615 659,355
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note iii) T R BR B (M i) (656,615) (659,355)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HEZZ—

TEL-ASt+—AILEE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

@

(ii)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had loan receivable amounting to
HK$12,989,000 from a third party. The amount was unsecured and bore interest
at 1.2% (2019: 1.2%) per annum. This loan receivable was fully impaired as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, as set out in note 36(b), the Group
disposed of the entire equity interest in Speed Connection Group Limited (the
“Disposal’), and since then, the loan receivables from Speed Connection Group
Limited and its subsidiary MyHD Media FZ LLC (“MyHD") were classified as loan
receivables due from former subsidiaries.

The loan receivables due from former subsidiaries were arising from the disposal of
all interests in MyHD and the extension of the existing loans to MyHD. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2018 and the
circular of the Company dated 25 May 2019. The amounts were unsecured, interest-
bearing at rates ranged from 3 months LIBOR plus 100 basis point per annum to 10%

per annum and were matured on 31 December 2020.

The principal amounts of these loan receivables at the date of the Disposal were
US$71,298,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$552,711,000), in which amount
of US$9,554,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$74,064,000) due from Speed
Connection Group Limited, bore interest rate at 3 months LIBOR plus 100 basis
points per annum; and amount of US$51,244,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$397,249,000) and amount of US$10,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$81,398,000) due from MyHD (the non-wholly owned subsidiary of Speed
Connection Group Limited), bore interest rate at 10% per annum and at 3 months
LIBOR plus 100 basis points per annum respectively, and the corresponding interest
receivables were US$11,728,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$90,915,000). These
loan receivables and the interest receivables, net of the provision of expected credit
loss of HK$219,103,000 as at the date of the Disposal, amounted to HK$429,410,000
were recognised as loan receivables upon the Disposal.

In December 2019, management was given to understand that Speed Connection
Group Limited and MyHD were in serious financial problem and ceased to operate
in late 2019. As such, management considered these loan receivables were credit-
impaired and recognised life time ECLs of the total net carrying amount of these loan
receivables of HK$429,410,000 at 31 December 2019.

The provision of expected credit loss was determined by the management of the
Group based on the creditworthiness and the past collection history of the borrowers.

23. BWER (&)

GER

0]

(i)

RZE-ZER-_T-AF+_A=t—H0 A&
BEHEERT —RE=FHRWEF 129890008 7T
ZRBEREER  REMNRI2E(ZTE—AF 12
Bt - RN ERER T _TFR_T—NF
+ZA=+—A%2RE -

REBEE_T-—NF+A=+—HILFE AWM
WEESé(b ﬁﬁa~ AEBHEREBRERFR QA
ZEMEAEE((HESBE])  BltAE - RERE
£ BB R A R & EHM B A "] MyHD Media FZ LLC

(TMyHD ) 2 B ERE D R ATHTE R T E
EURIMBARNERDEELAHER MyHDZ

W AREE T MYHD IR BERIER - #1855 %
Eﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%:?*ﬂi+:ﬂi+*EZA
EARARBHAZTE-—NAFRAZTHBZBEK
ZESHEAEEN  H=MEAMBIBTREREM
T0EEHZI0ENFEANERFE  WERZT=ZF
F#+-A=+—BHH-

RNEEEEAH ZEFRKERZASEA
71,298,000 3 JT ( #8 & H #9552,711,0007 7T )+ E &
fE Wk SR SR B AR A7) 2 9,554,000 7T (B E R4
74,064,000 7T ) & = {8 A fa FER 1T R ZE IR 200100
EEEWEF RE - MEKMHD (EHEEE
RAZIEEEMBRR]) Z51,244000%F 7T (HE
A #9397,249,0007% 7T ) £.10,500,0003 7T ( #8 & 7 49
81,398,000/ 70) B A RIR G FI & 10 E K& =1l A w3
RITAZEFR SN 100 EEREFHE - ABERERFIS R
11,728,000 % 7T (8 & 7 990,915,000 7T ) - A&
=I5 B R TEEME B R R R 219,103,000/ T4 -
75 W B R N e MR B A 42941000078 T 0 B
HEFHEBERAERER -

—NE+ZA EERENEBEHEEIGRA
ﬂ&MyHDﬁEﬁiﬂiﬁﬁ%Fﬁ% R ZT-AFRR
IH2E- A EEERAZSEVREREREER
(EN ﬂ?ﬁ%%%ﬁ%%%ﬂﬁéf?—ﬂi‘f'fﬂ:‘f'—
B2 BREF(E 4858429410000 8 TTRER 2 BITE B2
i={ -0

FHEEBREGRAEEETEEERERAZE
BIBEYERC S ET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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8175 i R BT 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
“EFFTZA=TBLFE

BE

FIE (,”E

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23. BWER (&)

Notes: (Continued) 5T« (48)
(iii) Allowances for doubtful debts (i) RIREE
2020 2019
—s=-%% —T-nE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At the beginning of year REH 659,355 50,713
Reversal of expected credit loss TEEEEEERE - (8,794)
Written off I 85 - (28,930)
Recognised upon the Disposal (note (i) P& B IE 1% 72 (B R Gi) - 219,103
Provision for expected credit loss (note (ii)) 8 515 B 5 18 B 4 (BT 5 i) - 429410
Exchange realignment M X 3 & (2,740) (2,147)
At the end of year REXR 656,615 659,355
24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EEHIF
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised by RAFEAEBEERRANEIERELHIES
the Group and movements thereon during the year: E/S(afE) REgEHnT -
Fair value Provision
adjustment  Revaluation forPRC  Accelerated
onintangible ofinvestment  withholding tax Provision
asset properties tax depreciation  and others Total
BREE RE H mE
AVERE NEER FENHEBHE HERE BERHt Y
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET THET FER
At 1 January 2019 —NE—R—8 (5649) (40,943) (6,206) (650) 3,147 (50,301)
Exchange realignment fEH AR 23 279 362 - (16) 648
Charge to property revaluation reserve  FAY) % &t B 1% - (692) - - - (692)
Credit to profit or loss for the year RAEEBRA 1340 785 - - 215 2,340
At31 December 2019 RZE-NFTZA=t—H (4,286) (40571) (5,844) (650) 3346 (48,005)
Exchange realignment 0 i, 2 & 17 (1,776) (347) - (12) (2,118)
Charge to property revaluation reserve 1A ¥) 3 & 1 B & #1 B - (8,524) - - - (8,524)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss for RRFEERAGNR)
the year 1,387 (1,763) - - 878 502
At 31 December 2020 “ECRF+-A=+-H (2882 (52634) (6,191) (650) 4212 (58,145)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

24, EERIE (&)

A 75 2 ¥R 8 1F IR IE B R A R ) AT 1
T

2020 2019

—F-%F | T F

HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000

FHExT FET

Deferred tax assets RLETRIEE E 4,212 3,346
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEEE (62,357) (51,351)
(58,145) (48,005)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of
HKS$117,544,000 (2019: HK$106,243,000) available for offset against future
profits due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, withholding tax at
10% is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
been provided for in full in respect of undistributed profits retained by
PRC entities in the consolidated financial statements.

BAREEBARIENRR  RZE_TF
TZA=1+—8  AEBEAREROBIEEE
117,544,000 7T ( = & — J1 4 : 106,243,000
7C) AR SR AR )

REBEFBEEEMERE B-FT\F—A—
B e BB B 1 B % aE’J/ﬁﬁ*'JFﬁé/)fEE’]HXE
FAMIENT10% - FEIERARENRSD
MBERNELERIAD 28NRA Eﬁ%#&%ﬂﬂ
Y
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
2020 2019
—g-®E| —T-N%F
HKS$’' 000 HKS$"000
FHERT FET
Raw materials 45,077 39,922
Work in progress 23,050 28,276
Finished goods 88,506 152,851
156,633 221,049
26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. EWEZHRN BEUEERHEME

W kg
2020 2019
—F-%F| T NF
HK$'000 HKS$ 000
FHExT FET
Trade and bills receivables & ”51 g5 EE )SUE g Z= 4= 122,505 207,495
Other receivables 85,199 119,305
Total trade, bills and other receivables R EE R

NIB A% 207,704 326,800
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26.

(Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 to 120 days to its
trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the year:

FEWREZER  BEREBERHME
W iE (48)
AEBRTHESEFPZEERTHR0OE
1208 © BIRE SRR RERERERNFRIZE
ZREZF 2 EREITAT ¢

2020 2019

—EEHF —F-NF

HK$'000 HKS$ 000

FExT FHET

0-30 days 0% 30H 80,637 93,837
31-90 days 31290 H 15,727 63,794
91-180 days 91 £ 180 H 14,140 36,489
More than 180 days @180 H 151,762 146,351
262,266 340471

Less: Loss allowance B SRR (139,761) (132,976)
122,505 207,495

The other classes within trade, bills and other receivables do not contain
impaired assets. Expected credit loss on trade receivables was based
on the accounting policy stated in note 4(o)(ii). Based on the Group's
assessment, the Group recognised provision for expected credit loss on
trade receivables of HK$4,257,000 (2019: HK$4,692,000) during the year.

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from

trade debtors and bills receivable are set out in note 39(b).

FEURE SRR - FEUN IR K H A FE UL GRIB Y
Hi R T BEERELE - BB HEX
M TEHR (= B B 1B AR IR I 5 4(0) (i) ATt & 5HBUR
T8 BBAEENMGE - AEEREAFERER
FEWE 5 AR A T8 B{E B 518 1 1 4,257,000 78
TL(ZZF—NF © 4,692,00087L)

ERAEEEEBRRANERKE SRR E

WRREENEERRAE — SFBHNME
39(b) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i < B

At (&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE

27.

28.

—SEoEFTASt-RLEE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure short-term
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 43). The deposits carry fixed
interest rates ranged from 0.01% to 1.69% (2019: 0.013% to 1.69%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement
of short-term bank borrowings.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise bank balances and cash
held and short-term bank deposits that are interest-bearing at floating
interest rate and are with original maturity of three months or less. The
remaining bank deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.01% to
0.3% (2019: 0.01% to 0.63%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, cash and bank balances denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$4,222,000 (2019: approximately
HK$4,668,000). RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies in
the PRC. Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
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27.

28.

2IEFRITER

ZE IR A EERMNEIRITEE MK
FRITOER(ME43) - ZSETFERDIENT
001 EZE169E(ZZE—NF : 0013EE169E)
ZEETEFFEE - EERBIRITERER
g EIRITIE BB BI&RRER -

RITEFRAS
AEBRTEGERRSBIEMSRITETRE
SUARBZHHEFERR=ZEALIIR =
AEHR R ERITIER  FBRBITHERENT
001 EZE03B(ZFE—NF : 001 EZE063E)
ZHEREEFFIRG L -

NRZEBE-_ZE+-_A=+—H0H ' RARE:t
BEMIRE MIRITETFHAE4220008L(ZF
— L 4946680008 7C) ° ARBIEFEIE
AT EEB B AIRAINE o IRIBEFHINEE
GBI FAEE - EENMNEEERT  AEE
RAFBIBERERIT AR ARE AINEFH R INE
7% o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z-_ZHF+-_A=t+—HLFE

29. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. BNEZERN BENREREE
=h
F™IE
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
THET FAET
Trade payables JER B SRR 207,593 301,571
Bills payables e FE 502 477
Other payables and accruals (note) E b fE T B R FEETIE B (MY 5E) 81,429 89,702
289,524 391,750
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables, presented FENE FERNRENEERENRESRIFEEH
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting periods: HIZ27| 72RO T -

2020 2019
—g-%5| —T-N%
HK$'000 HKS$’ 000
FHET FAET
0-30 days 0230H 132,225 235,388
31-90 days 31290 H 50,735 23,212
91-360 days 91 2360 H 16,772 31,153
More than 360 days 8 38 360 H 8,363 12,295
208,095 302,048

The average credit period for purchases of goods is 90 days. BEEEMMTHEESRROA -
Note: An amount due to a Director of HK$6,859,000 (2019: HK$5,328,000) which was M EfENSRERRE— $F§ﬁ§$ I 6,859,000 78 7T

(ZZ—h*F : 532800087T)
BRERESER -

EREREEN - %

included in other payables. It is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HE ZEFTA=T—RLEEE
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. EHNEE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-hF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FAT
Contract liabilities arising from: AATEENEHNERE:
Sale of goods HEEY 30,407 23,509
Movements in contract liabilities BHEEEH
2020 2019
—%F —qu :i_hg
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Balance as at 1 January HR—A—B#&#% 23,509 23,614
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FAABERREVFTA
recognising revenue during the year that was aBaEzkEZER
included in the contract liabilities at é-\ HBERD
the beginning of the year (23,509) (23,614)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of HEEWBRKRBEER
receipt in advance of sale of goods ABHBEEM 30,407 23,509
Balance as at 31 December R+-—A=+—B#&% 30,407 23,509
The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance consideration EHBEREFZEHRDRELPNBRNREARR - K
received from customers. The Group's sales contracts generally have an SEEESH 2 RRTAIMFH KA —F A
original expected duration of one year or less and accordingly, the Group T Bt AEECEAESYBREELE
has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 not to disclose the 155)72,\@%—3%577—% CWEE RSB ERNS W
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations for MERFERATFESN TRHRBOREZ
the contracts existed that has an original expected duration of one year X%ET% °

or less at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

31.

F_TFET-A=T—HLHFE

PROVISION FOR FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

The Company had pursuant to the guarantee (the “Guarantee”) given
in favour of MyHD irrevocably guaranteed to pay all financial obligations
of MyHD in relation to the third amendment agreement to the content
supply agreement (the “Content Supply Agreement”) dated 3 October
2016 which was entered into between MyHD and MBC FZ LLC. The
Guarantee does not expire and the maximum amount payable by
the Company under the Guarantee should not exceed US$3,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,332,000).

The Guarantee does not contain any conditions which need to be
fulfilled or any circumstances which must arise before MyHD can enforce
the same and demand payment from the Company. Notwithstanding
that MyHD failed to observe all its payment obligations under the third
amendment agreement to the Content Supply Agreement, since the
date of the Guarantee up to the reporting date, the Company has not
received any demand for payment from MyHD under the Guarantee.

At 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group had recognised the provision
for financial guarantee amounting to US$3,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,332,000) in relation to the Guarantee.

31.

MBEREE

RNA R BRI MYHD Z FaRfEH 2 IR ([#8
1) - DEHE MR E iﬁMyHDEEﬁMyHD
BAMBC FZ LLCFREIM A A= —R"F+ A=
EIZWA@%JET;?%%(FW@&@T&%J)“*T &
SME I BREET - RIERTET A
MARBBBEREN &R BT EEA

3,500,000 % 7T (AHE 749 27,332,000/87T) °

BRIYTSEMETER 2 GG MBEEE L
ERIENR - LARRBRE MyHD AT (R K B sk AR
B3R o BE MyHD R BE BN N B LB 5
FE-MEEIHE T 2BNRET  HEER
HEIRREZHRE A S - NA R EEREM
B MyHDARIRIERIBE 2 KBk -

R-_E-NEFER-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—H "
$%lEEﬁ%{%ﬁﬁa@z%%z3,500,000%75(*Béé?
49 27,332,000 70 ) 2 A TSR (R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FORTHEYEARENDED31DECEMBERZOZO
BE_Z_ZHF+-_A=+—HLFE

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 32. RITRHEMEE
2020 2019
—EEHF —N&F
HK$’ 000 HKS$'000
FHExT FET
Bank loans RITER 171,379 211,342
Other loans H i E R 241,605 241,271
412,984 452,613
Analysed as: DA
Secured B 155,370 201,878
Unsecured 4 3 257,614 250,735
412,984 452,613
Carrying amount repayable: AR T HAREESYERE:
On demand or within one year BEXRSF—FRA 383,144 441,045
In more than one year but not more than two years #838 — & {8 T #8 8 M 29,840 11,568
412,984 452,613
Less: Amount due within one year shown under R RBEEETHAR —FA
current liabilities B HAFk 1A (383,144) (441,045)
Amount due after one year —FIR I E R HIE 29,840 11,568

The range of the effective interest rates on the Group's bank and other

borrowings are as follows:

REEMRITREMEE 2 BRAEHEE L
™

2020
—EC%F

2019
TN

Interest rate borrowings

The security of bank borrowings is set out in note 43.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION 33.

The Group have defined benefit pension plan, covering substantially all
of its qualified employees in India. The amounts of employee benefit
obligation recognised in the statement of financial position represent
the present values of the unfunded obligation.

The defined benefit obligation was determined based on actuarial
valuation performed by Charan Gupta Consultants PVT LTD, an
independent actuary, whose registered office is located at B-40, Sector
52, Noida-201 307. U.P., using the projected unit credit method.

The components of net benefit expenses in profit or loss and the amounts
recognised in the statement of financial position are summarised as

follows:

(@)  The provisions for defined benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position are shown as follows:

REBNEE
AEEARERNBAESE - REBKED
REENSERREE - RMBEARNRERNRE
BRMETSBEERHEREENRE -

FE B F E (E AR 5 98 32 45 & Bl Charan Gupta
Consultants PVT LTD#E A TEET B {5 BIRE 1T
KI5 EH{ERETE ° Charan Gupta Consultants PVT
LTD &Y 5% i 3% 22 BE 32 7% B-40, Sector 52, Noida-201
307.UP.

RIBERIE T B R NI 5 SRR ED 7 LA R A SR
ARFPHEANSEBRLT

@ REAVBRARERNRAER®ANEL
BT

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FHET FAET
Non-current liabilities: FEMEBEIE -
Present value of unfunded obligation AEFEENEE 32 33

2005 % /EGFTEEERERART 191
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued)

(b)

33. AERBAEE (&)

The movements of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: b)) AEBHNEEZ2ZZIHAT :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of the year REL) 33 136
Current service costs BV EA AR 75 A AR = 41

Re-measurement gain recognised in B E A 2 TED K 55 AR

other comprehensive income EFFrENRE - (83)
Written off 1 88 - (60)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B (1 m
At the end of year RER 32 33
The net expenses recognised in the consolidated profit or loss are © REABHEPRIAZELEESWNET -

analysed as follows:

2020 2019

—EZEHF —E-hF

HK$’' 000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Current service costs BV ER AR 75 A AR - 41
Interest cost on benefit obligations HEMNE LT EKA - -
Net benefit expenses &A B F 5 - 41
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued) 33. AERMEE (F)
(d)  The principal actuarial assumptions used in valuing the provisions d) HERBEHARANACENEERERF
for defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period AT ERE®REZNT -

are as follows:

2020 2019

—g-%5| —T-N%

% %

Bt ERralsd

Discount rate 8538 & 6.45 6.45

Rate of salary increase HEERX 11.00 11.00

The average duration of the provision for defined benefits at the RBMEHHRO AT RMNBEN EHEE
end of the reporting period is as follows: mr

2020 2019

—E-BF | ZTNHF

Number of employee EE& 8 9 14

Average past service (years) S5 PR 7S R R (4R ) 2.99 2.10

Average age (years) EHEE (BR) 34.28 306

Average remaining working life (years) YR s TEFEE () 23.62 274

Weighted average duration (years) INHE S5 F B (F) 4.36 4.36
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

33. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued)

The quantitative sensitivity analysis of the provisions for defined
benefits at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

33. AERANEE (&)
e RmEHRNATRNEEN (LG
EoHuT :
Decrease in Increase in

provisions for provisions for

Increase defined benefit Decrease defined benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
RERA RERA
BRE SHEBERD TRz BHERELEMN
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
AL it AL T
Discount rate B IR =X
At 31 December 2019 NZTEE—NE
+ZA=+—H 05 (4) 05 4
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTF
+ZH=+—H 0.5 (8) 0.5 8

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on the provisions for defined
benefits as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period.

34. LEASES

The Group as a lessee:

The Group lease a motor vehicle and a number of land and properties

in the jurisdictions in which it operates as its office premises under non-

cancellable lease agreements, which comprise only fixed payments

over lease term. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and

subleasing the leased assets.

LHMBRESWDRBEEEEREN WS
MARZEAEZHREATENBED
TEEHmMET -

34. HE
AEBMEREEA
7N £ [BR 35 7 AT SR B a0 L AT A P E £
AEEERETERET LR EIEAR Y

RGP ZEHEESERERRNEE MK -
—RME  ARETNSERLOHEEEE -

2020 2019

—E-EF —NF

HKS$' 000 HKS'000

FHExT FET

Current liabilities mEaE 3,855 4,545
Non-current liabilities ERBaE 4,399 7,714
8,254 12,259
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee: (Continued)
Future lease payments are due as follows:

34. HE (§)
x%a#%ﬁmxwg>
R EZIEE PR T -

|| e

| |""|'||ﬂ

Minimum lease Present

payments Interest value

BEBAERE B B{E

2020 2020 2020

—F-%F —B-%F —F=%F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHE THR THR

Within 1 year —F R 3,984 129 3,855
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERWERN 3,497 61 3,436
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBEBERAEFA 976 13 963
8,457 203 8,254

Minimum lease Present

payments Interest value

HEHEFHE IPS) BRI

2019 2019 2019

—E-NF —E-NF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Within 1 year —F R 4,739 194 4,545
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHRERWENRN 4,049 110 3,939
After 2 years but within 5 years WMEBRERAEFR 3,836 61 3,775
12,624 365 12,259

2005 % /EFTEEERERAT 195

!

| 'r\



e

i

I|'III||IIIIIIIJI[II]II|'1| I| II III I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT_A=tHLHFE

34. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor:

Property rental income earned from leasing of the Group’s investment
properties during the year was HK$16,778,000 (2019: HK$16,148,000).
The properties held by the Group have committed tenants for the next

one to twenty years.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments

receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

34.

HE (&)

AEBERAHBEA
FAREBHEFTEEREMERSHMERS
WA 516,778,000/ 7T (ZF— L : 16,148,000
BIL) c ARBRBEMERRR—E_+FE
BRIHMF -

%ﬁiﬁi’ﬁﬁlmfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂZWKT
ST A T 5 RO SR SR ED S PR R B R TR B 2
T -

2020 2019

—F-%F | ZTNF

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

FHET FAET

Within one year —FR 22,003 18,398
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREXRMFA 21,240 14,987
After 2 years but within 3 years MFBER=ZFA 18,451 14,537
After 3 years but within 4 years Z—FHERUFA 14,848 11,295
After 4 years but within 5 years MEZRERAFTA 11,742 9,350
After 5 years hFE 63,991 32,579
152,275 101,146
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FORTHEYEARENDEDS]DECEMBERzoZO
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. BRA
Number of shares Amount
R4 E A K|
HK$'000
FiB
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEI10E LA E B
Authorised: VETE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, N_ZE—-hF—H—A8-
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —hFt+ZA=+—8"
—TTF-A—-BAK
—EFF+-A=+—8H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAR:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and W_ZEZ—-hE—H—8"
1 January 2020 —E-NAFTZA=1+—H
NZZE-_ZEF—-H—H 3,278,825,335 327,882
Repurchase of Taiwan Depositary Receipts Bl fE 2 217 R E (it @)

(note (a)) (97,748,625) (9,774)
Issue of shares upon subscription (note (b)) BB B 1T I 19 (B 5F (b)) 100,000,000 10,000
At 31 December 2020 RN—_F_TF+-_A=1+—~H 3,281,076,710 328,108
Notes: ML -

(a) Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 9 April 2020, 15 @ RAARFAMB-_2_2FNANA 2%

April 2020, 29 April 2020, 5 May 2020, 4 August 2020, 10 August 2020 and 22 October
2020 in relation to, among other things, the delisting of TDRs of the Company as
requested by the Taiwan Stock Exchange and the completion of the repurchase of
TDRs and the cancellation of these repurchased TDRs.

The TDR delisting was effective from 15 June 2020 pursuant to the relevant rules
of the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Within 50 days from and including the date of TDR
delisting, a TDR holder may request the Company to repurchase their TDRs pursuant
to the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation Procedures for Applications by Taiwan
Stock Exchange Listed Companies for the Delisting of Securities at the repurchase
price of NT$0.271 (equivalent to approximately HK$0.071).

FMA+HRHE  ZEZFTFMA=-+AA - =T
ZFRARAR - ZZETFN\ANBERZZT_FF
NATRAERZZZZF+A-FTZAZAE  AB
BH(HPRE)ARAZEEGFRAREREEE S
RSGMBFREIE FHARTEAEEEEFLRER
HHZECOBNEEFRE -

BEZEFHFZHZEBMRL - ZEFTRE
—E-TFEXNA+TRBEKIE LT BEEELS
Mi%ﬁim A (B#EZH)BE508A EET%
i ;”éﬁ*ﬁ/\“ﬂfﬁﬂfi EELERFIIRMDAERRD

NG L Eﬁ%%\%ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁidiﬁﬂ
}Tz@@%ﬁ*%ﬁ‘*ﬁﬁozﬂi(ﬁﬁ?éﬁ%’ﬂo,om%ﬁ)@ﬁ%
HEBGFILRSE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE_Z—

ZFE+_A=+—BLFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

(Continued)

As at 3 August 2020 (being the last date for TDR holders to submit their requests
for the Company to repurchase their TDRs), there are total 97,748,625 units of TDR
that were required to be repurchased by the Company. The TDRs so requested to
be repurchased by the Company had been surrendered to the depositary agent
for cancellation. The total amount paid for the repurchase of TDRs is approximately
NT$26,490,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,996,000) (which is calculated by
multiplying the total number of TDRs required to be repurchased by the Company
with the Repurchase Price of NT$0.271). The difference between (i) the amount paid
for the repurchase of TDRs and (ii) the carrying amount of the relevant share capital
of approximately HK$9,774,000 was recognised in the capital redemption reserve. In
addition, the transaction costs directly related to the repurchase of HK$1,065,000 are
accounted for as a deduction from capital redemption reserve.

On 31 August 2020, the Company completed the allotment and issue of 100,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each under general mandate. These ordinary shares rank
pari passu in all respects among themselves and with other existing ordinary shares.

Details of the allotment and issue of shares are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 August 2020, 10 August 2020 and 31 August 2020.
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35. R (&)

MEE -

(@)

(b)

(#)

(&)

R-ZZ-ZTFENA= EI(EU;%T%%;&%%/\E*
AARBOEZEFTREZ&EAH) AARA
BB A $£97,748625 1) EE1F 5 Ef’ée$gﬂ?¢z£ﬁ?
BEZEEGFARECR FEAEEEE - X1E
O Z & RE 2 B ST A6 % 26,490,000 7T (17
ER#H16,996,000/8 ) (RARRATHER 2 2E7F

BB RESRARBER A% 0271 TTEE) - ()3
BEEFTREXNNOSEEG *EE@H&KE’JEEE{E

#19774000 B T2 ZHERERBERIFEERER -
ok - BBl S A B A 3 5 K AN 1,065,000 8 TLE 1E A
BABEOFENMBRIER AR -

ZEZEFNA=F+—RH  ARFRBERERRE—
MR AR 8 BE 2% & B 17 100,000,000 A% B A% 0.1 B T 2 E iR
B o EEBBRANE U 2B REEMIRA EBRE
E A HEERFHAL

RSO DELL SN EE P EE RS
FNARB  —E_ZEN\ATHER-Z-_FFN
A=+—BHAE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a

36. Hj’EBﬁE'Dﬂ

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed of @ REZ
the entire equity interest in FLT Hong Kong Technology Limited. F£E $ % & H & E 5 FLT Hong Kong

The net assets of FLT Hong Kong Technology Limited at the date

of disposal were as follows:

Technology Limited #] &

kv H||E|.|!I}"n

—NWE+-A=+—H1

BORME AHE RS o FLT

Hong Kong Technology Limited 7 H & B HA

WEEFENT

HK$'000

FAT
Trade receivables EWE 5 BR K 975
Other receivables H At lEU FRIE 319
Trade payables R E S ER )
Other payables and accruals HAb T RIB R EETIE R (350)
Net assets disposed of T EmEETE 940
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries included in profit or loss FABEENHENBRRERE (940)
Total consideration BRE -

Net cash outflow arising on disposal
Cash consideration
Bank balance and cash disposed of

HEEEMIR SR HF5HE
REeHE
PR EMRITEFRRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z_ZHF+-_A=+—HLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36. HEME QT (&)

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed by REBEE_ZE—-—NF+_A=+—81
of the entire equity interest in Speed Connection Group Limited, FE - -FAEELEEAEBREEBRA
Ocean QOasis International Limited (incorporated in the British Al ~ Ocean Qasis International Limited (A
Virgin Islands), Ocean Qasis International Limited (incorporated HEREZBEESFMA ) « Ocean Oasis
in the United Arab Emirates) and MyHD (collectively referred to International Limited ( 72 Bl bz (A B & 28 &
"SCG group”). The Disposal was completed on 25 June 2019 (the B FEM A ) R MyHD (538 Al SCGEE )
“Disposal Date”). The net liabilities of SCG group at the Disposal MEHRAER HEFEER_F— N
Date were as follows: FRAZTHA(HERH] K © SCG

EERLEAHNEEFEAT

HK$'000

FAT
Goodwill* [EE -
Inventories FE 3,145
Trade receivables FEWE RN 17,368
Other receivables HAth pE IR 4,627
Cash and bank balance Re RIRTET 1,558
Trade payables FERTE S ER (133,414)
Other payables and accruals HMENFIERERTIEE (33,607)
Net liabilities disposed of Frt &/ B &% (140,323)
Non-controlling interest SEFE R =R 391,442
Loan receivables due from SCG group (note 23(ii)) FEMS SCG &= B & 5k (P 5% 23 (i) (429,410)
Provision for financial guarantee (note 31) B I EOR ¥4 (Y52 31) 27,332
Cost of disposal HE KA 1,011
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries included in profit or loss STAEROHEMNE R EWEs (MEE1)

(note 11) 149,948
Total consideration BRE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEANRESRLIFEE

Cash consideration (US$1) RERE(ETL) -

Bank balance and cash disposed of FriERMRITETRRE (1,558)

(1,558)
* Goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit of satellite TV broadcasting * PREHEERER 2 RSELBU R

was fully impaired as at 31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT-_A=tHLFE

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. ZEREFRERNE

CASH FLOW

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

BEREEBELNBEHR

Bank and
other Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITR
Hitnfg & HEEE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAT
(Note 32) (Note 34)
(B #E32) (Bt 7 34)
At 1 January 2019 Eé:%*hi*ﬂ —H 459,071 7,378
Changes from cash flows: RKERES mHE
— Proceeds from new bank loans —ERITE fﬁ’\ﬁﬁ 18 3KIR 56,122 -
— Repayment of bank loans —EERITEX (59.273) -
— Payment of interest element of lease liabiliies ~ — XN E & EF £ &5 - (221)
— Payment of principal element of lease liabilities — X NTHE B ERS 5D - (3,663)
Total changes from financing cash flows BRERSREERTE (3,151) (3,884)
Exchange realignment P& 5 3 (3,307) 576
Other changes H b # &)
— Finance charges on lease liabilities —HEARENHMBER - 221
— Recognition of lease liabilities —mHREEAR - 7,968
Total other changes HmEeh@sm - 8,189
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 —hE+=-A=+—8
EN_Z_ELF—-H—H 452,613 12,259
Changes from cash flows: KBRS E
— Proceeds from new bank loans — FIERT E KT 1S BOR 77,802 -
— Repayment of bank loans —EBEETER (120,065) -
— Payment of interest element of lease liabilites ~ — X E & &M B H - (192)
— Payment of principal element of lease liabilities — XNTBEBEZRE 5D - 4,173)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERES RSB (42,263) (4,365)
Exchange realignment VE 5§82 2,634 (1,799)
Other changes H i & &)
— Finance charges on lease liabilities —HEBENUBKER - 192
— Recognition of lease liabilities —mwREEAaE - 1018
— Termination of a lease —®RIFHE - 949
Total other changes HmEsh@wsa - 2,159
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_FEF+_A=+—H 412,984 8,254
200F %/ BETABERERAT 201
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

E_BFE+_A=+—HLFE

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 32, and equity reserves attributable
to owners of the Group, comprising issued share capital and various
reserves and retained profits.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues and the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debts.
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38. EXEKER

AEBEEREEAURRANEEITIAFEL
g BBREESRERERIE R R -
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PIENEERAEEEE ARIGNERFHE
(BREBTRARSBFHEGARREEN) -

EEEHRTELRER - FRR 28D
EEREARAREZARERBEH RS o
REESNEZ  AEERBEEFROBITR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HE_Z-_ZTHF+-_A=1T—RHLEFE
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. M ERERE
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities (a) ERMEERLSBREENSE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HKS$000
FERT FET
Financial assets at amortised cost REBEREAGTENEREE
Trade and bills receivables EUE SRR N ERERE 122,505 207,495
Bank balance and cash RITHEGFEARS 88,871 66,340
Loan receivables EUWE & - =
Pledged bank deposits BEBIRITER 3,957 3,973
Other receivables H fth, & W 5 I8 43,675 58,563
Amount due from an associate FE U — 4 Hﬁé‘ EWNCIE S 36,356 61,729
Loan to an associate BT —HEBERNANER 22,155 22,130
317,519 420,730
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEBATENSREE
Trade and bills payables BN E SRR K ENZER 208,095 302,048
Lease liabilities HEBE 8,254 12,259
Bank and other borrowings HMITRHEMEE 412,984 452,613
Other payables H Ath & 508 81,429 89,702
710,762 856,622
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMERBEEBEERBE
The Group's major financial instruments include trade, bills and K’é EHNE2MBETABEREKE SE
other receivables, loan receivables, loan to an associate, amount ngﬂlmﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂréq& RIE - ERE
due from an associate, pledged bank deposits, bank balances FBRTEBERRNER FW—
and cash, trade, bills and other payables, lease liabilities and bank F? ﬁﬁ%f’\ AIFIE - BEEBIRITER
and other borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are HEERRE  ENEZIEN FEH?
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these TJ@ &E@TEH K18 - HEBBERRITR
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these HmEE - 2505 T EFIBR AR
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors R TXHEHINEZEMBIARH
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented B [ Bax K2 4] P& AR 7% 55 [ B O D3R
on a timely and effective manner. BEEEREEZEZRAR  ABERKE
B REREUEE B8 16 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z_ZHF+-_A=+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk

0]

Currency risk

The Company's subsidiaries have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign exchange
risk.

39. BIKEKRERE (&)

(b) FBEBRERERERBEK(E)

iz
() SMERBR

RARRHBRRETINEEE -
BN Sk [ T £ S R B

o

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency (as RMEER - REE NS (BY
in relation to the functional currency of the relevant group NEBEBERINEEYmE )t
entities) denominated monetary assets and monetary ENEBREEREBAENREE
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: NN
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
Assets Liabilities
EE a8E
2020 2019 2020 2019
=_EF T—NGF |ZEBEZZ2F | ZFT—IF
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHETT FET FET
RMB AR 252 80 71,986 36,892
usD X7 43,587 42,773 290,878 298,243

The Group is mainly exposed to USD and RMB relative to the
functional currency of the relevant group entities, which are
mainly RMB and USD respectively. The Group does not have
a formal foreign currency hedging policy. But management
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposure and enters
into forward contracts when movements in the exchange
rates are outside management’s expected range in order to

minimise the exchange rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_TFET-_A=T—HLHFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

0]

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in functional currency of respective
group entities against USD and RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes both USD and RMB monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
A negative number below indicates an increase in loss
where USD and RMB strengthen 5% against the functional
currency. For a 5% weakening of USD and RMB against the
functional currency, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the loss for the year.

Bt 7 [ By B B (1)

(b) HHEEREEEEREE(E)
mEER ()
0 SMNERPBR(E)

BRRE DT ()
TRAVWASER S EBE TR
B EETRARE LR TFE5%
M BRRE © 5% BFTIR AR -
REEEBEINEERNAIRESE
BEMIEL TG - URE SR
ReERERREHRUELRARE
FIEMEMEERBRE - TXATR
BEEETRARKEHINGEE £
5%t - SEEEM ERET
R AR 5 T B8 B W T BE 5% B -
RIFT R A F EE B E £ HE R
-7

2020 2019
—E-RF —hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAETT

Increase in loss for the year: F BB -
— RMB — ARE (2,694) (1,380)
—USD — %7t (10,200) (12,847)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_Z_ZHF+-_A=+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

39. BIKEKRERE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HBEBREEBERKE(E)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) misERE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) F=E B
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in REEmMBRABINMEE22 - 23 &
relation to fixed-rate loan to an associate, loan receivables 27 E’] EEHGLT —HEBERARNE
and pledged bank deposits set out in notes 22, 23 and 27 - B E R R EERIRITIE A
and fixed-rate bank and other borrowings. &fﬁ, SRITREMEEN A FEF
EEK o
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in NEBJRE N 5 28 PTENT BIRTTAS
relation to variable-rate bank balances as set out in note 28 FHZE fETﬂﬁEﬁﬁEiﬁﬁi/ 2
and variable-rate bank borrowings. F =B o
The exposures of the Group's borrowings to interest rate RWEBR - AEBEEBERNXZ
changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows: FMAESHRBDT
% of total % of total
2020 loans 2019 loans
HERERE HERE
—EZRF HEIE —hEF E@En
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 111,639 27% 180,855 40%
Fixed-rate borrowings FEBMEE 301,345 73% 271,758 60%
412,984 100% 452,613 100%
The Group currently does not have any interest rate 7N ER [ 35 BRI A LR R | f
hedging policy in relation to interest rate risk. The Directors EAR] A R SR BUR - ﬁ%#:ﬁi‘é%%
monitor the exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider BRI T BT EE L P EAF
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise. [ g o

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR arising from the
Group's USD borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
ST AT BLEFE

S

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The bank balances of the Group carry floating-rates of
interest and have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Directors consider the exposure is insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank and
other borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
change is used and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase or
decrease by HK$401,000 (2019: HK$659,000).

Credit risk
The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of

counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31

December 2020 in relation to each class of recognised financial

assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position. In order to minimise

the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a team

for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other

monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken

to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the

recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of

the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses

are made for irrecoverable amounts.

39. KRB EE (&)

MHEEEE B RREBER (H)

mEER ()
(i) FIxm@(E)
BURRE AT

REBZRITHEFWAEZE - WH
HRenEMNEmk EERA
ZEBIAE K - I 25 U
EHr o

TXBRREDTERFEBRITRE
ffE EFTE A RERME - %D
RERBEEHRARAEFTAES
BMREFRERSR - A EE
EEVER - ENER B AN R
FAIREREEBIME

1ﬁ%‘J%iﬁﬁso1§%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁE@

BRETE  AAEEEHE_Z
:§$+ B=+—BItEENE
BNk 44010008 L (ZF
— L 659,000 7T) °

EERR
R-ZZB-_FE+-_A=+—H AKHE
FESNRAEERRAEHESECHE
RUBEENR %;T?ﬂi LETTEE
Rk 2 B REE MBI RN AR
ééﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ RREEERR  KN&E
EEEECSEK— %EAEEEFEL:A
A EEMEREBERERFIARRE
ERBRETTEN W DB B E TS - thsh - NE&E
B & S IR &R E B E 2 E R
BRI [E B R - AREGR BT TR [ & R
fEH B SR EEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using

a provision matrix.

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at

31 December 2020:

B EREE ()
(b) FHISEMREEEERBE ()

EEmR (&)

0

%H&?ﬁ’i%,ﬂ%ﬂ
AEERERNEHBEHEESE
E’Jif’%’ﬁﬁr;!ﬂ&f’i%ﬂﬁ KBS B R
{5 PR B SR E AT E o

TREHREEASENR-"T_FTF
TZA=+—HAZEBKEZERE
ERREEMEREEBRNER

Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
FEHIE B R (%) IREH A& E BiERE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHR FHT
Not past due K %1 HR 3% 82,481 2,233
Less than 3 month past due BEALR=EA 10% 25,392 2,618
3 to 6 months past due mB=="1EA 36% 23,616 8,524
Over 6 months past due m HR A N E A 97% 130,777 126,386
262,266 139,761

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZF-NF+ZA=1+—8:
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
T8 HA 5 18 & (%) RHEBE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not past due 7K % EA 3% 91,703 2,600
Less than 3 month past due wH DR =& A 4% 70,249 2,608
3 to 6 months past due mB=="EA 3% 33,022 883
Over 6 months past due o B AN E A 87% 145,497 126,885
340,471 132,976
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT A=t HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

The ECLs are disaggregated by different customer segments

as follows:

Media entertainment platform related products

As at 31 December 2020:

B EREE ()
(b) FHISEMREEEERBE ()

(EEER ()

() FEWESER(E)
TR B AIE R RE SR 5 I
mT

IR B IR 44 = FH B B o
RZE-EF+-_A=+—8":

Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
FAE B 18 R (%) IREAE BEBAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not past due 7K %8 Hf 5% 11,620 594
Less than 3 month past due wEI DR =18 A 15% 8,265 1,241
3 to 6 months past due BHEA=2=EA 40% 17,182 6,787
Over 6 months past due AN E A 98% 55,077 54,054
92,144 62,676

As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF+ZA=1+—8:
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
T8 B &5 48 2 (%) AR 4 ME R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Not past due 7K 4 Hf 6% 11,522 670
Less than 3 month past due BEALR =@ A 6% 11,628 748
3 to 6 months past due wHI= = 5@ A 29% 407 116
Over 6 months past due m A AN E A 92% 57,618 53,041
81,169 54,575
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HE_T—

(b)

FE+A=1T—HLFE

(Continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) M mEEERE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMBEBRESEBERKE(E)
Credit risk (Continued) EERER (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) ) ERESERE)
Other multimedia products H f@y}?}ﬁﬁzlz EEin
As at 31 December 2020: N-_ZE-_FEF+-_A=+—H:
Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
FAE B 18 R (%) REAE EERE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not past due 7K %8 Hf 4% 4,189 171
Less than 3 month past due wEI DR =8 A 25% 4,906 1,207
3 to 6 months past due BHEA==XEA 32% 5,355 1,711
Over 6 months past due m A AN E A 99% 72,622 72,197
87,072 75,286
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NEF+=ZA=+—H":
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
T8 B &5 48 2 (%) AR 4 1ME R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Not past due 7K 48 Hf 7% 10,996 776
Less than 3 month past due BEALR=EA 17% 10,347 1,775
3 to 6 months past due wHI= = 5@ A 13% 3,319 427
Over 6 months past due A AN E A 88% 84,195 73,765
108,857 76,743
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT A=t HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
0) Trade receivables (Continued)
Satellite TV equipment and antenna products
As at 31 December 2020:

39. BiIERER (&)
(b) BIEEARSEAERRE (E)

EEmE (&)
(i) fHﬁZf’f%ﬁﬁ (#8)
B2 BEYERIERKRE R

m:%:%¢+:ﬁz+—5=

bl
Iy |'||ﬂ

Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
FEHE B X (%) REAE BiERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not past due 7k 80 Hf 2% 66,672 1,468
Less than 3 month past due wEI DR =8 A 1% 12,221 170
3 to 6 months past due BE=Z=XEA 2% 1,079 26
Over 6 months past due A AN E A 4% 3,078 135
83,050 1,799

As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NEF+=ZA=+—H":
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
T8 HA &5 18 2 (%) fRm4E BiERE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Not past due 7K 48 Hf 2% 69,185 1,154
Less than 3 month past due BEALR=E A 0% 48,274 85
3 to 6 months past due wHI= = 5@ A 1% 29,302 340
Over 6 months past due 7 HA R i 7S A A 2% 3,684 79
150,445 1,658

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

BHEBERRDENBEMFNER
BERERFH - ZFHLREARU
[z bR T 5% 38 1 R 2 H R A A A
St~ BRI A R A 5k B R MK B
HIEHFHNE BRI BENT
G
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) MBREEE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMBEBRESEBERKE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERER (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) ) RRESERGE)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade

FRERWE S RKE B EER

receivables during the year is as follows: BT -
2020 2019
—EZEHF —nF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Balance at 1 January W—A— B8R 132,976 139,834
Provision for expected credit loss REKLEEBNBEHRESR
from continuing operations E BB 4,257 5,832
Reversal of expected credit loss from ERIMEEEENBREE
discontinued operation &5 1B B - (1,140)
Written off i 8H (542) (11,114)
Exchange realignment PE H 58 & 3,070 (436)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HH%E 139,761 132,976

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the decrease in
the loss allowance during 2020:

—  Origination of new trade receivables net of those
settled resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
HKS$4,257,000; and

— A write-off of trade receivables with a gross carrying
amount of HK$542,000 resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of HK$542,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT A=t HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. BB EREE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMBEBRESEBERKE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) 1EEmEE (&)
(i)  Loan receivable (i) FERER
The Group has credit risk in respect of loan receivables. As at KEEE EEEEFEJMZ EXEENEE
1 December 2020, the loan receivables were classified as A R-_E_TFE+_-_A=1+—

(iif)

financial assets at amortised cost. The measurement of loss
allowance are based on life time expected credit losses.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of loan

receivables during the year is set out in note 23(jii).

As at 31 December 2020, management was in the opinion
that the Debtors were in serious financial problem and as

such, life time ECLs was recognised for this debt instrument.

Amount due from/loan to an associate

The Group is also exposed to credit risk through its loan to
an associate and amount due from an associate. The Group
measures loss allowance for trade receivables from amount
due from an associate at an amount equal to life the ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for interest receivables and
trade receivables from amount due from an associate:

(ifi)

B BN REBARASEAS
RAE - BRAREBDER2HES
RSB -

FRNEEVEREHENBERES
S HFABI EE 23(ii) ©

R-TZ-FF+-_A=1+—8H"
BER %ﬁﬂ‘%/\ﬁlﬂiﬁﬁ&?ﬁ%
At - ZEHTAER A2 A
EEBE -

FEU— Rl & R A), e T — R B
NAER
AEETEBEGT HBE QA
FY B RN R I — R B R R SIE
RIEERR AEEZERNEH
BHEEBEN SR ERA RN
—fRBE R E 2 BYE BIRE R
B RBMEEEET B

TREH#HEBEAKEEREERR
KRB YR — B & 2 B 2 FE YA
BEEWEZERNFEREERR
HE R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Amount due from/loan to an associate (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020:

39. BiIERER (&)
(b) BIEEARSEAERRE (E)

EEmR (&)

(ifi)

el — R AT, 4T — B
RNEER(E)
R-ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—A8:

Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
FEHE B X (%) REAE BiERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Not past due 7k 80 Hf 0% - -
Less than 6 months past due wmE RN EA 0% - -
Over 6 months past due m BRI E A 9.99% 40,391 4,035
40,391 4,035

As at 31 December 2019: RZZE-NEF+ZHA=+—8":
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance
T8 HA &5 18 3 (%) FRH 42 1ME EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not past due 7 181 Hf 0% - -
Less than 6 months past due mE RN EA 0% - -
Over 6 months past due 7w HA R 4B 7N A A 10% 63,285 6,351
63,285 6,351
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. M E b ER (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMBEBRESEBERKE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERER (&)

(i) Amount due from/loan to an associate (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables from amount due from an associate during the

WJ&Z*F‘?E@%%"AT/ T
RNEIMER (&)

FRERERI—FHBERRZE
WE 5 RAE R BB ERE

year is as follows: m
2020 2019
—F-%F | T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Balance at 1 January R—HA—Br&esH 6,351 12,187
Reversal of expected credit loss FAEHEEEERD
during the year (2,316) (5,836)
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HOES 4,035 6,351

Net settlement of trade receivables resulted in a decrease in
loss allowance of approximately HK$2,316,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the loan to an associate was
classified as financial assets at amortised cost. The
measurement of loss allowance are based on 12 months
ECLs.

EUNE SR T4 S EBUSIERE
S #9 2,316,000 78 7T ©

R-ZB-_ZFFE+_A=+—8"
%—F'EJH%M“TE’JETA&EEEJEX
ANBREREE - BEBEGBRE
T EAEREEEEFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Amount due from/loan to an associate (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of loan
to an associate during the year is as follows:

39. KRB EE (&)

(b) FBEBRERERERBEK(E)

EEmpE (&)

(i) FEW—FEEEAR 4T MRS

NAMER (&)
FRELLT R

FERBMERE

AR EIRRERESHIT

2020 2019

—EEHF —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Balance at 1 January R—A—BR&EH 1,138 1,131
(Reversal of)/provision for expected credit FRBEHEEEE

losses during the year (B [El), B (25) 7

Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HO&E® 1,113 1,138

(iv)  Other receivables and liquid funds (iv) E{ﬁfﬂ&*ﬁlﬁﬁfﬁ@fﬁ/\
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has assessed that the N-_E-_TBF+-_A=+—H ' &K

expected loss rate for other receivables was immaterial. Thus
no loss allowance for other receivables was recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

S

“EHE+ZA=+—BHLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Concentration of credit risk of trade and bills receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 9% (2019: 10%) and
35% (2019: 88%) of the total trade and bills receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively. The Directors considered that the receivable balance
from these customers do not represent a significant credit risk
based on past collection experience and no bad debts have been
recognised against trade and bills receivables due from these
customers. Other than that, the Group has no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors its
liquidity requirements and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management and adequate
committed facilities of bank and other loans from banks and
financial institutions to finance the Group’s operations and meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are variable rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

(b)

39. KRB EE (&)

MHEEEE B RREBER (H)

SEREE (&)
ﬁ%?%%
AEBEREZERRERERAELN
EhEERBRAE%( ZE—NE  10%)
}35%( =F — NF :88%) Jin RIKE
AEBNSEATFPRAARF - EFR
A BEATKIRLER  REZSZERF

ARERREREZETEER

ZERBEZESNERREERLE
BEXREERR #UBARBUZEETFS

Z FENE 5 B TR M R AT AT IR © BR UL DA
Sh - AEEYEEMEBREREERR

B E 2 e
REBRBESRRSTE  ~AEEER
HiBEeFTRREREEERAEN
K?Wﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%'uﬁﬂﬁﬁ
P& mmERS EREAERE - ABA
AEBEBEERENEEHRRANRE
BeHmke

TRANAKEFITESRBE 2 FIER
BRFMBER - TRENAEEA LA
EERNERAENZT AHRER
Beneambls] - i1 EemAaE
Z BB A TR E < B8 B HmE -

ZEINRBENENACRERE -
%'J%/} %IEP(/?@J%'J—v—n‘I’ /ﬁ\ljﬂ{ﬁgiﬁ
SRERNBERR N ERHEH -

uu
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT-_A=+tHLHFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. BB EREE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMBEBRESEBERKE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REED R (&)
Liquidity risk tables MENE & Rk
Less than Total
1 month or 1-3 3month Over  undiscounted Carrying
on demand months to 1year Tyear  cashflows amount
PR-1EA =f8A EN:35)
HEER —E=f8A E-F BB-F RERAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER  TER AR TER
31 December 2020 “E-BF+-A=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities F {742 RMEE
Trade, bills and other payables ~ BN E Z R BN ZE
REAMER KR 106,564 182,960 - - 289,524 289,524
Bank and other borrowings BROREMEE 4,516 76,020 313,079 32,824 426,439 412,984
Provision for financial guarantee B I & (R & 5 27,332 - - - 27,332 27,332
Lease liabilities HERE 355 695 2,934 4,473 8,457 8,254
138,767 259,675 316,013 37,297 751,752 738,094
31 December 2019 “Z-NFE+-A=1+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRBEE
Trade, bills and other payables ENESERD ENZR
&H th & 5RIR 133,150 258,600 - - 391750 391750
Bank and other borrowings BRITREMEE 15,160 20,074 418121 11816 465,171 452613
Provision for financial guarantee Eﬁ%}%{% BB 27332 - - - 27332 27332
Lease liabilities HERR 405 809 3525 7,885 12,624 12,259
176,047 279483 421,646 19,701 896,877 883,954
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT A=t HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

Fair value measurement
This note provides information about how the Group determine
fair values of various financial assets and liabilities.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities that are recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair

values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded
at amortised cost have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash
flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount

rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written resolution

passed by the shareholders of the Company on 17 March 2005 (the

"Option Scheme”) which has a term of 10 years, the Company may

grant options to the directors or employees, any business consultants,

business partners, suppliers, customers, agents or financial or legal

advisers, debtors or creditors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,

for the recognition of their contributions, to subscribe for shares in

the Company with a payment of HK$1.00 upon each grant of options
offered.

Bt 7 [ By B B (1)

() AFEFE
A FREAEENAEE TR RE
ENBBEATFEZER -

EZRANEEMBRRIREBEHRAA
EReRmEERERABNETSER
HAFERE

HHERAANRNEREERBENR
FEDRBIFRABSRENNT - KER
REBHEUET  ERREANBAE
RRREFHOEERRAITIRE -

40. AR BEBRNRNRS
REAAARER-_EERF=-A++AR
BEE R R UL AT ARAE T B ([ B8 AR S
8 HARWAI0E - AARATAARA
STAMBARMESNRE - TAEBEN
A EBBLE - HER - BE  RIEHMEH
SHERFARY - B SERE A IS RS A LA 208
AATRS  (EAREHAEEEFOET o
AR TR 2 BERRAE A X 1 1,008 7T -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE—

40.

F_FTFET_A=T—HLFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the highest
of:

(M) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant;

(i) the average of closing prices of shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option; and

(i) the nominal value of the shares.

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period of not
more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Option Scheme, or any conditions stipulated by the
board of directors.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares of the Company
in issue from time to time. Unless further shareholders’ approval has
been obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Option Scheme,
no person shall be granted an option which, if all the options granted to
the person (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
month period up to the date of grant are exercised in full, would result
in such person’s maximum entitlement exceeding 1% of the number of

issued shares of the Company.
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40. IRHRERATRHIRS (&)

BRETEEEATI=ENGESE

()  AARRGREE B BRI AT W
=

(i) BRORERBRERDBARAMNIERS
AR R PrE)F R HE &

(i)  WPmEE -

EEBETEIMIER S IEE  EFERTEN
EMEHFTARRR T - BBARAE AT AR I B BB AT
BB 10 F ARERTTIE -

ARRRAIE HHEBRAEFTS B BB LR
BAARBRDETRMDBED10% - BFE
IRIEIE R ST &I PR 1 S TS R L
Sh - MBER M AEIEER 2B A HEA -
By -2 ALTOMERERE(BRECITERH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT A=t HLFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the share options of the

40. AR BEBARHIR

& (&)

TREBFARRAEFTHREMSARAB

Company entitled by the Company's directors or employees during the RS Y 2
year:
Number of share options BREZKE
Closing Price Outstanding at
per share 31 December Lapsed,
immediately Outstanding at 2019and cancelled,  Outstanding at
prior to the 1January Lapsed 1 January orexercised 31 December
Date of grant dateofgrant  Exercise price* 2019 during the year 2020 during the year 2020
RZB-1%
tZA=1-H
RERY R-Z-1F ;fmt Jmt 23 gt St 23
BN -A-8 -B-B REREXX f= H + B
REAH BRYUTE TRE WATHE  REAXA WATE  HERGE HARTE
(Note a)
(Fit3Ea)
Type of grantee
EHIN ¥l
Employees 22 October 2010 HK$2.050 HKS1.761 2,910,000 - 2,910,000 (2910,000) -
B8 “3-%F 20507 17617
tAZtZH
Weighted average exercise price 176 176 -
MEFHTEE
* Adjusted for the effect of the open offer completed on 19 July 2017. * RR T —tFEATNBERNAFAFENTE
YEHIFAE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

BHE_Z—

TEL-A=t+—AILEE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
Number of share options (Continued)

(a)

The share options were vested in stages as follows:

On or after the second anniversary of 50%
the date of grant

On or after the third anniversary of remaining 50%

the date of grant

Options granted on 22 October 2010 are exercisable until 21
October 2020.

All the share options has been vested and no share options
expenses recognised during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 in relation to share options granted by the Company.
The share option scheme was expired on 16 March 2015, however,
all share options outstanding at the end of the year are exercisable
until relevant dates detailed in note (a). The Company has no new
share option scheme as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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BREHE (F)

(@)

REEEFBNBIRENT

REH RS —BF 50%
R 2%
REHBHBRRE =BT # T 50%
o 2 1%
RIE-EF+A-+_HRENER
ERAIN —ZE-—TF+A-+—HATE

BRARBROERE mAEBKRED
BB HBE-_ZT-_TFER-F-NF

TZA=+—HILFE  TEERER
R - BREGFEHEN _ZE—HF=
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41.

“EHE+ZA=+—BHLFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution paid and payable in the future
years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represent contributions paid and payable

to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

The employees employed by the operations in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC operations are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC government is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Company, Aggressive Digital Systems
Private Ltd., operates a defined benefit plan in India (note 33) and certain
subsidiaries of the Company in other foreign countries are required to
contribute amounts based on employees’ salaries to the retirement
benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant local authorities. The
employees are entitled to those subsidiaries’ contributions subject to the
regulations of the relevant local authorities.

41.

RIERFE
AEBAEBERAEREBERIBE S
2 BRESHBABUITAZEFIANESE
2 WEARENEEDMRE - RIEBRES
SRR BEREBREADRIRRHIZTA
FILL R AL IR - AERBEHRBE ST EIN
ME—EEE M BELRENMRRK - REBL
EARERAD BN R R REFRAHANE K
B

BB IMELAN G B REMEEKE
RHBRHRKTE R B - AR E IR &
RAGTRN L RAZEESELNE N MEN
TR -

AEERPREEXEMERNEES RTE
BT RS BIZOR AR MET BIM K B - A8RE
BREXBEAINEEFEN—ELE R
BRREHNETEIMERK - AEEHHBEBFRL
HUR RN ET M ME— B RRIBFT 8IS R
FEHIHER -

AN - AR B &) —FEI BT B8 A §] Aggressive Digital
Systems Private Ltd. FAEN[E B E— B R E @ AT
2 (MFFE33) - RARIREMEIINE THEAR

RIBRREENS MA@ E BTN
RREAFTEIEH MR - RIBERH T E B

BO - RERRSZEHERRAER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 42, BB SIEE
(i) Transactions i R
AEBYHTATEBALIS :

The Group had the following related party transaction:

Relationship Nature of transaction 2020 2019
B & XHMHE —EC-EF —_T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Associate Sales of goods 47 2,162

R /NS HE S m
Interest income 1,006 1,013

M B WA

(i) Balances (i) #&R

AEBEBEB A T2 ERFBIANRGEE
BRSO R BB 5 22 BBt 29 ©

Details of the Group's balances with related party are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and in notes 22 and

29.
(iii) Compensation of key management personnel (i) TEEBABZHE

The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRNEERTEETREAMAMK S 2 5

management during the year was as follows: U
2020 2019
—EBEHF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FE&TT
Short-term benefits 45 A48 A 11,417 9,535
Post-employment benefits EERKEF 221 240
11,638 9,775

EEZRR EERTEEEENHFM
REBEARBELTGBBRETE

In the opinion of the Directors, the remuneration of directors and
key executives is determined having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.
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S

43.

44,

“EHE+ZA=+—BHLFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

43. EEHRH

i " f."'w”'“ :ﬂ'“ | Ty

il ’H'uuﬂ

RBERR - AKEE K TINEERR - R
PRRERITEERER

2020 2019

e 2 F —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Bank deposits RITER 3,957 3,973
Trade receivables FEUE B ER X 45,764 192,818
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MR E 22,361 26,785
Investment properties HEYE 205,442 147,622
Inventory FE 31,391 202,400

Note:  Banking facilities also secured by pledge of the Company’s interest in PBT.

ARBITRATION

On 29 September 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement (the "Agreement”) with an independent individual third
party (the “Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT FZE
("“Technosat’, a company incorporated in Dubai, which was wholly
owned by the Original Shareholder), to subscribe for 375 new shares
in Technosat at a cash consideration of US$7,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$58,170,000), amounting to 15% of Technosat's enlarged capital.
Technosat is set up to be engaged in operation of digital TV and radio
platform, pay TV channel, and sales and supply of TV set top boxes.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares
in Technosat which was fully provided for impairment in prior year.
Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Group is required to pay
a further US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15% equity
interest in Technosat. The subscription is not yet completed up to
the date of approval of this report as the conditions precedent of the
subscription of new shares in Technosat including the consent and
approval by government authority in Dubai has not been fulfilled.

44,

M - RIOTEETCEBARRRBE AR RAERER -

&R

NZEBE-——FAAZ+NB KEEHE—
HEEBE =7 ([ RBRR]) KTechnosat
Technology JLT FZE ([ Technosat] © — & 7 #t
HaMKz 2z 6 BRERRE2EHB) ]
B GG ([ =imE D Xfﬁ/ﬁﬁf’i
7,500,000 7T ( 48 & $458,170,0007% 7T ) 3R f
Technosat 375 BT % + B Technosat %é%jiﬂxﬁ
2. 15% © Technosat Z A3 B M) Bt B EEH T
BREERTE  NEBEERMBUKIEE LM
JEHMTES -

RZE—Z—FXNA=Z+H XEEEM
Technosat3x 1~ 57 € 2,500000% 7T # &
19,467,000/ 7C) + LAY Technosat RUFTAR + 7%
L2 ERNAFREGHRERERE - BIZZD
2R AN & B 78 5k 58 B Technosat 3% 15%
B AR ki — 2P S5 5,000,000 7T » AR R
Technosat #7 % 2 SR G (B IEEUS A F IS
EFIMRE RIE) MARENK - WREFER
HEAREEAES B HWARTEK ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
SEoEETASt-RLEE

BHE

44. ARBITRATION (Continued)

Despite the Group's repeated request for information, there were
no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder or Technosat
("Counterparties”) regarding the current status and the procurement
of obtaining government approval from the government authority in
Dubai. The Group has engaged legal counsel to act for the Group and
started dispute resolution proceedings against the Original Shareholder

and Technosat.

On 21 January 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat served a notice to the Group's legal counsel for a claim on the
further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this
15% equity interest in Technosat.

The Group's legal counsel has replied on behalf of the Group on 11
February 2013 in response to the claim of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat defending the claim as the Directors consider such claim
invalid, as the conditions precedent of the subscription of new shares
in Technosat had not been fulfilled and constituted a breach of the
Agreement.

The Group’s legal counsel had repeated request on the Original
Shareholder and Technosat to commence the next step on mediation,
but there were no satisfactory response from the legal counsel of the
Original Shareholder and Technosat up to the deadline set by August
2014. At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s legal counsel confirmed that there was no update on the
arbitration.
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44, HE (&)

BREARNEE—FERKFERRE K Technosat ([ ¥
FH D IRHERNECRIE BT P HE IR R
RGBS EBEIE  EHFARESARE
HEIE - REED R AEBBNURAREETT
= W H R R K Technosat & F 4 47 78 7
BF -

R-TE—=F—F-_+—H BERERE
Technosat #7122 B8 [ [A] 7N &2 [ ) )% 122 B ) X

E— @B BEREERE Technosat 3% 15%
IR 75 %5 ) # — 25 5K 1 5,000,000 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and

45. AATREEHBE AR
R-E-—FEER-—FT—NFE+_A=+—HK

2019 are as follows:

NEEEMBARFBEOT

Issued and
Place of/ fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
establishment/ (Class of registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
HMA L/ BERE/ EAAREERIRG/
nEER R/ BEnY KERBER AMER EMEREER LA IBER
2020 2019
s 33 ZE-hE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# A% E#% B
Top Peaker Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 15$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
(Top Peaker') ('BVI)/Hong Kong
RERANE LRk 10000£ 7 RERR
(ZBRLER]/
&%
Sandmartin (Zhong Shan) PRC Registered 15$19,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of
Electronic Co, Ltd* capital (note 1) electronic goods
RESTEFLHARLT Gk AR 19500000% 7T HEETER
(Ri3E1)
Pro Brand Technology (China) Co, Ltd * PRC Registered RMB27,000,000 59.1% 591%  Manufacture and
capital (note 2) trading of electronic
accessories
HUEEEFHEARAA HE AR ARE 270000007 HEREEETEN
(B2)
SMT Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Trading of
electronic goods
EHMRERAA & EER VAT EEETEM
Note 1: Sandmartin (Zhong Shan) Electronic Co., Ltd. is registered as a limited liability MisE1: FRUEBETETFTHAERARGFMA—HERE
company (wholly foreign-owned enterprise). ERROMIBERE) -
Note 2: Pro Brand Technology (China) Co., Ltd. is registered as a limited liability company fiE2: FILREEFRRAERARAGMA—HEREE

(wholly foreign-owned enterprise).

* For identification purpose only

RE I EBEDRE) -

*EHEE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 45. ZRBREEMBEAF (&)
(Continued)
Issued and
Place of/ fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
establishment/ (Class of registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
2ETR
HREL/ BERE/ EAABEERTREG/
NEER A/ BEnY BERGER EfER EREREEN LA IBER
2020 2019
s 33 ZE-hE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# A% B B
SMT Electronic Technology Limited Cayman Islands/Taiwan Ordinary Us$1 100% 100%  Trading of
electronic goods
FeEs/ /2 EER 17 EEETEM
SMT (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 100% 100%  Trading of
Limited electronic goods
THEPERBERH)ERARA R TEER 100000 2P 7T EEETER
PBT Cayman lslands/USA Ordinary/ 15$20,000,000/ 59.1% 59.1% Investment holding and
Preference 599,759,203 trading of satellite TV
equipment and antenna
BERS Reke/ /%8 Lak/ 20000000% 7T/ REZRREEER
Exk 9759203% T ERRBRABER
PBI USA Ordinary USs1 59.1% 591%  Trading of satellite TV
equipment and antenna
%8 EER B BEHEEREE
RREER
Pro Brand Technology (TW) Inc. Taiwan Ordinary TWD225,000,000 59.1% 591%  Design, manufacture and
(Formerly known as "Sksteck Inc.) trading of satellite TV
equipment and antenna
KERHBRDERAF B2 LRk 578 1225000000 7T it BEREEER
ERRERREER
BCN Distribuciones, SA. Spain Ordinary EUR412,102 100% 100%  Research and development
and trading of
electronic goods
AT LRk 210871 REREEETER

228 Sandmartin International Holdings Limited / 2020 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 5 R R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

h i H|IE|.|!II"n1ﬂ

45. XRAEEMBE QT (&)

(Continued)
Issued and

Place of/ fully paid

incorporation/ share capital/

establishment/ (Class of registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities

BRIR

ERAL/ HBRRE/ ALAABACRARG/

NRER i/ BELY RERDEA AMER AMEREEN LA IRER
2020 2019
b g 23 “E-hE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
ER & B ik
Intelligent Digital Services GmbH Germany dinary EUR31,250 100% 100%  Designand manufacture
of electronic goods

2 LRk 3150807 it BEETER
Sino Light Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS12,600 64% 64%  Inactive
EBLEERLA i Bk 12600 7T TEXH
E-passing Co, Ltd. Taiwan Ordinary TWD100,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive
FEBRNERAR B ERER # 2% 1000000007 TEXH
Aggressive Digital Systems Private Ltd. India Ordinary INR30,000,000 51% 51%  Trading of electronic goods

0E Bk 300000000 E E bt EESTEm
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the BEERBLERINTHARRNB AR EAEE
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets and NWEENIBEERAGBYEEAR - EFRARIIT
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the HfiBARMFFEeERANTBRILE -

opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at any time
of the year or at 31 December 2020 and 2019

FREABMER -2 - BER-B— A%
+fﬂ:+—5¢¢EWﬁW%AH%EEW
ERTEHES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i % I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE_ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—HItEE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Place of
incorporation and
principal place

Proportion of

ownership interest

and voting rights held

45.

RAREEZME AR (&)

BEERFEREZNIZEWB LR

&

TRIFJNFEAEHERERNAREIEEE
(RN o

Profit (Loss) allocated to

Accumulated

Name of company of business by non-controlling interest  non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests
A R 3L 3 B FERBERENER ITREFZERESZNEF
NCRE REEEXMH BEZERREENLH (B8] RitFERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBRIRF | T NF |ZEFE T NF |ZBZRE | ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET TR THET
PBT Cayman Islands/USA 40.9% 40.9% (4,378) 11,673 77,571 89,496
BERK HEfHs/ XH
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries (6,855) (5,351) (38,487) (31,773)
(ENIEN=-PNIENG
Total (11,233) 6,322 39,084 57,723
HazE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BE-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summiarised financial information in respect of PBT that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before intergroup eliminations.

. ADFEEME AR ()
BREXAFERESNIZEMBARF
A B AR M B R M B AR

RN o AT BB AR B TR 48 5 B 2 7]
GEEEE R

PBT
EE R

2020 2019

—E-BF —F-NAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current assets MENE E 381,015 524,065
Non-current assets FRBEE 60,762 82,741
Current liabilities mEBE (217,018) (361,675)
Non-current liabilities ErRHEaE (36,522) (30,651)
Net assets BEFE 188,237 214,480
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-_TFT-_A=+tHLHFE

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

45. XRAEEMBE QT (&)

BEERFEREZNIZEWB LR

non-controlling interests (Continued) B (E)
PBT
BERE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue U % 467,641 666,150
(Loss)/profit for the year/period KEEHRE(ER), %A (10,697) 28,396
Total comprehensive income EH R =B (10,697) 28,396
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REUTEENRESRAS
O ) F&8

Operating activities LIRS 81,141 33,242
Investing activities "EEH (4,814) (13,632)
Financing activities BEEE (51,784) (2,297)
24,543 17,313
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 75 i & I wE (4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
BEZT-FFT A=t HLFE

I N

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. 8B BA G AR R
COMPANY
2020 2019
—EEHF —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARZIEE 197,818 197,818
Interest in an associate AR RN I - 90,393 76,600
Loan to an associate 45 F — R Bt *é ’A 7 ME &R 22,130 22,130
Amounts due from subsidiaries e U Bt B A 98,284 98,103
Amount due from an associate JE Ui — fis] B *;..—i UNGIE @] 19,474 18,649
Other receivables H o E U FR 1B 736 1,233
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERR® 414 368
Total assets BEBE 429,249 414,901
Other payables Hoh jE < 3B (94,076) (87,629)
Borrowings BE (232,563) (233,553)
Provision for financial guarantee B R (27,332) (27,332)
Amount due to a subsidiary BN —REMEB AR RIE (169,691) (172,971)
Total liabilities BEEE (523,662) (521,485)
Net liabilities BEFE (94,413) (106,584)
Capital and reserves AR A K
Share capital A% AR 328,108 327,882
Reserves (note) b (M 5T) (422,521) (434,466)
Capital deficiency attributable to owners NRAFER AEMLERE 4
of the Company (94,413) (106,584)
On behalf of the directors REKRE=S

Hung Tsung Chin

HEE
Director

EBEF

Chen Wei Chun
BR {2 25
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B %5 R 2R B R (47

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
RE-F-TF+-A=+—HILFE

—] v O = —
46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. A B BFARR K (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Reserves of the Company MIEE « ARREE
Capital
Share Contributed Share option Special redemption Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R & E B3B8 BRERE KERE EAEERE 2tk ag
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FEL FAT TAT TEL TEL
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—F—H 506,750 181,788 7960 79,900 - (1,078485) (302,087)
Loss and total comprehensive R4 [E E518
income for the year cEREER - - - - (132379) (132379)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+ZR=1- 506,750 181,788 7960 79900 - (1210864) (434,466)
Repurchase of Taiwan OREEEFTRE
Depositary Receipts - - - 1713 - 1713
Loss and total comprehensive A4 [E B518 ]
income for the year rHERELE - - - - - 10232 10232
At 31 December 2020 i Sk 323
+ZA=+-8 506,750 181,788 7,960 79900 1713 (1,200632) (422521)
The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated BAE#RIE Top Peaker AR AR E L BT FEE
shareholders’ fund of Top Peaker and the nominal value of the Company’s shares B S 4K AR RQ B B UEE Top Peaker M2 1THIA D EIE
issued to acquire Top Peaker at the time of a group reorganisation in prior years. PR Z%E o
The special reserve represents the surplus arising pursuant to the capitalisation of BRI EEEIRER TR EE RN EAEEEHL Y —
advances from shareholders as part of the group reorganisation. HA)VTEAENRE o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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47.

48.

49.

“EHE+ZA=+—BHLFE

LITIGATIONS

Lawsuit in India

In October 2020, Aggressive Digital Systems Private Ltd. ("“AD”, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) received a summons to
the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT") at Chandigarh in India
that was filed by Aggressive Electronics Manufacturing Services Private
Limited (“AEMS”, a minority shareholder of AD) and Mr. Neeraj Bharara
(collectively the “Petitioners”) against Top Dragon Development
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the shareholder
of AD), AD and certain directors of AD (collectively the “Respondents”)
alleging that the Respondents made undue acts either of oppression
or mismanagement and claiming for losses caused to the Petitioners
arising from such undue acts. The hearing is scheduled to be held on 17
May 2021 at NCLT.

After consulting the Company’s legal counsel in India and taking into
account the possible factors including, but not limited to, the possible
amount involved in the case, the Board considered that it is not probable
that the Group will incur any material losses resulting from this litigation.
Accordingly, after discussion with the Company’s auditors, no provision
was made in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at 31
December 2020.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The World Health Organisation declared the Pandemic a global health
emergency on 30 January 2020. The Group's factories in the PRC were
temporarily suspended from operations in February 2020 and gradually
resumed production in early March 2020. For the operations in the US,
due to the severity of the Pandemic, some cities were under lockdown
and the global freight capacity was also reduced massively, which led
to the reduction of shipment of products to customers located in the
US. The Directors believe the business and operations of the Group will
be recovered from the Pandemic eventually amid the expectation of
vaccine will be available for extensive distribution later in 2021. However,
there were new mutant cases of COVID-19 lately. The Group will be
cautious and stay vigilant and react to the evolving situation.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2021.

47.

48. £

49.

BF BA
FAED BE B R0

RZZEZZFF+ B - Aggressive Digital Systems
Private Ltd.([AD] - AR A2 EM B A
7)) ¥ J& fh Aggressive Electronics Manufacturing
Services Private Limited ([ AEMS] - AD &) > 8 ig
) X Neeraj Bharara 7t 4 (5518 [ 28 A 1) &1 4
Top Dragon Development Limited ( 2K A & 8 &
BB AR RADMAR) - ADRADHE TE
E(HEBIERADRNEZESANMBERA A
EEE(TBRAREEE] FHNEER - %3
REBERAMEL TRASERBTENTETT
B UHZETETAHEBAMEKEX
?Etb' EE/% BAER-_ZE-_—FRA++tH%E
RNENEERERTT o

EHAARBMEERBER - XERBREM
ARErkNEBRERE  EFeR R A&E
Ex%ﬁ‘“ﬁﬁ%i&ﬂi?ﬁ%%E’JT%'\ETK
FHitt - EARBZBEIF R - AKELER
—ToTFE+ A=+ HOEEPBRRERET
TR -

h

>+D

{giﬁ

RELABN T _ZTF—A=THEM

F\ﬁz%! IRERE 1iii$1¢ RE BRI B
BER-_FT_FTF_ANEET ¥R _F—
TEZANETNELE - SR AKEHEXH
MEBMS  ARRBERE  BoRmmER:
W MERMEEENERD  BHAKER
EEEFHEEERD - EEMEE - BXEH

REER T - —FHEFHREZNE  £AF
B R R EERKGERBRMEBRK -
A - RAXBFHBEFOFLTIRESEER
il e REBEBRFZEMNES  LHBEOE
LR R IE ©

BRSSP BRER

FEMBmERENR_E—F=A-THAE
EEeHERRETE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—T-REF “E—tF —E-N\F “E-NEF —EC"EE
tZA=t-H +ZA=+-B +ZA=+-BH +ZA=t-H | t=A=t-H
HFE HFE HFE HFE LEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TET TAT TExT TER
(Re-presented)
(&)
RESULTS %45
Revenue gz 1,801,501 1,544,838 1277,948 1070527 863,629
Loss before income tax expense T Hi s AR (92,740) (167,033) (64,685) (429,590) (20,686)
Income tax expense ik (14618) (8758) (3,706) (5,546) (3,141)
Loss for the year from continuing SBR[ IR
operations (107,358) (175,791) (68,391) (435,136) (23,827)
(Loss)/profit for the year from BRIHEeEXBHATE
discontinued operation (B18),/ %8 - - (234,439) 79,788 -
Loss for the year TEEER (107,358) (175,791) (302,830) (355,348) (23,827)
Attributable to: & -
Owners of the Company AAREBA (77,655) (105,798) (187,435) (315,461) (12,594)
Non-controlling interests iR (29,703) (69,993) (115,395) (39,887) (11,233)
(107,358) (175,791) (302,830) (355,348) (23,827)
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—T-RE —E—tF —E-N\F “E-NEF —EC"EE
tTZA=t-B +ZA=+-B +ZA=+-BH +ZA=t-H | t=A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEr FEr FE FTExT TER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Total assets BREEE 1322698 187,825 1,096,354 1032676 896,489
Total liabilities BERE (1,040,580) (971,033) (1,062,240) (970,381) (842,973)
282,118 316,792 34,114 62,295 53,516
Equity attributable to owners of AREEEA
the Company e 376,588 484,430 327,948 4572 14,432
Non-controlling interests FEERR RS (94470) (167,638) (293,834) 57723 39,084
282,118 316,792 34114 62,295 53,516
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